
  
 

City of Mission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Wednesday, August 17, 2016 
7:00 p.m. 

Mission City Hall 
 

If you require any accommodations (i.e. qualified interpreter, large print, reader, hearing assistance) in                           
order to attend this meeting, please notify the Administrative Office at 9136768350 no later than 24                               
hours prior to the beginning of the meeting. 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
1.  SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
2.  ISSUANCE OF NOTES AND BONDS 
 
3.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
NOTE:  Information on consent agenda items has been provided to the Governing Body.  These                           
items are determined to be routine enough to be acted on in a single motion; however, this                                 
does not preclude discussion.   If a councilmember or member of the public requests, an                           
item may be removed from the consent agenda for further consideration and separate                         
motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  GENERAL 
 
3a.    Minutes of the July 20 City Council Meeting  
  
CONSENT AGENDA  Finance & Administration Committee 
  Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Packet 8316 

Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Minutes 8316 
 
3b.  Janitorial Services Contract 
3c.  Selection of Voting Delegates for LKM and NLC Annual Meetings 
3d. Temporary CMB Permit  Johnny’s BBQ, Battle of the Brisket Event 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  Community Development Committee 

Community Development Committee Meeting Packet 8316 
Community Development Committee Meeting Minutes 8316 

 
3e.  Table and Chair Replacement at Sylvester Powell, Jr. Community Center 
 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Approved Minutes from Board and Commission meetings are available on the  
City of Mission website under the “ Agendas & Minutes ” tab. 

 
4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

http://missionks.org/files/documents/CityCouncilMinutes07-20-16050444080316PM1578.pdf
https://mission.municipalcms.com/files/documents/FinanceandAdministrationCommitteePacket08-03-16025540072916PM1578.pdf
http://missionks.org/files/documents/FinanceandAdministrationCommitteeMinutes08-03-16040236081216PM1578.pdf
http://missionks.org/files/documents/CommunityDevelopmentCommitteePacket08-03-16025346072916PM1578.pdf
http://missionks.org/files/documents/CommunityDevelopmentCommitteeMinutes08-03-16121746080416PM1578.pdf
http://missionks.org/agenda.aspx


 
5.  ACTION ITEMS 
 

Planning Commission 
 
5a. Revised Preliminary Site Plan, The Gateway Project, Case #1603 
 

Miscellaneous 
 
6.  COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Finance & Administration, Ron Appletoft 
  Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Packet 8316 

Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Minutes 8316 
 
6a. 2017 Budget Resolution 
6b. Resolution Adopting 20172021 CIP 
6c. Adoption of 2017 Budget  City of Mission 
6d. Adoption of 2017 Budget  Rock Creek Storm Drainage District No. 1 
6e. Adoption of 2017 Budget  Rock Creek Storm Drainage District No. 2 
 
 Community Development, Arcie Rothrock 

Community Development Committee Meeting Packet 8316 
Community Development Committee Meeting Minutes 8316 

 
6f. Scope of Services with GBA for Rock Creek Channel Improvements (Nall to Roeland Dr.) 
 
7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
8a. Consolidated Fire District No. 2 Street Solicitation Application to Benefit MDA 
 
9.  MAYOR'S REPORT 
 

Appointments: 
 
10.  CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

https://mission.municipalcms.com/files/documents/FinanceandAdministrationCommitteePacket08-03-16025540072916PM1578.pdf
http://missionks.org/files/documents/FinanceandAdministrationCommitteeMinutes08-03-16040236081216PM1578.pdf
http://missionks.org/files/documents/CommunityDevelopmentCommitteePacket08-03-16025346072916PM1578.pdf
http://missionks.org/files/documents/CommunityDevelopmentCommitteeMinutes08-03-16121746080416PM1578.pdf


 

City   of   Mission  Item   Number:  5a. 

ACTION   ITEM   SUMMARY  Date:  7/26/2016 

Community   Development  From:  Danielle   Murray 
Action   items   require   a   vote   to   recommend   the   item   to   full   City   Council   for   further   action. 
 

RE:    Gateway   Revised   Preliminary   Site   Development   Plan 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    The   City   Council   approve   Case   #16-03   Revised   Preliminary   Site 
Plan   for   The   Gateway   Project   with   the   conditions   recommended   by   the   Planning 
Commission.  
 
DETAILS:  
In   2005   The   Cameron   Group,   LLC,   purchased   the   Mission   Mall   property   with   plans   to 
build   a   mixed-use   development   on   the   site.   In   2006   the   Planning   Commission   reviewed 
and   approved   the   rezoning   and   preliminary   site   plan   for   the   redevelopment   of   the 
subject   property   for   urban   development   composed   of   retail,   office,   hotel,   restaurant,   and 
residential   uses.      Since   the   “MXD”   zoning   and   preliminary   site   plan   was   first   approved 
the   project   has   evolved   through   several   revisions   reflected   in   revised   plans   presented   to 
the   Planning   Commission   and   City   Council   in   2007,   2008,   2012,   and   2015.      Each   of 
these   plan   approvals   included   a   range   of   stipulations   for   site   development   issues,   and 
requirements   for   additional   details   to   be   provided   with   final   plan   reviews.   
 
At   this   time   the   applicant   is   proposing   significant   changes   to   the   previously   approved 
plan   and   is   requesting   a   revised   preliminary   site   plan   approval   for   the   entire 
development.        The   applicant   intends   to   proceed   to   file   a   final   site   development   plan   and 
to   begin   construction   of   the   entire   project   as   a   single   phase. 
 
Planning   Commission   Action 
The   Planning   Commission,   at   their   July   25   2016   meeting,   voted   9-0   to   recommend 
approval   of   the   Case   with   twenty-eight   (28)   recommended   conditions   as   contained   in 
the   staff   report.      Minutes   of   the   meeting   are   included   in   the   packet. 
 
No   protest   petitions   have   been   received. 
 
 

 

Related   Statute/City   Ordinance:   

Line   Item   Code/Description:   

Available   Budget:   

 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

The regular meeting of the Mission Planning Commission was called to order by Chairman Mike                             
Lee at 7:00 PM Monday, July 25, 2016. Members also present: Jim Brown, Scott Babcock,                             
Robin Dukelow, Stuart Braden, Dana Buford, Brad Davidson, Charlie Troppito and Frank Bruce.                         
Also in attendance: Danielle Murray, City Planner; Brian Scott, Assistant City Administrator;                       
Nora   Tripp,   Secretary   to   the   Planning   Commission;   and   Pete   Heaven,   City   Land   Use   Attorney.   

Election   of   Planning   Commission   Secretary 

Mr. Babcock moved and Ms. Dukelow seconded a motion to nominate Nora Tripp to serve as                               
the   Planning   Commission   Secretary.   The   vote   was   taken   (9-0).   The    motion   carried . 

   Approval   of   minutes   from   the   April   25,   2016   meeting 

Mr. Babcock moved and Ms. Dukelow seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the April                               
25,   2016,   meeting,   with   the   following   correction: 

The word “tow” should be replaced with the word “tag” in Mr. Bruce’s comments towards                             
the   bottom   of   page   5. 

The vote was taken (7-2-0). The motion carried . Mr. Brown and Mr. Troppito abstained from                             
the   vote. 

Case   #16-03   –   Revised   Preliminary   Site   Plan   –   The   Gateway   Development 

Chairman   Lee :   This   will   be   a   public   hearing. 

[ Chairman   Lee   outlined   the   process   for   a   public   hearing .] 

Ms. Murray : I’ll give a brief staff report this evening. Much of what you’ve seen in the last couple                                     
of months remains unchanged, but for the benefit of folks in the audience, I’ll going through                               
some   of   the   basics   again. 

Again, this is a revised preliminary site plan. That means you all make recommendation, and                             
then the case goes to City Council next month for them to make a final determination. After that                                   
there is one more planning step, which would be a final site plan review. So, before you this                                   
evening is a revised preliminary site plan located in a planned mixed use district, or MXD. The                                 
intent of this district is to encourage a variety of land uses in closer proximity to one another                                   
than would be possible with more conventional zoning districts, and to encourage building                         
configurations that create a distinctive and memorable sense of place. Developments in this                         
district are allowed and expected to have a mixture of residential, office and retail uses, along                               
with public spaces, entertainment uses and other specialty facilities that are compatible in both                           
character and function. Developments are also expected to utilize shared parking facilities                       
linked to multiple buildings and uses by an attractive and logical pedestrian network that places                             
more emphasis on the quality of the pedestrian experience than is generally found in typical                             
suburban development. Buildings are intended to be primarily multi-story structures with                     
differing uses organized vertically rather than the horizontal separation of uses that commonly                         
results from conventional zoning districts. This information comes straight from our zoning code                         
for   the   planned   mixed   use   district. 

At this time, the applicant is requesting a revised preliminary site plan for the entire                             
development. They do intend to proceed on to final site planning stage and then begin                             

1 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

construction later in the year. As you will recall, the plan that was approved in 2012/2013,                               
included a linear public plaza, or as they called it, an esplanade, along Roeland Drive; a                               
four-story parking structure directly connected to upper level retail and surrounding buildings, as                         
well as Shawnee Mission Parkway. Those features were all removed in the last plan that you                               
saw in 2015/early 2016, and the parking structure was converted to three stories with no below                               
grade   parking.  

A hotel was added in 2015 to replace the retail and service uses at the south side of the site.                                       
Now, with this proposed plan in 2016, they are retaining many of the features of that previous                                 
plan, with an additional two floors of apartments on top of the main large retailer in Building A                                   
along the northwest and south perimeter of that building with an exterior stairway along Johnson                             
Drive leading up to them. Building A also does contain a small amount of green roof or planted                                   
roof in some of those areas. There was an interim concept that some of you may have heard                                   
about, that was not actually on any of the approved plans, which included a larger green roof                                 
with a walking track. The walking track feature is not part of this plan but the developer has                                   
incorporated some of the green roof features. So, as you look at the plans, you can see some                                   
of those upper story apartments have a view out onto a little bit of greenery. The total floor area                                     
has been increased slightly in this plan from the previous one, about 86,000 square feet, and                               
the   amount   of   parking   in   that   parking   garage   has   been   reduced   slightly   by   about   30-31   stalls.  

The applicant is proposing a revised site plan tonight with the same perimeter footprint and                             
character, with buildings that line all four streets surrounding the site, Johnson Drive, Roe,                           
Shawnee Mission Parkway and Roeland Drive. The plan identifies six buildings throughout the                         
site, lettered A through F, and surrounding a partially freestanding three-level parking garage, as                           
I said. All of the buildings except for F contain a horizontal mix of uses. All of the other buildings                                       
contain either a mix of hotel and retail or retail and residential. Building F is the only building that                                     
has one use within it and that would be for offices. Like I said, Building A as a large retailer,                                       
does remain consistent with the previous plan, which was for a large ground floor retailer,                             
except   however,   they   have   added   two   floors   of   apartments   above. 

There is a table in your staff report that compares the square footages for retail, residential,                               
office, and hotel between the 2012, 2015 and 2016 plans, as well as the number of parking                                 
stalls. It also has a breakout for you of the percent of square footage both on the ground floor                                     
and above ground floor, with and without the office building included in that mix, since there has                                 
been   some   discussion   about   whether   the   office   building   would   or   would   not   be   built.  

Included in your staff report again is a long discussion of some of the design issues. I am only                                     
going to highlight one of them for tonight. Then there is also a long list of conditions. When we                                     
get   to   those   conditions,   again,   I   will   go   over   the   reason   for   including   such   a   long   list.  

The one element that I would like to bring to your attention tonight in the review comments                                 
section of the staff report has to do with the Johnson Drive design guidelines. As I mentioned,                                 
one of the newer features with this is an exterior stairway feature spanning three stories.                             
Basically from ground level on Johnson Drive up to the apartments above the north side of                               
Building A. This is new, and it is proposed in place of any kind of store front façade of Building                                       
A on Johnson Drive. We have always said that when it comes time to review the final site plan,                                     
which this is not, but when we finally get to that, that the design features of that large frontage                                     

2 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

would be important. So, I wanted to draw your attention to that, and also to draw the applicant’s                                   
attention to the fact that we will still be reviewing those elements with the Johnson Drive design                                 
guidelines as our measuring stick. Staff is not sure that this stairway is a feature that necessarily                                 
is contemplated in the Johnson Drive design guidelines, and we are not sure if that would                               
actually integrate into the streetscape at that point. So, some of the comments that are listed in                                 
the staff report about building façades providing visual interest, having display windows, having                         
entrances into the buildings that enter from the street being so important, will require further                             
scrutiny   of   the   stairwell   to   determine   compliance   with   the   intent   of   the   guidelines. 

We did also give you an analysis of the civic spaces. The parking calculations do meet our                                 
parking requirements. Some of the other elements about sidewalks, signs, public transportation,                       
provision of Rock Creek Trail, traffic engineering, and storm water management are all included                           
in the staff report. The developer has provided sufficient detail for a preliminary site plan, but                               
there are still elements of all of these things that we will have to seek further detail with at the                                       
final   site   plan   review   to   be   able   to   comment   on. 

To wrap up here, staff does feel that the proposed development conforms with the                           
comprehensive plan and meets the overall intent of the MXD zoning district and the specifics of                               
the height area parking regulations that go with that zoning district. The proposed preliminary                           
site development plan demonstrates a mix of three to four distinct uses within an area                             
approximately equal to four city blocks. Those uses are arranged vertically in all the buildings                             
except for F, like I said, which would be office. All of the floor area in the development is located                                       
in multi-story buildings including Building F. They are a minimum of three stories in height, up to                                 
seven   stories   for   the   hotel. 

All those uses will utilize shared parking, which is located centrally and is, like I said, three                                 
stories in height. This parking is screened from view from the public realm, multistoried, has                             
pedestrian connections internally and externally, with a significant sidewalk system around the                       
development, including a private boardwalk for the interior civic space. Walkways are designed                         
to make all portions of the development easily accessible on foot. They will be directed to                               
provide special attention to streetscape features such as sidewalks and providing shade trees                         
and pedestrian scale street lighting and other amenities along the street like seating and                           
landscaping to provide for that high quality that we strive for in the zoning district, to make it                                   
both   an   inviting   and   lively   place   to   be. 

Staff believes all these features, when combined with the coordinated architectural style,                       
contribute to creating a distinctive sense of place which is compact, urban and active. That                             
being said, while the development is generally in conformance with the zoning and site planning                             
requirements, there are some details that remain unresolved. Many of those details are beyond                           
the scope of a preliminary site plan, so they are not technically deficiencies at this point. But, we                                   
would, as we have done in the past, always point these things out to the developers so that as                                     
they   proceed   on   to   further   steps,   they   are   aware   of   what   our   expectations   are. 

Included in your staff report are the 28 conditions that were with this application the previous                               
time. There, as you will recall, were 27 conditions. The 28 th condition has to do with leasing of                                   

3 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

the development, presented by the city council in November 2015. That is just automatically                           
included   as   a   historical   condition   that   they   would   expect   to   see. 

Staff does recommend that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the preliminary                       
site development plan for this case to the city council with all 28 of those conditions. I am not                                     
going to go through all 28 conditions. They are annotated in the staff report, telling you where                                 
they came from. If it says “rezoning” and a number, that is the condition that was placed on                                   
them by ordinance at the time that the site was zoned in 2006. If it has a date after it instead,                                         
like “comments” and then a date, those were conditions developed from staff comments to the                             
developer. They have had two rounds of review now, one in 2015 and 2016. Basically, we gave                                 
them the same review comments this last round because they have turned in the same project                               
to us, but for the minor changes to the apartments above Building A. Then, if there are letters                                   
after the condition, like “GBA”, that is the abbreviation of the name our engineering firm. So,                               
those   comments   came   to   us   via   our   engineer   for   either   traffic   or   stormwater. 

Also, included in the packet is both the proposed plan at this time, and the previously- approved                                 
plan.   I   believe   that   concludes   staff   report   with   just   a   last   reminder   that   this   is   a   public   hearing. 

Chairman Lee : Thank you. Any questions for staff before we hear from the applicant? Would the                               
applicant   like   to   step   forward   please? 

Thomas Valenti, Gateway Developers, appeared before the Planning Commission and made                     
the   following   comments:  

Mr. Thomas Valenti : Good evening, Mr. Chairman and members of the Planning Commission.                         
We have brought some changes to you primarily to address the concern that some had with the                                 
verticality of the project, and have added about 74 residential apartments on two levels above                             
the main retail building. Danielle had talked about an additional refinement to that, which is a                               
glass stairway feature entrance diagonally across almost the length of Johnson Drive, going                         
diagonally up to the apartments. We think that will make a very nice feature. Danielle had also                                 
mentioned some green areas that serve those apartments above that main retail building. We                           
also   believe   that   those   will   be   very   nice   touches   to   this. 

We believe that this plan is functional, certainly meets the MXD zoning qualifications, will be a                               
great place to live. It will be a great place to work, will be a great place to shop. All of the                                           
commitments that I have made to you in the past with respect to maintaining a clean and safe                                   
project will be also going forward with respect to 24-hour a day, seven days a week security.                                 
Policing the lots for litter, initially three times a day, and after the first several months, we will                                   
determine   whether   or   not   that   needs   to   be   increased   or   it   is   more   than   is   needed. 

We are looking at a total now of 274 residential units. These will be market rate units. They will                                     
hopefully compete with residential units on the Plaza. A price point a little less than the Plaza,                                 
but that kind of quality. The apartments that are above the large retail building will be studios                                 
and one bedroom units. They will be single loaded, meaning that the entry to each of the                                 
apartments will be on the back side of that building, and all the apartments will be facing the                                   
street or the parking garage. The units at the second level will have balconies and green areas.                                 
There   are   also   some   additional   green   areas   that   we   will   point   out   in   greater   detail. 

4 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

We have made some other refinements that I think are great enhancements to the project that                               
you previously approved. They are not significant, but there are some improvements to the                           
pedestrian features and some of the entrances and exists. Our architect, Josh Shelton, and my                             
son Matt, will go through each of those changes. I know some of you are new or relatively new,                                     
and for the benefit of the members of the public, I think it would be appropriate that we give a                                       
more   detailed   explanation. 

We understand, as in the past, that the staff would propose the conditions that would have to be                                   
either satisfied or otherwise addressed, and we will address those comments. For instance, the                           
issue with respect to the Johnson Drive corridor study requirements. We believe that the glass                             
stairwell, which will be a really beautiful feature, should satisfy that. But, we understand that we                               
have to discuss that with staff and that will be subject to your final decision at final site plan                                     
approval. 

We would like to get started as soon as possible. We hope that one of the main issues back in                                       
2015 and the beginning of this year, which was the need for additional uses above the main                                 
retail building, has now been addressed, and what we wanted to do was have a use above that                                   
retail building that we know we can deliver, that there is no question that we can deliver. Some                                   
of you who have been on the board in the past knew that we at one time had retailers above                                       
that building. We were able to sign one retailer and we were not able to get the other retailers to                                       
go above. It was just a question of those retailers saying, why would we go in a non-dense city                                     
downtown kind of environment on top of another retailer when there are at-grade opportunities                           
all   around   us?   That   was   the   dilemma   that   we   faced.  

However, with respect to the apartments, we know there is a market for these apartments,                             
especially the studios and one bedrooms. And, we know we can deliver them. They are going to                                 
be beautiful. They are going to be attractive. I think they are going to be highly sought after. The                                     
apartments in the other two buildings are one bedrooms and two bedrooms and will be more                               
spacious. But, as in the past plan, they will all share in the hotel amenities, the pool and the                                     
fitness   center,   and   I   think   will   be   a   great   amenity   for   the   potential   residents   there. 

There is covered parking. The residents will have one designated spot for each apartment.                           
There will be a card access area where only they can get into. In addition, there will be card                                     
access into those buildings so that we maintain security. We will have camera security as well                               
as   patrol. 

I will be here for questions, but I would like to turn it over to Josh and Matt so that they can go                                             
through   some   of   the   details   for   you. 

Matt Valenti, Gateway Developers, and Josh Shelton of el dorado architects appeared before                         
the   Planning   Commission   and   made   the   following   comments : 

Mr. Matt Valenti : I am just going to take you through the site plan. Again, as my dad said, for the                                         
benefit of those who are new, I am going to not just focus on the new, but also give a                                       
wraparound   of   the   rest   of   the   project   as   well. 

Obviously this is an aerial sketch. You are looking at the project from the southwest corner of                                 
the site at the intersection of Roeland and Shawnee Mission Parkway. This is the hotel building                               

5 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

which we have an agreement with a national flag for both boutique style, and also an extended                                 
stay. So, instead of doing 200 rooms of all boutique, we are going to do about 150 rooms of                                     
boutique style, and that same national flag as an extended stay product as well. We are going to                                   
do about 50 rooms of extended stay, which will be more suite style. Perhaps people that are at                                   
KU   hospital   for   an   extended   period   of   time,   or   whatever,   will   benefit   from   those   rooms. 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : And, as Matt said, that franchise agreement is signed. We have paid the                               
franchise   fee.   We   are   ready   to   go   on   it. 

Mr. Matt Valenti : This is that structure. This is both retail and residential along Roeland. We have                                 
some surface parking here for the retail along Roeland. The back side here is also retail and                                 
residential along Johnson. There is some on-street parking along Johnson here, as well as a                             
connection. At this point you can get into the public plaza space back here. This is the large                                   
retail building with now residential apartments wrapping around the north, west and south face.                           
This is the single-use building, which would be an office. Also, there is parking below this office                                 
building that comes and goes with that building if we don’t procure that building. Fifty percent of                                 
that building sign leases before we are going to be too far down the road. We probably                                 
[ inaudible ]   the   parking   that   is   underneath,   [ inaudible ]   that   is   really   just   required   for   that   use. 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : Matt, we want to just mention. We talked about moving the hotel to the                                 
east. That, we have already done in this plan. So that the eastern edge of the hotel now lines up                                       
with   the   top   edge   of   that   parking   garage. 

Mr. Matt Valenti : This building slid to the east a little bit, to line up with this. In the event that this                                           
building was not here, this building, in a previous submittal, ended back here. We just felt that                                 
visually from the street out here, that might look a little awkward, that that does not line up. So,                                     
now   this   actually   lines   up   with   this   face. 

I am going to take you for a spin around the site plan. Basically, you are looking at an aerial view                                         
of the project. So, you are looking at the top of the deck, which is outlined here. This is the                                       
surface lot entrance off of Johnson Drive, at the surface. This is a surface lot back in here. This                                     
is the retail building below with the residential above. These are the green spaces that we are                                 
talking about. This is the pedestrian entrance right here, coming from the top of the deck into the                                   
residential lobby right here. You will have a single- loaded corridor. The corridor will actually run                               
along the back side of the apartments, and all the apartments will face out. The apartments here                                 
on the west side will actually have patios. The first level apartments will actually have patios and                                 
a walk out and will experience some of this green space. A parapet from the retail building will                                   
come up so that in your patio you have a green divider that you are looking at. You have                                     
plantings, a patio, and then the parapet comes up. It will be green, so you have a separation                                   
between your visual and the parking lot. You will not actually be looking out over the parking lot.                                   
This is another green area. This is going to be a common clubroom and outdoor space that all                                   
of   these   units   can   utilize. 

Mr. Josh Shelton : One thing, that by stacking the two levels of residential above the main retail                                 
building, it helps solve an issue that we face with the office building that was looking out over the                                     
roof of the main retail building onto all the rooftop equipment. Now, that is shielded and actually                                 

6 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

looks out over a common area green space with residential units. We feel like it is a much more                                     
compatible   relationship   with   the   office   structure. 

Mr. Matt Valenti : I am going to spin around. Some of these areas that are bubbled are also                                   
showing you some differences that have changed. First, over here, we added a pedestrian                           
connection here from the sidewalk, all the way down, and added a pedestrian connection here                             
up to this terrace level. At this terrace level, you have the restaurant spaces within the hotel                                 
building, and then you would also be able to connect, if you are a resident here, into the fitness                                     
area and the club room above the fitness area. For the residents, there is a pedestrian                               
connection   we   have   added   there. 

The pool for the hotel was actually dropped one terrace level. This lower level terrace expanded                               
a little bit and this upper level terrace shrunk. We wanted to have all the upper seating for the                                     
two restaurants on this upper level terrace and we felt like it would be better to have a                                   
separation between the pool level and those outdoor seating spaces. You will see below here,                             
on another floor plan, that this connects into the hotel lobby area and the hotel cocktail bar, with                                   
separate bathrooms and everything. So, if you are a resident and you are using the pool, you do                                   
not have to walk by the restaurants necessarily. You can stay down there, use the restrooms                               
just going into the cocktail bar and get some soda or drinks, whatever, and stay at the pool. The                                     
restaurant seating will be up above that. Also, I think from the intersection where cars are going                                 
to be stopped, you are going to be quite a bit above the pool, so you are not going to have a                                           
direct view at people that are at the pool. It is a better visual as well. This terrace just slightly                                       
changed   in   shape   and   opened   up   a   little   bit. 

This is level one. Again, this is all retail and green. Main retail building and then service for the                                     
hotel. This service area expanded a little bit so that we could place the service elevators in the                                   
right spaces for use of the restaurants and the hotel, as well as being able to use the service                                     
dock and all that for both of them. There is also a separate entrance in here that goes into a                                       
pedestrian elevator so if there is a tour bus drop off, that can be done on this level and then                                       
brought   straight   up   into   the   registration   area. 

This also has a bubble around it. At Johnson Drive now, the residential actually hangs out a little                                   
bit over a retail building. So, there is a little bit of an overhang. It is not just a flat surface. You                                           
are   actually   seeing   a   pop-out   of   that   residential   hub. 

Mr. Babcock : You talk about an entrance on that side of the building and there is going to be a                                       
glass staircase of some sort. How do you figure you are getting near the 75 percent requirement                                 
for   windows? 

Mr. Matt Valenti : Right now, the way we have shown it and calculated it, we are meeting the 75                                     
percent. 

Mr. Babcock : Are you relying on the apartments to give you some of the windows? Is that what                                   
you   are   doing? 

Mr.   Matt   Valenti :   No. 

Unidentified : PBP A200 shows an elevation of that. So, it correctly follows A014 and begins the                               
elevation   series. 

7 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

Unidentified : The code calls for 75 percent of the store front or frontage of the building to have                                   
glass. 

Mr. Babcock : Well, I think it is the whole side of the building. Like, against Johnson Drive, it is                                     
supposed to be also. I believe that side of Walmart or Building A on the north side is supposed                                     
to   have   75   percent   glass. 

Mr. Matt Valenti : Correct. What we have done, and I will let Josh talk on this a little bit.                                     
Previously, to meet that 75 percent, we had storefront glass that were more or less display                               
windows along Johnson Drive there within that Building A face. Instead of having non-utilized                           
glass for the purposes of meeting a code, we thought if we took advantage of, number one,                                 
having an entrance on this side into the building and, number two, having more of an activated                                 
feature that also incorporated the glass into it, that we could [ inaudible ] around. I can tell you                                 
this is going to be more expensive, but we also feel like it will benefit, not only the residents for                                       
having an entrance over here, the bus stops over here, you know, the millennial crowd that is                                 
going to be using the single bedrooms and the studios are more apt to use the public transit. So,                                     
they   will   be   able   to   easily   get   in   and   out   here   and   up   to   their   residence. 

Mr. Babcock : What that is depicting, I imagine you are looking at the north side elevation of                                 
A200, it looks like kind of a ramp setup that goes up to stairs. That whole thing is glass? Is that                                         
what   you   are   talking   about? 

Mr. Matt Valenti : Yes. From right here. This is actually the entrance and you can walk in and                                   
come   up   and   then   go   upstairs. 

Mr. Shelton : That upstairs area we had planned to be common area space. That would be kind                                 
of   an   express   gathering   area   for   the   residents. 

Mr.   Babcock :   Danielle,   you   were   saying   that   does   not   meet   the   Design   Guidelines? 

Ms.   Murray :   We   have   not   discussed   its   conformance   in   any   great   detail. 

Mr.   Babcock :   I   know   it   is   a   preliminary   site   plan. 

Ms. Murray : At this point, it is more of a massing concept than anything. But, yes, we have                                   
questions   for   them   as   follow-up   to   the   [ inaudible ]   building,   [ inaudible ]   streetscape. 

Mr. Babcock : Thank you. I know I am getting ahead a little bit, but I want to make sure you                                       
understand   our   concerns. 

Mr. Shelton : Yes. It is right at the crux of the conversation of how the plan has evolved. Because                                     
of Walmart, or a large retail, we know it is contemplated to be Walmart, but any large-scale retail                                   
user, which we have to contemplate any and all, because of that orientation, their main entry                               
would be off of the parking lot. As a result, I think there was a concern that we had as the                                         
integrity of the design of the project, that the glazing facing Johnson Drive at that point would be                                   
a false expression of active storefront. So, what we chose to do instead was celebrate                             
pedestrian circulation through the glazing and also the common area space of the residential,                           
express that as something that would activate the site rather than sit in a less active orientation                                 
to   Johnson   Drive. 

8 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

Mr. Brown : I kind of believe that anything can be done with proper design and make it fit if we                                       
are all playing by the same book. With that being glass, it seems like there is an opportunity to                                     
put something behind the glass to make it engaging from the street. So, some type of design                                 
that engages the urban environment that we are now going to have along Johnson Drive.                             
Specifically,   something   more   decorative   and   not   signage   related   at   all. 

Mr. Shelton : I think that could be really nice. Actually, we have talked about that amongst the                                 
development team. We would like to explore that further, some patterning that is actually etched                             
into the glass or something that is on the wall behind the glass, incorporate lighting detail so it is                                     
a beacon at night. Right now, this is kind of preliminary massing and zoning. The idea is                                 
expressed,   but   I   think   that   would   be   a   design   detail   that   we   would   intend   to   follow   through   on. 

Mr. Brown : I would not assume you etch into the glass, because then it is more permanent. I                                   
would just assume you would do something that would be more design-oriented that you could                             
change over time, that might be flexible more with our environment as time goes along. You                               
might want to change it yourself. You start spending the money on etching that in glass, then                                 
you are set with that for a long, long time, versus something that you could design on the interior                                     
of the wall and be lighted and more artistic than something permanently etched in glass. That                               
would be what I would prefer. But, it needs to also be that storefront type look environment                                 
when you are done. That is a challenge that I would like to see you step up to if you are going to                                             
go with that. How do you make that design work and make it look like store front but be artistic                                       
and   engaging   at   the   same   time? 

Mr. Shelton : Yes. We would love to rise to that occasion. I think that’s right up our alley. Perhaps                                     
it is some artistic element that is on the wall behind. Maybe there are different levels of                                 
translucency of glass and transparency of glass that we also explore so that it catches light in                                 
different ways. There is a lot of potential for unique design expression within the standard                             
storefront   system   at   this   location. 

Mr.   Brown :   What   is   the   material   below   the   incline? 

Mr.   Matt   Valenti :   That   is   just   the   precast   that   was   on   the   retail   building. 

Mr. Braden : Tell me again what the entrance at the lower level is, that looks like it is behind the                                       
glass? 

Mr. Matt Valenti : That is just an entrance in through the glass. You will have carded access for                                   
the residents here, so they will be able to come and go into there and then come up. This up in                                         
here would be more like a quasi-lobby-ish area up there at each level. The main lobby will be                                   
over   on   the   west   side   that   comes   from   the   parking   lot   there. 

Mr.   Babcock :   Is   it   environmentally   controlled,   that   entry   way,   or   not? 

Mr.   Matt   Valenti :   I   would   imagine   we   would   have   to.   Well,   it   is   on   the   north   side. 

Mr.   Babcock :   Jumping   ahead   to   your   green   space,   did   you   get   approval   from   Walmart? 

Mr. Matt Valenti : Yes. The patios will be patios; the green space will be green space. It is not                                     
occupy-able.   We   do   not   run   around   on   the   grass. 

9 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

Mr. Babcock : When we get to that point, can we focus on how the residents get into the                                   
apartments on the retail building? I am concerned about that. You told me the [ inaudible ]. What                               
that   entrance   is   going   to   look   like. 

Mr. Matt Valenti : Going back to level one, I think we did most of level one. Right now, it’s level                                       
one, and I mentioned that it is here now because of the residence above. If you are going to                                     
have a fire exit stairwell here and an elevator that potentially comes all the way down,                               
[ inaudible ], whether or not it has an access point here is something that we need to talk about.                                   
There   could   be   a   fire   exit   stairwell   here,   here,   here   and   I   think   we   may   have   to   talk   about   this. 

This is level two. So, you come up to the first level elevator deck. You are coming off Roeland,                                     
entering in. This is a hotel drop off. The registration area for the hotel is here and there is a                                       
spa/restaurant space here. This is the first level of residential. There will be controlled parking                             
over here for the residential, for all of this residential. There will be a connection here at this                                   
point   that   comes   into   the   lobby   of   the   residential   on   the   second   level. 

Mr Shelton : It should be noted that what appears to be a bridge from the parking garage to the                                     
large retail, is a dotted line, which indicates a pedestrian connection above. This is really                             
above. 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : Just with respect to the security issues, you would have a card access only                                 
into that parking area and card access only into the building itself. So, you would have to swipe                                   
your   card. 

Mr.   Braden :   Okay,   so   you   get   to   the   parking   area   separately,   first,   and   then   come   in? 

Mr. Matt Valenti : Yes. It is not just that you are going to swipe your card to get into the parking                                         
and then walk into the apartment, because anybody could walk around. You have still got to use                                 
your   card   in   order   to   get   into   the   building. 

Mr. Troppito : Could you briefly review emergency responder access to the residential area and                           
to   the   office   area? 

Mr. Matt Valenti : The height of the first level back allows for fire truck access underneath it. So,                                   
you   can   get   underneath   there   with   a   fire   truck. 

Mr.   Troppito :   And   the   structure   would   support   its   weight? 

Mr. Matt Valenti : On the first level. At ground level. So, it is high enough. The next level is high                                       
enough so you can get under there with a fire truck and access underneath there. We met with                                   
the fire marshal and he signed off on his access points for residential, hotel and office. We went                                   
through the exiting strategies, especially for this building, which were a little bit more                           
complicated. We worked through all that with the fire marshal. I think the key is that he can get                                     
underneath here and come through this area if he needs to. He has got access here, obviously                                 
here   on   Johnson. 

Mr. Babcock : Matt, could you go back to the first level. Because I think at least maybe some                                   
members of the public, discussed – and I know Josh will get to it in greater detail – that green                                       
area. 

10 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

Mr. Matt Valenti : This is at the first level retail, you’ve got plus or minus [ inaudible ] feet of retail                                     
here. There are some restaurant locations that we have pegged as being here, here and here.                               
This actually has an overhang dotted line. There is a dotted line here. So, there is an overhang                                   
here. So, this is all covered outdoor seating and then all of this darker material here is a raised                                     
patio from this green space. You will have these restaurant locations with outdoor seating back                             
here. This is all green space. This parking deck has cladding as well as a landscape buffer. I                                   
think there were 130 or 122 trees that we will plant on site, and some of them are lined right                                       
here on the parking deck along with the cladding. So, you are not staring from your seating out                                   
into   the   parking   lot. 

Mr.   Babcock :   What   are   the   distances   across   there,   roughly? 

Mr. Matt Valenti : This is 65 feet or so. So, this is probably about 70 feet. This is probably closer                                       
to 110 feet right here. Then it gets pretty tight down here. This is where the [ inaudible ], and a lot                                       
of this stuff, [ inaudible ] stuff. It is also for the restaurant spaces, you have got trash compactor                                 
space   in   here   and   here. 

Mr. Shelton : I think one thing we are excited about with the way that the retail and mixed use                                     
residential [ inaudible ] away from the garage is it does create a unique mixed use on this pocket                                 
park that is open to the public, open to the residents. I think it is a place where residents can                                       
come down and hang out, and also members from the neighborhood can come and have                             
dinner. As Matt mentioned, the parking garage is clad with a faceted perforated screen. So, it is                                 
not applied flat to the building. It has slight angles and pivots so it catches sunlight in different                                   
ways. I personally do not know of another mixed use pocket park like this in the city. So, we are                                       
pretty   excited   about   the   role   that   it   will   play   within   the   overall   project. 

I think there has been a misconception, where I have at least heard people say that the                                 
boutique dining experience will be overlooking this large retail. It is really not the case. We have                                 
used the parking element very strategically and the sculptural wrap of the parking very                           
strategically to provide the right sorts of buffers for the right sorts of problematic elements                             
throughout the project. Not only has the wrap around the parking structure shielded it from the                               
main streets, which is a kind of strategic urban design strategy, we have also used the parking                                 
itself to buffer the different problematic elements from one another, so that if you are having a                                 
shopping experience at a larger retail facility, you are not in the middle of someone trying to                                 
have   dinner   with   the   family,   and   vice   versa. 

Mr. Matt Valenti : This just shows that landscape plan. The green space, the patio. This is an                                 
entry where it goes underneath the residential, so there is no point here to walk straight back in.                                   
There   is   also   an   opening   here   to   come   back   in   off   Johnson. 

Again, this is that lower level terrace. We expanded this lower level, put the pool down here. The                                   
pool area. This is the hotel registration. Again, you are the first level of the structure deck now.                                   
You have come off of Roeland. You are pulling in. Either you do a hotel drop off, park and come                                       
in. You have the registration to both hotels, by the way. They share the registration. This is the                                   
cocktail bar. If any of you have been into the Aloft down at Leawood and you see that small XYZ                                       
Bar that is upstairs, this would be similar to that. It will have actually some sliding glass doors                                   
here that can open up into the pool area [ inaudible ], both a men’s and women’s bathroom down                                 

11 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

here for access to the pool people. Then, potentially either a spa space or a restaurant space or                                   
both.   There   is   another   pool   right   down   here. 

Again, this building has shifted slightly to the east. And then, this is the parking that would come                                   
and go with the office. This is the first level of office, your entranceway, some small office space                                   
and   lobby   space. 

This is the top of the deck, the top-level deck. This is your pedestrian connection that brings you                                   
over into the residential, very similar to these pedestrian connections. You are up above the                             
retail building at this point, coming into the first level of residential above the retailer, and then                                 
there is another level of residential above this. At this level, you have these patios at this space                                   
facing into this green area. Another green area here with a patio and some green space over                                 
here. Then, you see the single-loaded corridor running along the back side of the apartments                             
here. This is the location where the glass staircase that comes from Johnson. It will come up                                 
and   land   here   at   this   level. 

Mr. Brown : Could you point out all of the elevated walkway connections coming off the parking                               
deck? 

Mr. Matt Valenti : Sure. This one, this one, this one, and then really this is a connection. There is                                     
a connection here. This is the fitness center for the residential at this level, and then above it                                   
there, is a club room, [ inaudible ], and a little theater space and stuff like that above this. So,                                   
there   is   a   residential   patch   in   here   as   well. 

This is a separation here so that you can daylight down below, [ inaudible ] down below here, so                                 
there is actually a connection here as well. This is almost like walking straight into the building                                 
as   I   explained,   the   office.   Those   are   the   connections. 

This is the top level of the deck. You have got your restaurant spaces here. This is open to                                     
below so you will see the registration down below at this point. There is a connection for the                                   
residents to come through here along this terrace. You can come through here and down to the                                 
pool, or you can go out to the restaurants. The restaurants will have upper seating at this level.                                   
We have got a little more in the design than we need to, but we were trying to figure out                                       
programmatically how these buildings will work, especially with trying to figure out how the                           
service   will   connect   to   the   space   down   on   a   lower   level. 

These are the service elevators. These we would use as kitchen space, and this would be                               
dining space here and here. These would actually be elevators for the hotel itself. These are the                                 
service elevators here and here, and then the other hotel elevators here. And then we’re                             
showing   bathrooms   beside   here   for   those   ones. 

This is the next level up. You are no longer at grade with any parking. This should be a dotted                                       
line, but this is the top level of the residential above Building A, and then you are into the hotel                                       
rooms here, and you have got two more levels of [ inaudible ]. You have one more level of                                 
apartments,   actually.  

These are nothing other than the pieces for the residential, all of the vertical [ inaudible ] are the                                 
same. Vertical circulation is the same. But, the access stairwell and elevator and fire escape,                             
fire-exiting   stairwells   of   the   residential   would   be   here. 

12 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

This is just showing some pedestrian circulation. This one is showing the private pedestrian                           
elevation. This is for the residential connection. This is a massing study. The blue is all                               
residential. The crimson red is all retail, with restaurants down below in here. The orange is                               
hotel   and   restaurant   on   the   second   level,   and   then   the   green   is   office. 

These are some perspective elevations. Other than obviously the elevation above the main                         
retailers changed, except you have a little bit different view here just because the hotel is shifted                                 
over a little bit. The actual footprint of the office changed just a little bit to get the footprint off of a                                           
sanitary   easement   that   was   down   here. 

This shows the end of the hotel. The separation between the hotel and the office. This is looking                                   
at the office from the east. You have two levels of parking underneath the office building itself.                                 
This is Shawnee Mission Parkway looking west from the east, and again, parking and the office                               
above   it.   This   is   the   residential   above   Building   A. 

These should be all the same as we have shown in the past. This is the residential connection                                   
on   level   two.   Same   thing.   That   is   the   residential   connection   at   level   two. 

Unidentified :   Those   are   for   the   apartments   along   Roeland? 

Mr. Matt Valenti : This is the parking structure, the retail below, and the apartments along                             
Roeland. Residential connection. This would be the parking structure, the retail area and                         
apartments   above   for   that   [ inaudible ]   section. 

Unidentified :   You   are   looking   to   the   north   on   that   one? 

Mr. Matt Valenti : Yes. Looking to the north from the south. Your back is up against the office.                                   
This was, we kind of started developing this – I’m not sure if this is part of the [ inaudible ] that we                                         
had talked about. This is – How would you describe that coming off the retail out to Johnson,                                   
[ inaudible ]   make   that   connection? 

Mr. Shelton : Yes. It is kind of a shaded covered canopy that hosts bike racks and seating area.                                   
But, it makes a pedestrian connection to the main entrance of the larger retail building along                               
Johnson   Drive. 

Mr. Matt Valenti : That will be right here at ground level. It will come out from the first entrance,                                     
along the storefront, out to Johnson. These are the elevations, which we went over pretty well.                               
The only things that we did not look at that were different were, this is the office with the hotel in                                         
the background. This is the hotel and its relationship to the office. This has changed a little bit.                                   
Again,   you   can   see   the   office   is   now   looking   more   at   the   apartments   as   opposed   to   just   a   roof. 

Mr   Babcock :   If   the   office   does   not   go,   will   the   hotel   stay   put   or   will   it   still   move   even   farther? 

Mr.   Matt   Valenti :   No.   It   will   stay,   what’s   there   is   there.  

Mr. Tom Valenti : From that section of Shawnee Mission Parkway, because what you would be                             
seeing if you could see, would be the lowest level of parking. So, you are not going to see very                                       
much of it, if you see any of it. If you are looking to the left, if you are going east, they are going                                               
to   ticket   you. 

Mr   Matt   Valenti :   This   is   just   showing   underground   [ inaudible ]. 

13 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

Mr   Shelton :   Do   you   all   have   any   questions   for   us   about   the   design,   at   this   point? 

Mr. Braden : How are we treating the corner of Johnson Drive and Roe? From your elevations I                                 
know this is elevation looked to me like a warehouse. I am just wondering with the anticipated                                 
true   appearance   will   be   of   that   corner? 

Mr. Shelton : It is an art screen wall that would have the signage. Monument style signage                               
stating   the   name   of   the   place. 

Mr. Braden : But, then the Walmart building behind that, how is that being treated, because that                               
is   visible   above   that? 

Mr.   Matt   Valenti :   This   wall   is   actually   the   height   of   the   Walmart. 

Mr.   Braden :   Do   we   have   an   elevation   of   that? 

Mr. Matt Valenti : It is hard to tell, just because it is not three dimensional, but let’s look at the top                                         
drawing. This is a single loading corridor behind, of the residential. Then where this line is right                                 
here, is the top of Walmart. The trucks go behind this wall. So, this wall comes out from Johnson                                     
and curves around. This is a kind of rounded wall. Because it is unique, it is kind of hard to                                       
picture   it.   But,   this   is   the   actual   height   of   the   Walmart   building. 

Mr. Braden : I am looking at that wall right there and that whole façade looks like, especially                                 
above   the   top   of   Walmart,   would   say   it   just   looks   like   a   flat   wall. 

Mr.   Thomas   Valenti :   You   are   not   going   to   see   it   from   the   street   level. 

Mr. Matt Valenti : That is the tricky thing about these elevations. That wall is actually facing the                                 
service   parking   lot.   So,   it   is   a   good   couple   hundred   feet   away.  

Unidentified : I think you are going to see it when you’re driving to the west, off of Shawnee                                   
Mission   Parkway. 

Mr.   Matt   Valenti :   You   are   not   going   to   see   it   along   the   road. 

Mr. Brown : All right. But, you will see it from a distance. The question is, can you dress it up, as                                         
in   some   kind   of   composite   panel?  

[ Overlapping   comments .] 

Mr.   Brown :   It   doesn’t   have   to   be   plain,   does   it? 

Mr.   Matt   Valenti :   No.   It   doesn’t. 

Mr. Brown : So, there is something that can be done about making it more attractive than just a                                   
single   color   wall. 

Mr. Matt Valenti : Yes. Breaking it up with other colors. Yes. Switching the panels, or something.                               
One of the things that we were talking about on the plane coming out here is perhaps putting                                   
some glass up at the top of that, so that you let natural light into that. You do not want people                                         
looking   out   onto   the   Walmart,   quite   frankly.   But,   if   you   put   the   windows   up   high. 

Mr.   Brown :   Like   a   transom   or   something? 

14 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

Mr. Matt Valenti : Sort of. Yes. That might help that hallway. It will give a better articulation as you                                     
are heading west along Shawnee Mission Parkway. But, you are right. It does not need to look                                 
plain.   We   could   dress   it   up. 

Mr. Brown : Also, the sun is going to come up on that first thing in the morning. There is not any                                         
reason why you should not try to take advantage of that with your design, to make it kind of pop                                       
in   the   morning   when   people   are   driving   to   work. 

Mr. Braden : I have two other concerns. One is the entrance into the public space. Can we look                                   
at those? Unless there is signage telling me it is back there, a little more inviting entrance - I do                                       
not   know   how   much   of   the   public   would   really   utilize   that   space. 

Mr. Shelton : Could you go to the vignettes that show corner of Johnson and Roeland and then                                 
the intersection of Martway and Roeland? They are going to be pretty grand features that really                               
invite you in. In these locations there are several signifiers. We use these opportunities as                             
entrances into the site to break up the massing of the residential. At that point the corridor                                 
becomes glazing. In this case, it where the pedestrian bridges are coming over from the garage.                               
The pedestrian links are coming on the back side of this glass and linking up with this kind of                                     
lobby condition. It is all glass from all three floors, so it will glow at night. It frames a large                                       
breezeway into the development. There will be restaurant uses on both sides, and the shift in                               
ground plan also goes from concrete paving to kind of a wooden boardwalk plank right there.                               
So, that entrance where Martway comes into the retail parking is very celebrated. And then, the                               
one at Johnson and Roeland Drive is here. So, the corner building to the right faces the                                 
intersection and then subtly offsets another moment where we are breaking up the massing of                             
the residential block and creates another large opening into that parkway that is between the                             
parking garage and the mixed use. Again, glass, highly transparent, no shift in ground surface.                             
In this case, you will really be able to see through and see the depth of that green space, trees,                                       
sculpture, unique lighting, that kind of thing. These are very celebrated. There is also, at the                               
entry to the upper level of the parking garages, a kind of celebrated vehicular entry, as well as                                   
now   added   pedestrian   entry   to   the   terrace   of   the   hotel. 

Mr. Braden : With the preliminary plan, we did not get into the detail that we will get into with the                                       
final plan. Matt, can you also show the similar celebrated entry off Johnson near Roeland? I                               
thought   you   were   showing   Martway. 

Mr. Shelton : The entry to the larger retail, we had covered earlier with that express overhead                               
canopy which is on PDPA014. That is both now a celebrated pedestrian entry as well as a                                 
vehicular entry. It is hard to see it in 2D but when you do the 3D ones, when we have the                                         
renderings done, this is all open. Because of this, you are seeing the cladding with the parking                                 
in   the   background,   but   this   is   all   open   back   to   green   space   and   this   is   all   [ inaudible ]. 

Mr.   Braden :   Is   it   still   pretty   similar   to   the   renderings   in   the   brochure? 

Mr.   Matt   Valenti :   Yes.   It   is   the   same.   We   are   not   changing   it   at   all. 

Mr.   Braden    So,   it   is   pretty   open. 

15 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

Mr. Matt Valenti Yes. All of this was open and space at the corner of Johnson and Roeland, and                                     
[ inaudible ] boardwalk, [ inaudible ] probably out here on the edge of the street connects to the                             
sidewalk   right   up   along   Johnson,   and   you   can   actually   take   that   right   into   there. 

Mr. Matt Valenti : If it would help to see some of the renderings, we can go on line very easily                                       
and   show   you. 

Mr. Braden : I know that is for a final site. I was just saying there is nothing to look at, and I would                                             
like   to   see   in   more   detail   at   the   final 

Mr.   Matt   Valenti :   I   think   that   concludes   our   remarks. 

Chairman Lee : At this time, we will open up the public hearing. Once again, I will remind                                 
everyone who wants to speak either for or against the application, to limit themselves to three                               
minutes and to direct all your questions to the Chair. With that said the public hearing is now                                   
open.   Please   step   forward   and   introduce   yourself. 

Ms. Ryan : My name is Wanda Ryan. I own the building at 4800 Johnson Drive which is directly                                   
across from the big retail building. So, I appreciate your concerns about what that building looks                               
like from Johnson Drive. They said precast. Well, to me, precast can be a number of things, but                                   
I am sure the other word was concrete. I think that material needs to be addressed because it is                                     
really – if we looked at those graphic illustrations, it was a tall spot below the steps. I do not                                       
know where the back of that building is, Building A. Where the trucks will go and load and where                                     
the dumpsters are? My other question would be where do the trucks enter to drop off the                                 
merchandise   for   the   large   retail   space? 

The third question will be, we are talking about green space and trees along Johnson Drive. But,                                 
as I drove along Johnson Drive in the new development where Five Guys are, those trees were                                 
set within a three square foot metal grate and concrete everywhere else. There is no way those                                 
trees are going to survive. Along Johnson Drive, I would like to see the green space so that the                                     
trees   have   a   way   of   surviving,   having   a   way   to   get   water   into   those   roots.   Thank   you. 

Ms. Porro : My name is Barb Porro, 4982 W 60th Terrace, and I have some questions about the                                   
walkway. I am not quite sure what the destination of the walkway is. Is it towards the east or                                     
towards the west? Is it a slope or is it stairways? In either case, where are the people that are                                       
going to use the walkway coming from? Is it meant for the residents to come down into the                                   
whole area, or is it meant for people, pedestrians to go up into areas. If it is meant for people to                                         
go up, where are those people parking? Where are they coming from? Are they being dropped                               
off   by   buses?   It   just   all   seems   confusing. 

The other question is about for people that are not residents of all these apartment units, is it                                   
going to be in any way walkable for people that just want to walk, or are we going to be met                                         
with, you can’t get through here because it’s an apartment, or you can’t get through? So, there                                 
are these green spaces, and as a neighborhood, we are interested in what is going on in this. I                                     
live   right   nearby   and   I   walk   and   I   would   like   kind   of   a   walkability   myself. 

Those are my questions, but my general objection has always been to the Walmart, but now                               
especially to the 24 hours of it. I am not sure if this is the correct place to voice that concern.                                         
Way back when it was Mission Mall, it was closed at 10:30 p.m., and there are a lot of                                     

16 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

residential, and now there is going to be even more residential with all these apartments above                               
and below. The idea of a 24-hour Walmart is not very compatible with residential, as far as I can                                     
see. It just sort of popped up all of a sudden. In all the talks that we have had up until the last                                             
meeting that we had at Sylvester Powell, there was never any mention of Walmart being 24                               
hours. Now, it is being almost accepted. I even asked one of the council members, where did                                 
this come from? Even the council member did not know. It is a huge concern to me. As a                                     
resident I just do not want to live near a 24-hour Walmart, and I cannot imagine anybody living                                   
above   it   or   around   it   would   want   to   live   there   either.   Thank   you. 

Chairman Lee : At this point we will close the public hearing. We will see if we can get your                                     
questions   answered. 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : The first one is regarding the trucks. This is Roe. So, this is the large                                   
retailer. This is the loading area. The trucks will come in and they will back up. So, they will be                                       
along   Roe. 

With respect to the green spaces. The green spaces and the walking areas will be open to the                                   
public along Roeland, along Johnson, and within the area between the parking garage and the                             
building along Roe and Johnson. This area here. That will all be open to the public. Now, what                                   
will   not   be   open   to   the   public   would   be   the   green   areas   that   will   be   serving   these   apartments.  

Mr. Shelton : And those green areas, they’re not green areas that you’re walking on anyway.                             
Those   are   patio   space   with   some   green   around   it.   So,   it’s   not   useable   green   space. 

Unidentified :   She   was   also   asking   about   the   back   of   the   building,   where   is   it?   It’s   on   Roe. 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : Yes, the back of the building is on Roe, right along here. The walkability,                                 
time.   That   is   up   to   Walmart.   I   do   not   have   any   control   over   that. 

Unidentified : I think her other question was the walkability of it and that is the whole idea of the                                     
project? 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : Yes. We are adding an incredible amount of sidewalk and this boardwalk                             
area, not only around the project but throughout the project. It contemplates a continuation of                             
the Rock Creek trail both on the perimeter of Roeland and Johnson, and then through our                               
common   area   between   the   parking   garage   and   the   buildings   along   Roeland   and   Johnson. 

Mr. Brown : Just to clarify, you are speaking of the public access spaces. You are not going to be                                     
able   to   go   up   and   walk   through   the   residential   hallways. 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : No. That was another question I think Barbara had asked. If I am wrong,                                 
Barbara, you correct me. Only residents will be able to go in that glass stairway. They will need                                   
a card key to get in, and they will also need a card key to get into the building, so we do not                                             
have a situation where someone could sneak in. We have got to provide a safe and secure                                 
environment   for   our   residents. 

Unidentified :   But,   it   is   only   the   residents   on   Roeland   Drive? 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : It would only be the residents that would be above the Walmart building.                               
Barbara, what I am talking about earlier, what Matt was showing earlier was the glass - this is                                   

17 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

Johnson, so it is that glass stairwell, ramp, whatever it is, that is going here, to the level above                                     
Walmart,   and   then   there   is   a   lobby   here. 

Ms.   Porro :   I   see.   Thank   you. 

Mr. Brown : A question also came up about the precast wall there to the right of the stairs and                                     
below the stairs. I was thinking about the same thing. I should have said something earlier. That                                 
seemed like another opportunity for either a nice urban mosaic to be worked into the precast or                                 
something attached to it that is more artistic and gives it that urban pedestrian engaging feel of                                 
some kind. I would hate to pass on the opportunity to do something creative rather than just                                 
have   a   massive   wall   of   concrete. 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : It will be precast, but they are able to do some really nice things with                                   
precast   now.   We   will   address   that   with   the   final. 

Mr. Brown : You guys can get some of your creative thinkers on something urban and engaging                               
there.   I   think   that   could   be   what   has   to   be. 

Mr. Troppito : There were a questions about the survivability of trees and plants in general, and                               
also   the   24   hour   Walmart.  

Mr. Thomas Valenti : Most of those trees are on our property. So, we are going to plant them                                   
properly so that they thrive and survive. I know the condition that was referred to about the Five                                   
Guys,   and   it   is   unfortunate. 

Mr.   Troppito :   So,   you   are   saying   that   is   not   analogous   to   here? 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : No. For instance, those trees within the pocket park that line the parking                               
garage, we intend for those to grow and to shield that garage. What we did mention at previous                                   
planning commission meetings, we did not really mention it much tonight, is that screen also                             
prevents lights shining into the apartments and also shining at the people that are sitting at the                                 
restaurants   outside   or   people   in   the   park. 

Ms. Dukelow : I am just going to say that I think this approach blends a sense of permanence                                   
and quality to Building A that I have not seen yet. So, I am really pleased to see this. I think no                                           
matter what is there, or how long it is there, and if there is another opportunity, it enriches that                                     
space.   It   also   helps   that   portion   of   the   site   participate   and   be   more   in      -  

[Overlapping   comments.]  

Mr. Thomas Valenti : It is integrated. The rendering on the very first page, you get a little sense of                                     
it. I think that building is going to look great. There are not too many places with a Walmart                                     
below and apartments above. There are a few. So, this will be kind of special, and I think it will                                       
look   really   nice. 

Ms. Dukelow : I think that is accurate. I do share the concerns that have been expressed with                                 
regards to, of course, Johnson Drive, but I will say that that is the number one staff                                 
recommendation, is that the Johnson Drive corridor guidelines will apply to these frontages. And                           
that   is   a   document   that   is   available   for   everyone.  

18 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

Another thing I want to mention is that I too am familiar with another location, Fort Totten                                 
Square, which perhaps you are familiar with, in DC. That is a very attractive example which is                                 
similar to this, and do not know if you are familiar with that, and I do not know how successful.                                       
Very attractive. They are completely wrapped around, and as we discussed, I too have quite a                               
bit of concern about the Roe Avenue elevation, and if you think you can rent more apartments, I                                   
think   it   would   look   really   great   if   you   would   consider   putting   some   along   that   side   as   well. 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : The two issues that we have got to deal with, number one, we decided not                                   
to put them too close to where the trucks are coming in. The residential building is backed off a                                     
bit from the corner of Roe along Johnson, and putting it along Roe, they would be hearing trucks                                   
backing up and beeping during the night and there would be garbage containers back there.                             
That was the concern. I think that we can address it, I hope. Maybe not to the extent that you                                       
are suggesting, but some of the things that James was suggesting earlier about doing                           
something decorative that is attractive, not only on that wall but also on the wall at the back end                                     
of the corridor for the apartments. Both having an attractive look to the precast along that wall                                 
on Roe, and also when you are coming westbound on Shawnee Mission Parkway, something                           
that   looks   good.   We   cannot   make   it   too   shiny,   because   then   people   will   say   you   are   blinding   us. 

Ms. Dukelow : I mean, I know we do not want to get down in the weeds on this now, but certainly                                         
that will be a focus we will be interested in, because we have neighbors to our east as well. The                                       
other item I wanted to mention was, I know we have talked extensively about the glass staircase                                 
along Johnson Drive, and I know we have talked about the entrance to the pedestrian space                               
there along Johnson Drive. I also know that we have talked in the past about considering ways                                 
to penetrate the box along Johnson Drive, and if that means that the shoppers go into a                                 
common lobby that ties in with the other entrance, or however that works, there are some good                                 
examples   that   I   think   we   would   benefit   from   pursuing   a   design   solution. 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : We tried to start to address that. Josh had mentioned that canopy that                               
comes out to Johnson and carry that into the main lobby, so we can address that further with                                   
you. 

Ms.   Dukelow :   At   this   point,   I   believe   it   does   not   penetrate   the   box? 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : It does not penetrate the box until you get to the first main entrance to the                                     
north of that box. Part of the problem is being secure from the cash wraps, and they want to                                     
have a one controlled area because otherwise, if you have too great a distance, there is a lot of                                     
pilfering. 

Mr.   Babcock :   This   is   going   to   have   a   garden   center? 

Mr.   Thomas   Valenti :   Yes.   It   has   a   garden   center. 

Mr. Babcock : Every Walmart that I have seen has an entrance to a garden center separate from                                 
the   main   area. 

Mr.   Thomas   Valenti :   Yes.   Most   them   with   a   separate   cash   wrap. 

19 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

Ms. Dukelow : As I mentioned in September, Natural Grocers also has a solution whereby they                             
are bringing two entrances together. Both of those access points feed into one main entrance                             
into   the   retail   environment. 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : I agree that we should work on that. I just wanted to say, I do not think we                                         
are   going   to   get   an   entrance   right   on   Johnson   directly   into   the   building. 

Ms.   Dukelow :   I   understand   that.   That   is   all   I   have,   Mr.   Chairman.   Thank   you. 

Mr. Troppito : Questions of staff, commissioners aren’t really fully aware of staff’s qualifications                         
for the recommendations that they have made to us for tonight. I have some questions for both                                 
of you. Not meaning to embarrass you, but I am going to ask them anyway. Danielle, is it true                                     
that you have twelve years of experience in city planning and development, a Master’s of                             
Science degree in Urban and Regional Planning, that you have earned a certificate as a                             
certified   comprehensive   planner   from   the   American   Planning   Association? 

Ms.   Murray :   That   is   true,   and   available   on   my   LinkedIn   account. 

Mr. Troppito : We have research capabilities. All right. Is there any new information that has been                               
presented since the staff report for this project was prepared that would cause the planning staff                               
to make any changes, amendments or additions to the staff report before us for consideration                             
tonight? 

Ms.   Murray :   No,   there   is   not. 

Mr.   Troppito :   Thank   you.   Pete,   how   many   years   in   practice   of   municipal   real   estate? 

Mr.   Heaven :   About   37. 

Mr. Troppito : Is it correct that among other professional distinctions, you were named by the                             
Kansas City, Kansas, Litigation – Land Use and Zoning Lawyer of the Year by Best Lawyers in                                 
2012? 

Mr.   Heaven :   That’s   what   I   heard. 

Mr. Troppito : Is it correct that you are co-editor of the Kansas Bar Association’s Real Estate                               
Handbook, and that you were selected as Best Lawyers Real Estate Lawyer of the Year for                               
Eastern   Kansas   in   2010? 

Mr.   Heaven :   I   think   that’s   right. 

Mr. Troppito : Based on your review of this case before us, is it your informed legal opinion that                                   
this   case   complies   with   the   intent   of   the   City’s   MXD   zoning   requirements? 

Mr.   Heaven :   That   is   my   opinion.   Yes. 

Mr Babcock : One more question. Could you please quote the section that pertains in this case?                               
The number? And, the reason why I say this is there has been a lot of confusion as far as which                                         
section   it   refers. 

Mr.   Heaven :   I   am   going   to   defer   to   Danielle.   I   did   not   bring   my   code   with   me. 

Ms.   Murray :   It’s   410.410. 

20 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

Mr   Babcock :   Thank   you.   I   knew   the   answer.   I   just   wanted   to   make   sure. 

Mr.   Heaven :   Yes.   Correct,   410.410 

Mr. Davidson : I have been listening tonight, and everyone did a good job explaining all the                               
details of how all the different structures lay out. Very good at looking at 2D conventional                               
drawings, and thinking the 3D in my mind. The issues that I am having is with the apartments                                   
that were added to the top of Walmart, and the elevations is very, very hard to do with line                                     
drawings and sketch drawings, of how the feel of this development is going to look from                               
Shawnee Mission Parkway and from Roeland Boulevard and Johnson Drive, from what we have                           
been shown. The main concern of that is the added apartments on top of Building A and what it                                     
would look like from Shawnee Mission Parkway. I could not follow what you guys talked about                               
as far as the screening, if there is screening there, because yes, they are all front-loaded                               
finished studio apartments with single load on the back side. We will be able to see some of that                                     
as   you   are   going   westbound   on   Shawnee   Mission   Parkway.   Am   I   correct? 

Mr.   Matt   Valenti :   Yes. 

Mr. Davidson : Okay. With the screening that Jim talked about, I’m thinking, you know how one                               
story commercial buildings will have HVAC units up on top of the building, they want to screen it                                   
and they use engineered steel panels to hide those units. I don’t know what that is going to look                                     
like. I am guessing it is going to look like some apartments up on top of a major retailer, and I                                         
don’t think it could look very good. Yes, I know that Josh is a very good architect, and he knows                                       
all   the   materials   that   he   can   play   with   to   make   it   look   its   best.   That   is   a   concern   of   ours. 

Another concern is, yes, precast concrete, standing seam, whatever, they can be textured, or                           
whatever, but it can be painted, masonry type latex. But, I am concerned that the materials and                                 
the relationship to the rest of the urban style. We all know what the major retailer stores look like                                     
in general, and then you are trying to throw in urban style materials with that. I know Josh is                                     
very   good   with   his   designs,   but   I   am   very   concerned   about   how   those   things   will   work   together. 

I also understand you guys just did line drawings just for where you are at on the project. I need                                       
a lot more detail because it could be awesome design, but as far as materials and how they are                                     
used, it could look like, let’s just say a stainless steel fascia, okay? That is not the best term I                                       
can come up with obviously, but that is my concerns as far as the compatibility of all the                                   
materials working together with Building A. Everything else, it is hard again, to see it without                               
having actual materials. I have seen the pictures of styles of materials that you are looking at                                 
using.   It   is   still   just   a   concern   of   mine.   The   final   design   and   drawings. 

Mr. Thomas Valenti : We would address those with the final presentation. You are absolutely                           
right. It is so difficult. You have got some experience so you can see it better than others, but I                                       
know it is hard to understand what is happening, and especially with respect to the look and the                                   
feel of the materials and the inter-relationship with the residential area above the retail area and                               
making sure that is all compatible. While I was not familiar, I was born in Brooklyn, so Fort                                   
Totten to me is in New Jersey, but I have seen the pictures of that. They did a very good job,                                         
and I think we will do an equally good job if not better. But, we will provide that all with the final                                           
submission. 

21 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

Mr. Davidson : I just wanted to say those are concerns of mine, so I wanted them presented                                 
tonight. 

Mr. Bruce : Mr. Chairman, I have a question for Pete. Section 410.340.D.2, has that also been                               
complied   with? 

Mr.   Heaven :   It   has. 

Mr. Braden : One last very brief question, a follow-up on that, was on the apartments that are                                 
facing Roeland Drive and Johnson Drive. With the [ inaudible ] of the various windows and things,                             
it looks very urban and modern. I have seen that trend around town, and I think it can be done                                       
very well, and it can be done very poorly. Especially materials. There is set of apartments, I think                                   
it is on Madison; I can’t remember; it’s just west of the Plaza. It has the same concept, but looks                                       
very,   very   cheap. 

Mr.   Thomas   Valenti :   The   one   right,   as   you’re   going   up   the   hill,   on   the   righthand   side? 

Mr.   Braden :   Right.   I   don’t   want   it   to   end   up   looking   like   that. 

Mr.   Thomas   Valenti :   Neither   do   I. 

Mr. Babcock : Okay. I am going to ask the question. I am sorry, he kind of opened a box of                                       
worms when he asked you that last question. Why has section 410.340 been met in your eyes?                                 
D2   of   section   410.340? 

Mr. Heaven : If you find that this plan is in the spirit and intent of MXD, then the regulations for a                                         
large   superstore   or   a   floor   plate   exceeding   50,000   square   feet   has   been   met. 

Mr. Babcock : How is that? And you and I have discussed this a lot. There are people out here                                     
that   I   am   sure   do   not   get   that   nuance.   Could   you   explain   that   further? 

Mr. Heaven : It is really not very confusing. What it says in the East Gateway Design District that                                   
we cannot have a retail store with a greater footprint than 50,000 square feet. Obviously, a                               
supercenter is larger than that. So, you start first with the prohibition against anything over                             
50,000 square feet. Then, you are given discretion as planning commissioners to decide that if a                               
building larger than that is incorporated into a mixed use development and it meets the spirit                               
and intent of MXD, you may approve it, even though it is larger than 50,000 square feet. It is just                                       
that   simple. 

Mr. Babcock : Would I be correct in further saying that 410.410 does not have a square foot                                 
limitation? 

Mr.   Heaven :   That   is   correct. 

Mr.   Troppito :   Do   we   have   a   motion? 

Mr. Troppito moved and Mr. Babcock seconded the following motion: that following review                         
and due consideration of, and assurances by the city planning staff and legal counsel that the                               
Preliminary Site Development Plan for Case #16-03 is in compliance with the overall spirit and                             
intent of the city’s MXD zoning district code requirements as set forth in Mission, kansas zoning                               

22 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

code; that the Planning Commission recommend approval of Case #16-03 the Gateway to the                           
City   Council,   with   the   following   staff   recommended   conditions: 

1. The entire development shall be subject to the recommendations of the Design                       
Guidelines for the Johnson Drive Corridor, including frontages along Johnson Drive,                     
Shawnee Mission Pkwy, Roe Avenue, and Roeland Drive. Plans submitted for Final                       
Plan Review shall comply with said Design Guidelines as well as any more restrictive                           
requirements within the “MXD” zoning regulations or as established by the rezoning                       
stipulations.   (Rezoning-1) 

2. The street level of all buildings along public right-of-way shall incorporate window glazing                         
consistent with the Design Guidelines for the Johnson Drive Corridor. Flat, blank                       
(windowless and un-modulated) or false windows shall be prohibited along public                     
right-of-way.   (Rezoning-2) 

3. Entrances should be oriented to engage the primary public street. Large buildings that                         
front multiple streets should provide multiple entrances and provide entrances                   
convenient to parking areas. Provide a public entrance for Building A along Johnson                         
Drive.   (Comments   9.22.15   &   7.5.16) 

4. The appearance of Building “A” facing the intersection of Roe Ave. and Johnson Drive                           
shall have a signature design and shall be oriented to provide a visual appearance                           
consistent   with   the   remainder   of   the   development.   (Rezoning-9) 

5. Provide additional massing studies/views to demonstrate how the Building “A” truck                     
loading area will be screened from view from Roe Avenue. Any visible wall elevations                           
along Roe Ave should be finished with the same architectural appearance and detailing                         
as the remainder of the structure visible from Johnson Drive and Shawnee Mission                         
Pkwy.   (Comments   9.22.15   &   7.5.16) 

6. Provide additional massing studies/views to demonstrate how the development design                   
will create a gateway into the community at the Johnson Drive/Roe Avenue intersection.                         
(Comments   9.22.15   &   7.5.16) 

7. The exterior of the parking structure visible from public right-of-way shall be finished with                           
a façade treatment consistent with the architectural character of the entire development.                       
(Rezoning-10) 

8. Plans need to demonstrate the visibility of the upper deck of the parking structure from                             
Shawnee Mission Parkway and Roeland Drive. Screening may be required in various                       
locations to reduce views of the parking deck. Unscreened views of the Building “A”                           
rooftop   will   be   acceptable   if   designed   as   a   green   roof.   (Comments   9.22.15   &   7.5.16) 

9. Plans need to demonstrate how the appearance of the upper deck of the parking                           
structure and the rooftops of surrounding buildings will be enhanced for the views from                           
the residential buildings “C”,”D”,”E”, and “B”. HVAC units, antennas, skylights, exhaust                     
fans/vents or other similar elements should be screened from view of these buildings                         
and   the   public   streets.   (Comments   9.22.15   &   7.5.16) 

23 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

10. A list of special conditions / standards for this development shall be included within an                             
Architectural Standards / Tenant Criteria Booklet. The booklet shall include a list of                         
architectural features, such as awnings, balconies, bay windows etc., that may be                       
permitted to encroach the public sidewalk and also include the maximum distance of                         
encroachment.   (Rezoning-13) 

11. Unique and creative signage shall be permitted within the development. Sign standards                       
shall be provided in the Architectural Standards / Tenant Criteria Booklet, and shall be                           
reviewed for approval by the Planning Commission with Final Plan Review.                     
(Rezoning-14) 

12. Any outdoor seating areas proposed within public right-of-way shall be identified and                       
reviewed   with   the   Final   Plan   Review.   (Rezoning-12) 

13. Lighting within the site shall be consistent with the architectural and pedestrian character                         
of the development. Lighting on the site shall be directed away or screened from                           
existing   residential   properties.   (Rezoning-15) 

14. Final plans will need to demonstrate safe accommodations for multi-modal Rock Creek                       
Trail traffic from the current terminus of the trail along Roeland Drive to Roeland Park.                             
(Rezoning-18)  

15. A continuous public sidewalk shall be provided along Roeland Drive, Johnson Drive, and                         
Roe Avenue. The Roe Avenue sidewalk shall link sidewalks at the intersection of                         
Johnson Drive with a sidewalk extending under Shawnee Mission Pkwy. Sidewalk                     
improvements shall include pedestrian connections/crosswalks across adjacent             
intersections. These improvements shall be designed to meet ADA and MUTCD criteria                       
and provide functional pedestrian connections to the Rock Creek Trail, transit center,                       
transit   stops,   and   across   Shawnee   Mission   Parkway   (Zoning   &   GBA) 

16. Street trees should be planted between the curb and walking path of the sidewalk thus                             
providing a more pleasant pedestrian experience separated from traffic. Minimum                   
sidewalk width along Johnson Drive is an unobstructed walking surface of 8’ and 5’                           
unobstructed width along Roeland Drive. Minimum widths may need to be increased to                         
accommodate additional features such as trail connections or building entrances.                   
Sidewalks and on-street parking should be located in the public right-of-way. Dedication                       
of right-of-way should be resolved with the final plat or by separate document.                         
(Comments   9.22.15   &   7.5.2016) 

17. Several missing links in pedestrian circulation need to be addressed. Ensure                     
connections from all drives and public sidewalks to adjacent buildings. (Comments                     
9.22.15   &   7.5.16) 

18. Street right-of-way, off-site traffic improvements, permitted points of access, pedestrian                   
connectivity, etc. shall be determined prior to approval of a replat and final development                           
plan for the subject property and shall be consistent with the Design Guidelines for the                             
Johnson   Drive   Corridor   and   the   East   Gateway   Streetscape   Standards.   (Rezoning-3   &   4) 

24 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

19. The developer shall be responsible for streetscape improvements along perimeter                   
roadways   and   intersections.(Rezoning-5) 

20. The developer shall be responsible for implementation of recommended storm water and                       
other utility improvements unless otherwise described in a development agreement with                     
the City of Mission. Required easements shall be coordinated with the City and other                           
utility providers and identified with the final plat and final development plan for the                           
property.   (Rezoning-6) 

21. A utility and infrastructure plan shall be submitted prior to approval of the development                           
plan.   (Rezoning-7) 

22. Buildings submitted for Final Plan review shall be designed in accordance with the                         
requirements of city staff, city consultants, and other utility providers to maintain                       
adequate   clearance   from   storm   water   structures   and   other   utilities.   (Rezoning-8) 

23. The City of Mission reserves the right to impose time limits on large vehicle deliveries to                               
the   site.   (Rezoning-17) 

24. The City of Mission reserves the right to limit access to a right-in /right-out configuration                             
for vehicular entrances along Roe Ave and the southernmost access point along                       
Roeland   Drive.   (Rezoning-19&20) 

25. Provide additional detail at final site plan regarding vehicle turning accommodations,                     
using the appropriate design vehicles previously identified, for the retail dock area along                         
Roe Avenue, emergency access for the Fire District at each access drive and along all                             
primary internal service routes, school bus/tour bus circulation and parking, and other                       
service   delivery   routes   on   the   interior   of   the   site.   (GBA) 

26. A final traffic study and final stormwater drainage design plan must be submitted for                           
review with the final site plan. The appropriate text, maps, drawings and tables must be                             
included.   (GBA) 

27. Staff reserves the right to provide additional comments or stipulations on development                       
plans   until   all   traffic   or   storm   drainage   related   concerns   have   been   addressed.   (GBA) 

28. No construction or building permits will be issued until construction phasing is agreed to                           
by the City and the Developer in an approved Development Agreement. (City Council                         
11-18-15) 

The   vote   on   the   motion   was   taken,   (9-0).    The   motion   carried .  

Staff   Update 

Staff   provided   an   update   on   sign   inventory,   safe   routes   to   school,   and   the   comprehensive   plan. 

ADJOURNMENT 

With no other agenda items, Mr. Babcock moved and Ms Dukelow seconded a motion to                               
adjourn.       (Vote   was   unanimous).      The    motion   carried .   The   meeting   adjourned   at   8:58      P.M. 

   

25 



 
MINUTES   OF   THE   PLANNING   COMMISSION   MEETING 

July   25,   2016 -DRAFT 
 
 

 

   _________________________________ 
Mike   Lee,   Chair 

   ATTEST:     
  
______________________________   
Nora   Tripp,   Secretary 

26 



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
Planning Commission Meeting July 25, 2016 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO.: 3 
 
PROJECT NUMBER / TITLE: Application # 1603 
 
REQUEST: Revised Preliminary Site Development Plan for The 

Gateway Development 
 
LOCATION: Property located on the south side of Johnson Drive 

between Roeland Dr, Shawnee Mission Pkwy, and 
Roe Ave 

 
APPLICANT: Korb Maxwell, Polsinelli PC 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Aryeh Realty LLC 

6201 College Blvd, Ste 500  
Overland Park, KS  66211 

 
STAFF CONTACT: Danielle 
Murray 
 
ADVERTISEMENT:   June 28, 
2016The Legal Record newspaper 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:   Planning 
Commission meeting, July 25, 2016 

 
Property Information: 
The subject property is the site of the 
former Mission Mall and is zoned 
Planned Mixed Use District “MXD”. 
Per the City’s Municipal Code, “This 
district is intended to encourage a 
variety of land uses in closer proximity 
to one another than would be possible 
with more conventional zoning districts, 
and to encourage building 
configurations that create a distinctive 
and memorable sense of place. 
Developments in this district are 
allowed and expected to have a 
mixture of residential, office and retail 
uses, along with public spaces, 

1 



entertainment uses and other specialty facilities that are compatible in both character 
and function. Developments are also expected to utilize shared parking facilities linked 
to multiple buildings and uses by an attractive and logical pedestrian network that 
places more emphasis on the quality of the pedestrian experience than is generally 
found in typical suburban development.  Buildings are intended to be primarily 
multistory structures with differing uses organized vertically rather than the horizontal 
separation of uses that commonly results from conventional zoning districts” (Section 
410.410).  The property is also subject to the Mission, Kansas  Design Guidelines  for the 
Johnson Drive Corridor. 
 
Surrounding properties are zoned and developed as follows: 
North:Roeland Park “OB” Office Building Districtsmall offices, “PUB” Public 
Servicesvacant, and “MXD” Mixed Use Districtvacant 
West: Mission “RP3” Planned Townhome DistrictRoeland Court Townhomes, “MS2” 
Main Street District 2vacant, restaurant, “R1” Single Family Residential 
Districtdetached dwelling units,  
South: Mission “RP6” Planned High Rise Apartment Districtvacant “C1” Restricted 
Business Districtbank, “CO” Office Building Districtdentist and other office uses. 
East: Fairway ”R1” Single Family Residential Districtdetached dwelling units. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Recommendation for this area:  
The Comprehensive Plan indicates this area is appropriate for Mixed Use HighDensity 
to be composed of a pedestrian friendly mix of neighborhood and community office 
uses, retailcommercial and servicecommercial uses, institutional, civic, and medium to 
high density residential. 
 
Project Background: 
In 2005 The Cameron Group, LLC, a development company from East Syracuse, New 
York, purchased the Mission Mall property with plans to build a mixeduse development 
on the site. In 2006 the Planning Commission reviewed and approved the rezoning and 
preliminary site plan for the redevelopment of the subject property for urban 
development composed of retail, office, hotel, restaurant, and residential uses 
(Ordinance #1203).  Since the “MXD” zoning and preliminary site plan was first 
approved the project has evolved through several revisions reflected in revised plans 
presented to the Planning Commission and City Council in 2007, 2008, 2012 and 
December 2015.  Each of these plan approvals included a range of stipulations for site 
development issues, and requirements for additional details to be provided with final 
plan reviews.   
 
At this time the applicant is again requesting a revised preliminary site plan approval for 
the entire development.  The applicant intends to proceed to file a final site development 
plan and to begin construction of the entire project as a single phase. 
 
The plan approved in 2012 included a linear public plaza, or esplanade, along Roeland 
Drive and a four story parking structure directly connected to upper level retail and 
surrounding buildings as well as Shawnee Mission Parkway.  These features were 
removed in 2015, and the parking structure converted to 3 stories with no below grade 

2 



levels.  A hotel was added in 2015 to replace the retail and service uses at the south 
side of the site.  The 2016 proposed plan retains the features of the 2015 plan and adds 
an additional two floors of apartments to the north, west, and south perimeter of building 
“A” and an exterior stairway along Johnson Drive.  Building “A” also contains a small 
amount of green roof or planted roof on these same sides.  The development floor area 
has been increased by 86,691 square feet, and the amount of parking has been 
reduced by 31 stalls. 
 
Plan Review  
The applicant is proposing a revised site plan maintaining the same perimeter footprint 
and character with buildings lining all four surrounding streets.  The plan identifies six 
buildings throughout the site surrounding a partially freestanding three level interior 
parking garage.  Buildings “A”,”B”,“C”, “D” and “E” along Roeland Drive and Johnson 
Drive will contain a horizontal and vertical mix of users including retail and residential in 
47 floors.  Building “F” is designated for 6 floors of office use.  Building “A” remains 
consistent with previous plans for a large single retailer on the ground floor however, 
now with two floors of apartments wrapped above its north, west, and south roof 
perimeter.  The total floor area of this version has been increased from 576,124 square 
feet to 662,815 square feet.  In addition, the total number of parking spaces has been 
reduced slightly.   
 
The preliminary plan submitted for review by the Planning Commission includes the 
following total planned square footage by use: 
 
Use  2012 (SqFt)  2015 (SqFt)  2016 (SqFt) 
Retail  390,866   210,706  209,695 
Residential  324,360   175,047  255,360 
Office  0   54,540**  58,200** 
Hotel  0   138,610  139,560 

Total  741,402  576,124   662,815 
Parking Provided  2,288   1,533  1,502 
Project % SF Above 
Lvl 1 (w.o. office) 

  76% (74%)  67% (64%) 

**The applicant has stated that an office building would not be constructed unless a tenant has 
been identified first. 
 
A wide range of review comments and issues were provided to the applicant’s 
representatives.  They were similar to the comments provided upon the review of Case 
1510.  While some issues are best addressed at the time of final plan or are 
construction details in nature, it was important to ensure such issues were considered 
by the applicant during the current planning stage since it is anticipated that final plans 
and building permits may be completed by late 2016 or early 2017. 
 
The following is a summary of issues identified by the city that must be addressed with 
final plans and/or development agreements: 
 

● Sustainable design and construction practices  

3 



● Building elevations and details for compliance with the Johnson Drive Design 
Guidelines  

● Private Sign Criteria 
● Building and site design creating a “gateway” image at the intersection of 

Johnson Dr. and Roe Ave 
● Useable open space and amenities for residential occupants (e.g. location, type, 

area) 
● Screening of rooftop mechanical units and the upper level of the parking garage 
● Sidewalk and streetscape design and amenities 
● Integration of the Johnson County transit stop along the Johnson Drive frontage 
● Safe accommodations for pedestrians and bike riders using the Rock Creek Trail 
● Onsite traffic controls 
● Offsite traffic improvements to surrounding intersections and streets 
● Turning movements and loading for trucks and emergency equipment 
● Screening of the truck loading areas 
● Dedication of rightofway as needed 
● Storm water design information 

 
Sustainable design and construction practices 
The City’s development review team initially suggested the project pursue and 
demonstrate a commitment to achieve LEED for Neighborhood Development 
(LEEDND).  This certification by the U.S. Green Building Council addresses a wide 
range of design and construction practices related to site design and green 
infrastructure and building components, such as energy and water efficiency, storm 
water management, civic spaces, and relationship to the surrounding community.  The 
applicant is opposed to certifying the project through this agency due to the increased 
upfront certification costs; however as indicated with previously approved plans will 
“…entertain and implement prudent design principles that follow a ‘green’ protocol in the 
spirit of a LEED project in the form of a Sustainable Design and Construction 
Implementation Plan (SDCIP). ”   
 
Staff NotesSustainability The Mission Sustainability Commission has developed a 
rating and certification system for development projects.  The proposed revised plans 
would be reviewed by the Sustainability Commission who would provide their opinion of 
the plan to the Planning Commission at the time of Final Site Plan review. 
 
Johnson Drive Design Guidelines 
The Johnson Drive Design Guidelines provide a wide range of recommended and 
required design elements applicable to the development.  These include streetscaping 
and the relationship of buildings and their exterior facades to public streets.   
 
Staff NotesDesign Guidelines: The plans submitted for consideration by the Planning 
Commission (including architectural vignettes and artist sketches) do not clearly 
demonstrate compliance with key elements of the Design Guidelines, most notably for 
Building “A” which is the large retail building on the east side of the site.  An exterior 
stairway feature spanning three stories has been added to the Johnson Drive facade in 
place of any storefront windows.  Critical design details not addressed with submitted 

4 



plans include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

a. Building facades should be detailed, provide visual interest and concentrate 
details at the ground or sidewalk level to enhance the pedestrian environment. 

 
b. Display windows of all buildings facing Johnson Drive.  The Design Guidelines 

indicate at least 75% of the façade is required to incorporate glass for the first 
floor of buildings facing Johnson Drive and is encouraged along Roe Avenue. 
False windows, glass block, dark tinted glass, or windows at a height not allowing 
visibility into the retail space for pedestrians at street level would not achieve the 
requirement for display windows for the street frontage of Building “A”.  The 
street level of Building “A” may include display windows as traditionally included 
with department stores in urban mixeduse environments.  These walls should 
not serve as large sign panels as they otherwise would in a conventional 
suburban district big box shopping center. 

 
c. Large buildings fronting multiple streets should provide multiple entrances 

oriented to engage the primary public street. Building “A” as currently depicted 
does not achieve the design guidelines outlined in this section.  

 
d. Building awnings and canopies along street frontages. Final plans should make 

clear how building frontages along perimeter streets achieve this design 
requirement.   

 
e. Signage.  Final plans will need to include private sign criteria that clearly identify 

the proposed sign standards.  It is recommended that such signage be consistent 
with the character of the development and should not reflect the appearance of a 
suburban big box shopping center.  

 
f. Screening of truck loading areas.  Additional detail will be needed with final plans 

to identify the treatment of building walls facing Roe Ave. and screening of truck 
loading areas. 

 
Building Design and Material Pallet  
The proposed building materials and architectural style is reflected in photos submitted 
on plan sheets PDPA800.  Specific building materials and colors have not been 
identified.  A modern contemporary architectural theme is represented by the images, 
generally consisting of concrete, glass, and metal finishes.   
 
Staff NotesBuildings: The modern contemporary theme of the submitted plans is 
consistent with plans approved in 2012 and 2015, and visually sets this development 
apart from other conventionally designed retail destinations and residential areas in the 
Kansas City area.   
 
Final plans will need to provide more detail about the relationship of the buildings to the 
pedestrian realm as required by the Johnson Drive Design Guidelines. Of particular 
concern on Building “A” is the street level façades and the appearance of the building 

5 



facing the intersection of Johnson Drive and Roe Avenue.  
 
Civic Space 
The 2015 approved plans replaced the Roeland Drive linear public space or esplanade 
and plaza area with a boardwalk system that connects to courtyard area between the 
buildings along Roeland Drive and the parking structure.  This space is proposed for the 
benefit of residents and as an amenity for the ground floor restaurants or retailers.  This 
courtyard does include seating and a small performance area.  No changes to this 
space are proposed with this plan.  An area of green roof or planted roof is added to 
building “A” adjacent to the proposed apartment units.  
 
Staff NotesCivic Space:  The proposed plan contains outdoor spaces that are interior 
to the site and designed to benefit onsite residents and customers.  Additional 
amenities for residents are contemplated in cooperative arrangements with the hotel for 
the shared use of their facilities such as the pool facilities.  The intent of the “MXD” 
zoning district is to encourage public spaces that are compatible in in character and 
function with the other uses surrounding them.  With the primary ground floor focus on 
retail, a boardwalk and courtyard allow for circulation between stores and restaurant 
and provides an area of greenspace for residents.  
 
Parking and Loading 
The submitted plan provides 1,502 parking spaces for the mix of retail, residential, office 
and hotel uses. This includes angled parking spaces along Johnson Drive adjacent to 
streetlevel retail in Building “E” and a surface parking lot is adjacent to Roeland Drive 
for Buildings “C” and “D”.  
 
The submitted plans are consistent with the previous plans with the multilevel parking 
structure located in the center of the development, and mostly wrapped with 
buildings.The parking structure is Lshaped with two floors of parking above one slightly 
larger level of surface parking.  A single vehicular circulator to the upper floors is located 
on the south end of the structure.  The lowest level is at grade and is intended for retail 
visitors.  The upper levels will be for hotel guests and the residential units. 
 
The applicant has supplied an analysis of the minimum number of parking spaces 
based on the submitted mix of uses required by the City Zoning Ordinance.  A minimum 
of 1,372 spaces is required and a maximum of 2,058 is allowed.  Also, in compliance 
with ordinances, no more than 60% of the parking provided is located at grade.   In 
accordance with city ordinances, the Planning Commission and City Council may 
reduce the required parking after considering documentation and/or a study provided by 
the applicant (Section 410.440).  No such reduction is necessary at this time.   
 
Staff NotesParking: The zoning district and the Johnson Drive Design Guidelines 
support structured parking and minimizing the amount of surface parking in 
redeveloping areas of the city.  While some parking may be reserved for specific users 
(e.g. residential or hotel), it is anticipated that the parking in the ground level of the 
structure will be shared between various tenants or users.  It is desirable to minimize 
the amount of unnecessary and costly parking that would otherwise not be used due to 

6 



the ability to share parking.  The close proximity of transit services and the Rock Creek 
Trail may also help reduce parking demand and improve transportation choices.   
 
The proposed plan includes a 96 stall surface parking lot between Roeland Drive and 
Buildings “C” and “D”. Significant landscaping, berms, decorative walls or a combination 
of these things will be required around it’s perimeter to comply with the zoning 
standards.   
 
Additional details will be necessary with final plans to ensure parking decks are 
screened from the view of surrounding roadways to the fullest extent possible. 
Additional details are needed with final plans to ensure rooftops and mechanical areas 
are also adequately screened from view. 
 
On and Off Site Public Improvements 
The developer is responsible for installation of streetscaping (sidewalk, street trees, 
benches, bike racks, street lights, etc) around the perimeter of the development and for 
providing public improvements offsite (crosswalks, modifications to traffic signals, turn 
lanes, etc).   
 
Staff NotesPublic Improvements: A minimum 8foot wide sidewalk clear zone along 
Johnson Drive must be provided in addition to adequate space for a streetscape 
amenity zone (street trees, tree wells, street lights, signage, etc.) and a seating area 
zone for any proposed outdoor restaurant space.  The ideal minimum width for all zones 
combined is 20feet from the street curb to the building wall.  Additional details are 
needed with final plans to ensure the Johnson Drive frontage provides adequate 
sidewalk dimensions to ensure a comfortable pedestrian environment for a successful 
retail and walking atmosphere.  A minimum 5foot wide sidewalk clear zone along 
Roeland Drive (except Rock Creek Trail segments) and Roe Avenue is required for the 
same reasons.  Dimensions for the portion of Roeland Drive to accommodate the 
extension of the Rock Creek Trail is discussed below.  Additional street rightofway 
dedication may be required with final plans and plats. 
 
Signs 
The City ordinance currently does not specifically regulate signs in the “MXD” Planned 
Mixed Use District.  However, the Sign Code requires shopping centers to establish 
private sign criteria governing all exterior signs in the development and that the 
Planning Commission review and approve these criteria as part of a final site plan 
approval.  For purposes of the sign code, the term "shopping center” means a project of 
one (1) or more buildings that has been planned as an integrated unit or cluster on 
property under unified control or ownership at the time that zoning was approved by the 
City.  The sale, subdivision or other partition of the site after zoning approval does not 
exempt the project or portions thereof from complying with these regulations relative to 
signs to be installed.  Approved private criteria are binding upon all subsequent 
purchasers or lessees within the development.   
 
Staff NotesSigns: The city’s sign code indicates criteria shall be for the purpose of 
assuring harmony and visual quality throughout the development.  The size, colors, 

7 



materials, styles of lettering, appearance of logos, types of illumination and location of 
signs shall be set out in such criteria.  Unless addressed by the Planning Commission 
and City Council with the preliminary plan approvals, signs will be further addressed 
with final development plans.  This will be an opportunity to ensure the signage for large 
retailers will be aesthetically compatible with the character of the development and the 
surrounding area.  Final development plans shall not be approved until the Planning 
Commission has approved the sign criteria.  After approval, no sign permit will be 
issued by the City for a sign that does not conform to the approved criteria.  
   
Public Transportation 
A transit stop area has been installed along Johnson Drive near the intersection of Roe 
Avenue.  
 
Staff NotesTransit Stop: The transit adjacent to the Gateway site is part of the system 
of newly enhanced bus facilities installed in the Metcalf Ave/Shawnee Mission Parkway 
corridor as part of a federal TIGER grant. Final plans will need to provide additional 
detail about the integration of the transit stop with the sidewalk and streetscape designs.   
 
Rock Creek Trail Extension 
The continuation of the Rock Creek Trail from Martway Street to the Roeland Drive 
Johnson Drive intersection is required.  The submitted plans identify a 10ft wide 
sidewalk along the east side of Roeland Drive north of the Martway intersection, 
continuing north across Johnson Drive to Roeland Park.   
 
Staff NotesTrail: Final plans will need to further detail this multiuse path to ensure an 
unobstructed width and adequate crosswalks for trail users.  Additional directional signs 
may be required to mark the trail continuation.   
 
Traffic 
Access into the site is proposed from five access points, three on Roeland Drive, one on 
Johnson Drive, and one on Roe Avenue.  All intersections surrounding the subject 
property are currently signalized.  In the past, the applicant has proposed improvements 
to accommodate the expected daily trips the development will generate based on traffic 
studies analyzing current conditions and proposed conditions after development.  At this 
time, the applicant has not submitted an update to the previous traffic study reflecting 
the additional apartment units proposed nor addressed the comments previously sent 
by the City’s oncall traffic engineer, George Butler Associates (GBA).  Any comments 
for the applicant to address will be required to be resolved before the study or final site 
plan are accepted. 
 
The Kansas Department of Transportation (KDOT) will also need to review and accept 
any changes proposed to the intersection of Shawnee Mission Parkway at Roeland 
Drive as this is a US Highway under their jurisdiction.   
 
Stormwater Management 
The subject property generally drains to the eastnortheast with the main outfall near the 
northeast corner.    A multibarrel reinforced concrete box (RCB) drainage system was 

8 



installed across the site for this portion of Rock Creek.  The RCB’s were designed to 
convey the 100 year storm event and a letter of map revision (LOMR) has been 
approved by FEMA taking the property out of the flood zone.  Therefore a floodplain 
permit is not required.   
 
The City’s oncall engineer at GBA is also reviewing the Drainage study and the 
proposed preliminary site plans for storm water control.  Under consideration is the 
amount of impervious surface in the development scenario, peak water flows after rain 
storms, and the location of below ground development features in relation to existing 
storm sewers.  In the past, a reduction in the amount of impervious surface has been 
demonstrated by the addition of green space compared to the existing (predemolition) 
condition.  Also, the layout of the piers footings for the new buildings will be reviewed 
against the pier plan used during the construction of the RCB’s.  Any comments for the 
applicant to address will be required to be resolved before the study or final site plan are 
accepted.   
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
The proposed development conforms with the Comprehensive plan and meets the 
overall intent of the “MXD” zoning district.  The proposed preliminary site development 
plan demonstrates a mix of three to four distinct uses within an area approximately 
equal to four city blocks.  Those uses are arranged vertically in buildings “A”,“B”, “C”, 
“D”, and “E”.  All of the floor area of the development is located in multistory buildings 
which are a minimum of 3stories in height. These uses will utilize shared parking which 
is to be centrally located, screened from view from the public realm, and multistoried. 
Pedestrian connections via public sidewalks, and private boardwalks or walkways are 
designed to make all portions of the development easily accessible on foot.  Special 
attention to streetscape features such as sidewalk widths, shade trees, pedestrian scale 
street lights, and amenities like seating and landscaping will make the quality of the 
pedestrian experience inviting and lively. All of these features when combined with a 
coordinated architectural style contribute to create a distinctive sense of place which is 
compact, urban, and active.  
 
While the development is generally in conformance with zoning and site planning 
requirements, several details do remain unresolved.  Many of these details are beyond 
the required scope of a preliminary site plan and therefore not deficiencies in the 
submitted plans which would necessitate rejection of the application at this point. 
However, Staff desires to be proactive in its recommendations in preparation for the 
eventual submittal of a final site plan.  The following recommendation contains 
conditions which are both carryovers from the original rezoning of the property in 2006 
under Ordinance #1203 and specific directions for revisions to be included in a future 
and separate final site plan submittal.  Conditions placed on the rezoning of the property 
which are still applicable to the development are included below as noted in parenthesis 
as Rezoning.  The sources of all other conditions are noted as such. 
 
Therefore, Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend approval of the 
Preliminary Site Development Plan for Case # 1603 The Gateway to the City Council 

9 



with the following conditions: 
 

1. The entire development shall be subject to the recommendations of the Design 
Guidelines for the Johnson Drive Corridor, including frontages along Johnson 
Drive, Shawnee Mission Pkwy, Roe Avenue, and Roeland Drive.  Plans 
submitted for Final Plan Review shall comply with said Design Guidelines as well 
as any more restrictive requirements within the “MXD” zoning regulations or as 
established by the rezoning stipulations. (Rezoning1) 

 
2. The street level of all buildings along public rightofway shall incorporate window 

glazing consistent with the Design Guidelines for the Johnson Drive Corridor. 
Flat, blank (windowless and unmodulated) or false windows shall be prohibited 
along public rightofway. (Rezoning2) 

 
3. Entrances should be oriented to engage the primary public street.  Large 

buildings that front multiple streets should provide multiple entrances and provide 
entrances convenient to parking areas.  Provide a public entrance for Building A 
along Johnson Drive. (Comments 9.22.15 & 7.5.16) 

 
4. The appearance of Building “A” facing the intersection of Roe Ave. and Johnson 

Drive shall have a signature design and shall be oriented to provide a visual 
appearance consistent with the remainder of the development. (Rezoning9) 

 
5. Provide additional massing studies/views to demonstrate how the Building “A” 

truck loading area will be screened from view from Roe Avenue.  Any visible wall 
elevations along Roe Ave should be finished with the same architectural 
appearance and detailing as the remainder of the structure visible from Johnson 
Drive and Shawnee Mission Pkwy. (Comments 9.22.15 & 7.5.16) 

 
6. Provide additional massing studies/views to demonstrate how the development 

design will create a gateway into the community at the Johnson Drive/Roe 
Avenue intersection. (Comments 9.22.15 & 7.5.16) 

 
7. The exterior of the parking structure visible from public rightofway shall be 

finished with a façade treatment consistent with the architectural character of the 
entire development. (Rezoning10) 

 
8. Plans need to demonstrate the visiblity of the upper deck of the parking structure 

from Shawnee Mission Parkway and Roeland Drive.  Screening may be required 
in various locations to reduce views of the parking deck. Unscreened views of the 
Building “A” rooftop will be acceptable if designed as a green roof. (Comments 
9.22.15 & 7.5.16) 

 
9. Plans need to demonstrate how the appearance of the upper deck of the parking 

structure and the rooftops of surrounding buildings will be enhanced for the views 
from the residential buildings “C”,”D”,”E”, and “B”.  HVAC units, antennas, 
skylights, exhaust fans/vents or other similar elements should be screened from 

10 



view of these buildings and the public streets. (Comments 9.22.15 & 7.5.16) 
 

10.A list of special conditions / standards for this development shall be included 
within an Architectural Standards / Tenant Criteria Booklet.  The booklet shall 
include a list of architectural features, such as awnings, balconies, bay windows 
etc., that may be permitted to encroach the public sidewalk and also include the 
maximum distance of encroachment. (Rezoning13) 

 
11.Unique and creative signage shall be permitted within the development.  Sign 

standards shall be provided in the Architectural Standards / Tenant Criteria 
Booklet, and shall be reviewed for approval by the Planning Commission with 
Final Plan Review. (Rezoning14) 

 
12.Any outdoor seating areas proposed within public rightofway shall be identified 

and reviewed with the Final Plan Review. (Rezoning12) 
 

13.Lighting within the site shall be consistent with the architectural and pedestrian 
character of the development.  Lighting on the site shall be directed away or 
screened from existing residential properties. (Rezoning15) 

 
14.Final plans will need to demonstrate safe accommodations for multimodal Rock 

Creek Trail traffic from the current terminus of the trail along Roeland Drive to 
Roeland Park. (Rezoning18)  

 
15.A continuous public sidewalk shall be provided along Roeland Drive, Johnson 

Drive, and Roe Avenue.  The Roe Avenue sidewalk shall link sidewalks at the 
intersection of Johnson Drive with a sidewalk extending under Shawnee Mission 
Pkwy.  Sidewalk improvements shall include pedestrian connections/crosswalks 
across adjacent intersections.  These improvements shall be designed to meet 
ADA and MUTCD criteria and provide functional pedestrian connections to the 
Rock Creek Trail, transit center, transit stops, and across Shawnee Mission 
Parkway (Zoning & GBA) 

 
16.Street trees should be planted between the curb and walking path of the sidewalk 

thus providing a more pleasant pedestrian experience separated from traffic. 
Minimum sidewalk width along Johnson Drive is an unobstructed walking surface 
of 8’ and 5’  unobstructed width along Roeland Drive.  Minimum widths may need 
to be increased to accommodate additional features such as trail connections or 
building entrances.  Sidewalks and onstreet parking should be located in the 
public rightofway.  Dedication of rightofway should be resolved with the final 
plat or by separate document. (Comments 9.22.15 & 7.5.2016) 

 
17.Several missing links in pedestrian circulation need to be addressed.  Ensure 

connections from all drives and public sidewalks to adjacent buildings. 
(Comments 9.22.15 & 7.5.16) 

 
18.Street rightofway, offsite traffic improvements, permitted points of access, 

11 



pedestrian connectivity, etc. shall be determined prior to approval of a replat and 
final development plan for the subject property and shall be consistent with the 
Design Guidelines for the Johnson Drive Corridor and the East Gateway 
Streetscape Standards. (Rezoning3 & 4) 

 
19.The developer shall be responsible for streetscape improvements along 

perimeter roadways and intersections.(Rezoning5) 
 

20.The developer shall be responsible for implementation of recommended storm 
water and other utility improvements unless otherwise described in a 
development agreement with the City of Mission.  Required easements shall be 
coordinated with the City and other utility providers and identified with the final 
plat and final development plan for the property. (Rezoning6) 

 
21.A utility and infrastructure plan shall be submitted prior to approval of the 

development plan. (Rezoning7) 
 

22.Buildings submitted for Final Plan review shall be designed in accordance with 
the requirements of city staff, city consultants, and other utility providers to 
maintain adequate clearance from storm water structures and other utilities. 
(Rezoning-8) 

 
23.The City of Mission reserves the right to impose time limits on large vehicle 

deliveries to the site. (Rezoning17) 
 

24.The City of Mission reserves the right to limit access to a rightin /rightout 
configuration for vehicular entrances along Roe Ave and the southernmost 
access point along Roeland Drive. (Rezoning19&20) 

 
25.Provide additional detail at final site plan regarding vehicle turning 

accommodations, using the appropriate design vehicles previously identified, for 
the retail dock area along Roe Avenue, emergency access for the Fire District at 
each access drive and along all primary internal service routes, school bus/tour 
bus circulation and parking, and other service delivery routes on the interior of 
the site. (GBA) 

 
26.A final traffic study and final stormwater drainage design plan must be submitted 

for review with the final site plan.  The appropriate text, maps, drawings and 
tables must be included. (GBA) 

 
27.Staff reserves the right to provide additional comments or stipulations on 

development plans until all traffic or storm drainage related concerns have been 
addressed. (GBA) 

 
28.No construction or building permits will be issued until construction phasing is 

agreed to by the City and the Developer in an approved Development 
Agreement. (City Council 111815) 

12 



 
Planning Commission Recommendation 
The Planning Commission, at their July 25, 2016 meeting, voted 90 to recommend 
Preliminary Site Development Plan for Case # 1603 The Gateway to the City Council 
with the 28 staff recommended conditions listed in the staff report. 
 

13 



MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2016

MISSION GATEWAY
A MULTI-USE RETAIL DEVELOPMENT
JOHNSON DRIVE AND ROE AVENUE, MISSION, KS

M/E/P:
PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

1

1



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

54

33

43

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

40

23

52

57

MARTWAY ST.

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

CARTS

8

35

14

29

14

DN

DN

DN

BUILDING 02
(SEPERATE PERMIT)

BUILDING 2A

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2016 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN 

 

0" 25' 50' 100'

04.29.15

PDP-A050
SITE PLAN

BUILDING C

BUILDING B

BUILDING F

BUILDING A

BUILDING D

BUILDING E



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

54

33

43

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

40

23

52

57

MARTWAY ST.

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

CARTS

8

35

14

29

14

DN

DN

DN

BIAP2AP2

BIAP2AP2

BIAP3AP3

B
X

B
X

A
2

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
R

X
X

H
A

Z
X

L
H

A
Z

X
L

JC
XL

JC1
XL

B
X

B
X

W
D

D

SSLRXL

AM PHL

BAA

CLDESKCL CL

C
L

B
X

BAD
X

BAD
X

B
X

B
X

C
XL

C
XL

B B B

MD9

C
L

CL CLCL

B

DDDD

B

D
D

P
U

M
P

 R
O

O
M

INVOICING

U
P

C
/U

P
S

TR
A

IN
IN

G
C

B
L PERSONNEL

AD OFFICE

M
E

N

W
O

M
E

N

FA
M

IL
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

B
R

E
A

K
R

O
O

M

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

F
O

O
D

TE
N

A
N

T
TE

N
A

N
T

M
E

N

A
LC

O
V

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

S
TO

R
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S

O
F

F
IC

E

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G

C
A

S
H

E
D

C
 2

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
P

T
IC

A
L

S
A

LE
S

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
TS

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

R
E

C
E

P
TI

O
N

C
O

N
TA

C
TS

P
R

E
TE

S
T

W
A

IT
IN

G

E
X

A
M

 #
2

E
X

A
M

 #
1

A
P

 O
FF

IC
E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

S
A

LE
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
H

E
C

K
O

U
T

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

42
N

C
R

R
15

1

G
M

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

X
X

X
 S

F
G

A
TE

D
 W

H
IT

E
 B

O
X

X
,X

X
X

 S
F

G
A

TE
D

 W
H

IT
E

 B
O

X

D
R

Y
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

P
R

E
P

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
C

O
O

LE
R

P
O

U
LT

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R
R

O
TI

S
S

E
R

IE
P

R
E

P
D

E
LI

 P
R

E
P

D
E

LI
FR

E
E

ZE
R

DELI COOLER

B
A

K
E

R
Y

FR
E

E
ZE

R

D
E

LI
 U

TI
LI

TY

B
A

K
E

R
Y

P
R

E
P

B
A

K
E

R
Y

B
A

K
E

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
S

A
LE

S

IC
E

 C
R

E
A

M
FR

E
E

ZE
R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
FR

E
E

ZE
R

M
E

A
T

U
TI

LI
TY

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

M
E

A
T

C
O

O
LE

R

E
D

C
 #

4

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

LI
C

U
S

TO
M

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

R
E

TU
R

N
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

DD G

D
D

G
D

DG
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
U

U
G

U
U

G
U

U
G

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL E

GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J G
L

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

U
UG

UUG

S
A

LA
D

 P
R

E
P

D
A

IR
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

WARRENTY
DESK

W
O

M
E

N

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

A
LC

O
V

E

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

O
R

G
A

N
IC

W
AS

TE

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L
C

A
G

E

B
X

E
D

C

F
N

X
LS

F
N

X
LS

B

B

X
B

X

B

X

B

X

D
F

X
L

D
F

X
L

B

X

B

X

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

F
N

F
N

A
M

S
S

L

P
H

L

R
X

L

B

X

B

X

B

X

X
L

C

FLG

X XL

C

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

R
X

C

XL

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

B

XB

X

B
P

X

B
P

X

X
L

G

X

D
R

D

X

A
2

X

A
2

X

B
P

X

A

X

B
P

X

A

X

X

FB

X

FB

A

X

A

A
2

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

X

B

X

B

X

BB

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X
X

A
2

X

A
2

B

X

B

X

B

X

G
A

X

G
A

G
A

X

G
A

X

B

X

X
L

C

X

G

X

G

G
R

D

X

B

X

X

G
A

X

D

X

X

G
A

X

G
A

X

G
A

D
D

X

FB
D

B
X

"G
R

O
SS

 L
E

A
S

A
B

LE
 A

R
EA

" P
E

R
 W

M
 G

U
ID

E
LI

N
E 

= 
15

4,
46

9 
S

F

O
U

TS
ID

E
LI

V
E

 G
O

O
D

S

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

LOADING

SURFACE LEVEL PULL-IN PARKING: 28 STALLS

SU
R

FAC
E LEVEL PAR

KIN
G

: 96 STALLS

90'-1"

67'-10"

SURFACE LEVEL PARKING: 616 STALLS

WOOD BOARDWALK

PERFORMANCE STAGE

BENCH SEATING

319'-5"

PARKING TOTALS  

LEVEL QUANTITY
LEVEL 1 744
LEVEL 2 375
LEVEL 3 383

_____
TOTALS 1502

                     

22'-2"

MASONRY WALL

MASONRY WALL

SMALL OFFICE/ RETAIL
16,047 GSF

+ 931'-0" - 932'-0"

SMALL OFFICE/ RETAIL
19,774 GSF

+ 931'-0" - 932'-6"

SMALL RETAIL
19,405 GSF

+ 931'-0"- 932'-6"

BUILDING A
154,469 SF

LEVEL 1 HOTEL SERVICES
9,160 GSF
+ 930'-0"

1

1

11

1

1

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL 
MAY 16, 2016 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 1

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A051
SITE PLAN (LEVEL 1)



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

54

33

43

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

40

23

52

57

MARTWAY ST.

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

CARTS

8

35

14

29

14

DN

DN

DN

BIAP2AP2

BIAP2AP2

BIAP3AP3

B
X

B
X

A
2

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
R

X
X

H
A

Z
X

L
H

A
Z

X
L

JC
XL

JC1
XL

B
X

B
X

W
D

D

SSLRXL

AM PHL

BAA

CLDESKCL CL

C
L

B
X

BAD
X

BAD
X

B
X

B
X

C
XL

C
XL

B B B

MD9

C
L

CL CLCL

B

DDDD

B

D
D

P
U

M
P

 R
O

O
M

INVOICING

U
P

C
/U

P
S

TR
A

IN
IN

G
C

B
L PERSONNEL

AD OFFICE

M
E

N

W
O

M
E

N

FA
M

IL
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

B
R

E
A

K
R

O
O

M

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

F
O

O
D

TE
N

A
N

T
TE

N
A

N
T

M
E

N

A
LC

O
V

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

S
TO

R
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S

O
F

F
IC

E

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G

C
A

S
H

E
D

C
 2

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
P

T
IC

A
L

S
A

LE
S

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
TS

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

R
E

C
E

P
TI

O
N

C
O

N
TA

C
TS

P
R

E
TE

S
T

W
A

IT
IN

G

E
X

A
M

 #
2

E
X

A
M

 #
1

A
P

 O
FF

IC
E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

S
A

LE
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
H

E
C

K
O

U
T

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

42
N

C
R

R
15

1

G
M

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

X
X

X
 S

F
G

A
TE

D
 W

H
IT

E
 B

O
X

X
,X

X
X

 S
F

G
A

TE
D

 W
H

IT
E

 B
O

X

D
R

Y
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

P
R

E
P

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
C

O
O

LE
R

P
O

U
LT

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R
R

O
TI

S
S

E
R

IE
P

R
E

P
D

E
LI

 P
R

E
P

D
E

LI
FR

E
E

ZE
R

DELI COOLER

B
A

K
E

R
Y

FR
E

E
ZE

R

D
E

LI
 U

TI
LI

TY

B
A

K
E

R
Y

P
R

E
P

B
A

K
E

R
Y

B
A

K
E

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
S

A
LE

S

IC
E

 C
R

E
A

M
FR

E
E

ZE
R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
FR

E
E

ZE
R

M
E

A
T

U
TI

LI
TY

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

M
E

A
T

C
O

O
LE

R

E
D

C
 #

4

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

LI
C

U
S

TO
M

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

R
E

TU
R

N
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

DD G

D
D

G
D

DG
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
U

U
G

U
U

G
U

U
G

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL E

GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J G
L

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

U
UG

UUG

S
A

LA
D

 P
R

E
P

D
A

IR
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

WARRENTY
DESK

W
O

M
E

N

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

A
LC

O
V

E

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

O
R

G
A

N
IC

W
AS

TE

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L
C

A
G

E

B
X

E
D

C

F
N

X
LS

F
N

X
LS

B

B

X
B

X

B

X

B

X

D
F

X
L

D
F

X
L

B

X

B

X

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

F
N

F
N

A
M

S
S

L

P
H

L

R
X

L

B

X

B

X

B

X

X
L

C

FLG

X XL

C

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

R
X

C

XL

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

B

XB

X

B
P

X

B
P

X

X
L

G

X

D
R

D

X

A
2

X

A
2

X

B
P

X

A

X

B
P

X

A

X

X

FB

X

FB

A

X

A

A
2

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

X

B

X

B

X

BB

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X
X

A
2

X

A
2

B

X

B

X

B

X

G
A

X

G
A

G
A

X

G
A

X

B

X

X
L

C

X

G

X

G

G
R

D

X

B

X

X

G
A

X

D

X

X

G
A

X

G
A

X

G
A

D
D

X

FB
D

B
X

"G
R

O
SS

 L
E

A
S

A
B

LE
 A

R
EA

" P
E

R
 W

M
 G

U
ID

E
LI

N
E 

= 
15

4,
46

9 
S

F

O
U

TS
ID

E
LI

V
E

 G
O

O
D

S

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

E

HOTEL DROP OFF

OPEN TO BELOW

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

OPEN TO BELOW

LEVEL 2 RESIDENTIAL,
55,800 GSF; 56 UNITS

+947'-0"

POOL 
LEVEL 2 HOTEL;

18,000 SF
+947'-0"

HOTEL DROP OFF

14

25

14

AP2AP2

AP2AP2

AP3AP3

JC
XL

JC1
XL

X
B

X

W
D

D

SSLRXL

AM

AA

CLDESKCL

BAD
X

BAD
X

B
X

B
X XL

C
XL

B B

C
L

CL CLCL

B

DDDD

B

D
D

INVOICING

U
P

C
/U

P
S

TR
A

IN
IN

G
C

B
L PERSONNEL

M
E

N

W
O

M
E

N

FA
M

IL
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

B
R

E
A

K
R

O
O

M

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

F
O

O
D

TE
N

A
N

T
TE

N
A

N
T

M
E

N

A
LC

O
V

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

S
TO

R
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S

O
F

F
IC

E

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G

C
A

S
H

E
D

C
 2

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
P

T
IC

A
L

S
A

LE
S

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
TS

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

R
E

C
E

P
TI

O
N

C
O

N
TA

C
TS

P
R

E
TE

S
T

W
A

IT
IN

G

E
X

A
M

 #
2

E
X

A
M

 #
1

A
P

 O
FF

IC
E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

S
A

LE
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
H

E
C

K
O

U
T

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

42
N

C
R

R
15

1

X
X

X
 S

F
X

,X
X

X
 S

F
G

A
TE

D
 W

H
IT

E
 B

O
X

D
R

Y
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

P
R

E
P

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
C

O
O

LE
R

P
O

U
LT

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R
R

O
TI

S
S

E
R

IE
P

R
E

P
D

E
LI

 P
R

E
P

D
E

LI
FR

E
E

ZE
R

DELI COOLER

B
A

K
E

R
Y

FR
E

E
ZE

R

D
E

LI
 U

TI
LI

TY

B
A

K
E

R
Y

P
R

E
P

B
A

K
E

R
Y

B
A

K
E

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
S

A
LE

S

IC
E

 C
R

E
A

M
FR

E
E

ZE
R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
FR

E
E

ZE
R

M
E

A
T

U
TI

LI
TY

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

M
E

A
T

C
O

O
LE

R

E
D

C
 #

4

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

LI
C

U
S

TO
M

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

R
E

TU
R

N
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

DD G

D
D

G
D

DG
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
U

U
G

U
U

G
U

U
G

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL E

GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J G
L

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

U
UG

UUG

S
A

LA
D

 P
R

E
P

D
A

IR
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

WARRENTY
DESK

W
O

M
E

N

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

A
LC

O
V

E

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

E
D

C

F
N

X
LS

F
N

X
LS

B

B

X

D
F

X
L

D
F

X
L

B

X

B

X

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

A
M

S
S

L

P
H

L

R
X

L

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

R
X

X

B

X

B
P

X

B
P

X

X
L

G

X

A
2

X

A
2

X

B
P

X

A

X

B
P

X

A

X

X

FB

X

A

X

A

A
2

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

X

B

X

B

X

BB

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X
X

A
2

X

A
2

B

X

G
A

X

B

X

X
L

C

B

X

X

D

X
G

A

"G
R

O
SS

 L
E

A
S

A
B

LE
 A

R
EA

" P
E

R
 W

M
 G

U
ID

E
LI

N
E 

= 
15

4,
46

9 
S

F

O
U

TS
ID

E
LI

V
E

 G
O

O
D

S

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

OPEN TO BELOW

LEVEL 2 PARKING: 375 STALLS
+947'-0"

16

4UP

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

45 49

PARKING TOTALS  

LEVEL QUANTITY
LEVEL 1 744
LEVEL 2 375
LEVEL 3 383

_____
TOTALS 1502

                     

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

M/E/P:
PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 2 

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A052
SITE PLAN (LEVEL 2)PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL 

MAY 16, 2016



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

54

33

43

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

40

23

52

57

MARTWAY ST.

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

CARTS

8

35

14

29

14

DN

DN

DN

LEVEL 3 OFFICE
4,300 GSF

+958'-0"

LEVEL 3 HOTEL;
18,000 SF
+958'-0"

LEVEL 3 RESIDENTIAL,
61,620 GSF; 56 UNITS

+958'-0"

HOTEL DROP OFF

OPEN TO BELOW

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

OPEN TO BELOW

14

25

30

UP

DN

LEVEL 3 PARKING: 383 STALLS
+958'-0"

16

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

24

58

48

LEVEL 3 RESIDENTIAL,
39,400 GSF; 37 UNITS

+954'-0"

PARKING TOTALS  

LEVEL QUANTITY
LEVEL 1 744
LEVEL 2 375
LEVEL 3 383

_____
TOTALS 1502

                     

1

1

1

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

M/E/P:
PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 3

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A053
SITE PLAN (LEVEL 3)PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL 

MAY 16, 2016



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

54

33

43

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

40

23

52

57

MARTWAY ST.

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

CARTS

8

35

14

29

14

DN

DN

DN

LEVEL 4 OFFICE
19,400 GSF

+972'-0"

LEVEL 4 HOTEL
23,600 SF
+972'-0"

HOTEL DROP OFF

OPEN TO BELOW

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

OPEN TO BELOW

wp

LEVEL 4 RESIDENTIAL,
59,140 GSF; 56 UNITS

+969'-0"

PARKING DECK BELOW

14

25

UP

DN

LEVEL 4 RESIDENTIAL,
39,400 GSF; 37 UNITS

+966'-0"

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

M/E/P:
PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 4 

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A054
SITE PLAN (LEVEL 4)PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL 

MAY 16, 2016



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

54

33

43

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

44

45

46

40

23

52

57

MARTWAY ST.

COMPACT

COMPACT

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

45

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

43

COMPACT
ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

CARTS

8

35

14

29

14

DN

DN

DN

LEVEL 5-6 OFFICE
19,400 GSF

HOTEL DROP OFF

OPEN TO BELOW

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

OPEN TO BELOW

MECHW/D

D
W

MECH W/D

D
W

DW

MECH MECHW/D

D
W

DW

MECHMECHW/D

D
W

DW

MECHMECH W/D

D
W

UP

DN

CLUBHOUSE

THEATER

M
E

C
H

W
/D

DW

MECH W/D

D
W

D
W

M
E

C
H

D
W

M
E

C
H

M
E

C
H

W
/D

DW

M
E

C
H

W
/D

DW

D
W

M
E

C
H

M
E

C
H

W
/D

DW

D
W

M
E

C
H

D
W

M
E

C
H

MECH W/D

D
W

D
W

M
E

C
H

D
W

M
E

C
H

D
W

M
E

C
H

M
E

C
H

W
/D

DW

M
E

C
H

W
/D

DW

D
W

M
E

C
H

MECH W/D

D
W

MECHW/D

D
W

DW

MECH

DW

MECH MECH W/D

D
W

MECHW/D

D
W

DW

MECH

DW

MECH

DW

MECH

PARKING DECK BELOW

14

25

LEVEL 5-7 HOTEL
23,600 SF

50 ROOMS EA FLOOR

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

M/E/P:
PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 5-7 

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A055
SITE PLAN (LEVEL 5-7)PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL 

MAY 16, 2016



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

MARTWAY ST.

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

CARTS

DN

DN

DN

BIAP2AP2

BIAP2AP2

BIAP3AP3

B
X

B
X

A
2

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
R

X
X

H
A

Z
X

L
H

A
Z

X
L

JC
XL

JC1
XL

B
X

B
X

W
D

D

SSLRXL

AM PHL

BAA

CLDESKCL CL

C
L

B
X

BAD
X

BAD
X

B
X

B
X

C
XL

C
XL

B B B

MD9

C
L

CL CLCL

B

DDDD

B

D
D

P
U

M
P

 R
O

O
M

INVOICING

U
P

C
/U

P
S

TR
A

IN
IN

G
C

B
L PERSONNEL

AD OFFICE

M
E

N

W
O

M
E

N

FA
M

IL
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

B
R

E
A

K
R

O
O

M

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

F
O

O
D

TE
N

A
N

T
TE

N
A

N
T

M
E

N

A
LC

O
V

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

S
TO

R
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S

O
F

F
IC

E

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G

C
A

S
H

E
D

C
 2

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
P

T
IC

A
L

S
A

LE
S

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
TS

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

R
E

C
E

P
TI

O
N

C
O

N
TA

C
TS

P
R

E
TE

S
T

W
A

IT
IN

G

E
X

A
M

 #
2

E
X

A
M

 #
1

A
P

 O
FF

IC
E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

S
A

LE
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
H

E
C

K
O

U
T

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

42
N

C
R

R
15

1

G
M

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

X
X

X
 S

F
G

A
TE

D
 W

H
IT

E
 B

O
X

X
,X

X
X

 S
F

G
A

TE
D

 W
H

IT
E

 B
O

X

D
R

Y
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

P
R

E
P

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
C

O
O

LE
R

P
O

U
LT

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R
R

O
TI

S
S

E
R

IE
P

R
E

P
D

E
LI

 P
R

E
P

D
E

LI
FR

E
E

ZE
R

DELI COOLER

B
A

K
E

R
Y

FR
E

E
ZE

R

D
E

LI
 U

TI
LI

TY

B
A

K
E

R
Y

P
R

E
P

B
A

K
E

R
Y

B
A

K
E

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
S

A
LE

S

IC
E

 C
R

E
A

M
FR

E
E

ZE
R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
FR

E
E

ZE
R

M
E

A
T

U
TI

LI
TY

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

M
E

A
T

C
O

O
LE

R

E
D

C
 #

4

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

LI
C

U
S

TO
M

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

R
E

TU
R

N
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

DD G

D
D

G
D

DG
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
U

U
G

U
U

G
U

U
G

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL E

GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J G
L

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

U
UG

UUG

S
A

LA
D

 P
R

E
P

D
A

IR
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

WARRENTY
DESK

W
O

M
E

N

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

A
LC

O
V

E

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

O
R

G
A

N
IC

W
AS

TE

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L
C

A
G

E

B
X

E
D

C

F
N

X
LS

F
N

X
LS

B

B

X
B

X

B

X

B

X

D
F

X
L

D
F

X
L

B

X

B

X

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

F
N

F
N

A
M

S
S

L

P
H

L

R
X

L

B

X

B

X

B

X

X
L

C

FLG

X XL

C

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

R
X

C

XL

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

B

XB

X

B
P

X

B
P

X

X
L

G

X

D
R

D

X

A
2

X

A
2

X

B
P

X

A

X

B
P

X

A

X

X

FB

X

FB

A

X

A

A
2

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

X

B

X

B

X

BB

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X
X

A
2

X

A
2

B

X

B

X

B

X

G
A

X

G
A

G
A

X

G
A

X

B

X

X
L

C

X

G

X

G

G
R

D

X

B

X

X

G
A

X

D

X

X

G
A

X

G
A

X

G
A

D
D

X

FB
D

B
X

"G
R

O
SS

 L
E

A
S

A
B

LE
 A

R
EA

" P
E

R
 W

M
 G

U
ID

E
LI

N
E 

= 
15

4,
46

9 
S

F

O
U

TS
ID

E
LI

V
E

 G
O

O
D

S

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

LOADING

90'-1"

22'-2"

MASONRY WALL

MASONRY WALL

SMALL OFFICE/ RETAIL

SMALL OFFICE/ RETAIL

SMALL RETAIL

BUILDING A
154,469 SF

LEVEL 1 HOTEL SERVICES

PRIVATE ELEVATOR

PRIVATE STAIR

PRIVATE CIRCULATION

PUBLIC STAIR

PUBLIC CIRCULATION

HORIZONTAL / VERTICAL CIRCULATION LEGEND

PUBLIC PARKING LOT

PU
BLIC

 PAR
KIN

G
 LO

T

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

M/E/P:
PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 1

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A061
CIRCULATION DIAGRAM (LEVEL 1)PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL 

MAY 16, 2016



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

MARTWAY ST.

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

CARTS

DN

DN

DN

BIAP2AP2

BIAP2AP2

BIAP3AP3

B
X

B
X

A
2

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
R

X
X

H
A

Z
X

L
H

A
Z

X
L

JC
XL

JC1
XL

B
X

B
X

W
D

D

SSLRXL

AM PHL

BAA

CLDESKCL CL

C
L

B
X

BAD
X

BAD
X

B
X

B
X

C
XL

C
XL

B B B

MD9

C
L

CL CLCL

B

DDDD

B

D
D

P
U

M
P

 R
O

O
M

INVOICING

U
P

C
/U

P
S

TR
A

IN
IN

G
C

B
L PERSONNEL

AD OFFICE

M
E

N

W
O

M
E

N

FA
M

IL
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

B
R

E
A

K
R

O
O

M

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

F
O

O
D

TE
N

A
N

T
TE

N
A

N
T

M
E

N

A
LC

O
V

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

S
TO

R
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S

O
F

F
IC

E

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G

C
A

S
H

E
D

C
 2

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
P

T
IC

A
L

S
A

LE
S

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
TS

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

R
E

C
E

P
TI

O
N

C
O

N
TA

C
TS

P
R

E
TE

S
T

W
A

IT
IN

G

E
X

A
M

 #
2

E
X

A
M

 #
1

A
P

 O
FF

IC
E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

S
A

LE
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
H

E
C

K
O

U
T

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

42
N

C
R

R
15

1

G
M

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

X
X

X
 S

F
G

A
TE

D
 W

H
IT

E
 B

O
X

X
,X

X
X

 S
F

G
A

TE
D

 W
H

IT
E

 B
O

X

D
R

Y
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

P
R

E
P

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
C

O
O

LE
R

P
O

U
LT

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R
R

O
TI

S
S

E
R

IE
P

R
E

P
D

E
LI

 P
R

E
P

D
E

LI
FR

E
E

ZE
R

DELI COOLER

B
A

K
E

R
Y

FR
E

E
ZE

R

D
E

LI
 U

TI
LI

TY

B
A

K
E

R
Y

P
R

E
P

B
A

K
E

R
Y

B
A

K
E

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
S

A
LE

S

IC
E

 C
R

E
A

M
FR

E
E

ZE
R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
FR

E
E

ZE
R

M
E

A
T

U
TI

LI
TY

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

M
E

A
T

C
O

O
LE

R

E
D

C
 #

4

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

LI
C

U
S

TO
M

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

R
E

TU
R

N
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

DD G

D
D

G
D

DG
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
U

U
G

U
U

G
U

U
G

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL E

GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J G
L

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

U
UG

UUG

S
A

LA
D

 P
R

E
P

D
A

IR
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

WARRENTY
DESK

W
O

M
E

N

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

A
LC

O
V

E

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

O
R

G
A

N
IC

W
AS

TE

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L
C

A
G

E

B
X

E
D

C

F
N

X
LS

F
N

X
LS

B

B

X
B

X

B

X

B

X

D
F

X
L

D
F

X
L

B

X

B

X

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

F
N

F
N

A
M

S
S

L

P
H

L

R
X

L

B

X

B

X

B

X

X
L

C

FLG

X XL

C

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

R
X

C

XL

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

B

XB

X

B
P

X

B
P

X

X
L

G

X

D
R

D

X

A
2

X

A
2

X

B
P

X

A

X

B
P

X

A

X

X

FB

X

FB

A

X

A

A
2

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

X

B

X

B

X

BB

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X
X

A
2

X

A
2

B

X

B

X

B

X

G
A

X

G
A

G
A

X

G
A

X

B

X

X
L

C

X

G

X

G

G
R

D

X

B

X

X

G
A

X

D

X

X

G
A

X

G
A

X

G
A

D
D

X

FB
D

B
X

"G
R

O
SS

 L
E

A
S

A
B

LE
 A

R
EA

" P
E

R
 W

M
 G

U
ID

E
LI

N
E 

= 
15

4,
46

9 
S

F

O
U

TS
ID

E
LI

V
E

 G
O

O
D

S

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

E

HOTEL DROP OFF

OPEN TO BELOW

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

OPEN TO BELOW

LEVEL 2 RESIDENTIAL,

LEVEL 2 HOTEL;

HOTEL DROP OFF

14

AP2AP2

AP2AP2

AP3AP3

JC
XL

JC1
XL

X
B

X

W
D

D

SSLRXL

AM

AA

CLDESKCL

BAD
X

BAD
X

B
X

B
X XL

C
XL

B B

C
L

CL CLCL

B

DDDD

B

D
D

INVOICING

U
P

C
/U

P
S

TR
A

IN
IN

G
C

B
L PERSONNEL

M
E

N

W
O

M
E

N

FA
M

IL
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

B
R

E
A

K
R

O
O

M

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

F
O

O
D

TE
N

A
N

T
TE

N
A

N
T

M
E

N

A
LC

O
V

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

S
TO

R
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S

O
F

F
IC

E

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G

C
A

S
H

E
D

C
 2

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
P

T
IC

A
L

S
A

LE
S

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
TS

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

R
E

C
E

P
TI

O
N

C
O

N
TA

C
TS

P
R

E
TE

S
T

W
A

IT
IN

G

E
X

A
M

 #
2

E
X

A
M

 #
1

A
P

 O
FF

IC
E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

T
O

IL
E

T

S
A

LE
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
H

E
C

K
O

U
T

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

42
N

C
R

R
15

1

X
X

X
 S

F
X

,X
X

X
 S

F
G

A
TE

D
 W

H
IT

E
 B

O
X

D
R

Y
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

P
R

E
P

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
C

O
O

LE
R

P
O

U
LT

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R
R

O
TI

S
S

E
R

IE
P

R
E

P
D

E
LI

 P
R

E
P

D
E

LI
FR

E
E

ZE
R

DELI COOLER

B
A

K
E

R
Y

FR
E

E
ZE

R

D
E

LI
 U

TI
LI

TY

B
A

K
E

R
Y

P
R

E
P

B
A

K
E

R
Y

B
A

K
E

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
S

A
LE

S

IC
E

 C
R

E
A

M
FR

E
E

ZE
R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
FR

E
E

ZE
R

M
E

A
T

U
TI

LI
TY

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

M
E

A
T

C
O

O
LE

R

E
D

C
 #

4

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

LI
C

U
S

TO
M

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

R
E

TU
R

N
S

T
O

R
A

G
E

DD G

D
D

G
D

DG
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
U

U
G

U
U

G
U

U
G

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL E

GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J G
L

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

U
UG

UUG

S
A

LA
D

 P
R

E
P

D
A

IR
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

WARRENTY
DESK

W
O

M
E

N

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

A
LC

O
V

E

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

E
D

C

F
N

X
LS

F
N

X
LS

B

B

X

D
F

X
L

D
F

X
L

B

X

B

X

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

A
M

S
S

L

P
H

L

R
X

L

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

R
X

X

B

X

B
P

X

B
P

X

X
L

G

X

A
2

X

A
2

X

B
P

X

A

X

B
P

X

A

X

X

FB

X

A

X

A

A
2

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

X

B

X

B

X

BB

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X
X

A
2

X

A
2

B

X

G
A

X

B

X

X
L

C

B

X

X

D

X
G

A

"G
R

O
SS

 L
E

A
S

A
B

LE
 A

R
EA

" P
E

R
 W

M
 G

U
ID

E
LI

N
E 

= 
15

4,
46

9 
S

F

O
U

TS
ID

E
LI

V
E

 G
O

O
D

S

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

UP

PRIVATE ELEVATOR

PRIVATE STAIR

PRIVATE CIRCULATION

PUBLIC STAIR

PUBLIC CIRCULATION

HORIZONTAL / VERTICAL CIRCULATION LEGEND

PRIVATE PARKING LOT

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

M/E/P:
PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 2 

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A062
CIRCULATION DIAGRAM (LEVEL 2)PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL 

MAY 16, 2016



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

MARTWAY ST.

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

CARTS

DN

DN

DN

UP

DN

LEVEL 3 OFFICE

LEVEL 3 HOTEL

LEVEL 3 RESIDENTIAL

HOTEL DROP OFF

OPEN TO BELOW

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

OPEN TO BELOW

LEVEL 3 PARKING

LEVEL 3 RESIDENTIAL

PRIVATE ELEVATOR

PRIVATE STAIR

PRIVATE CIRCULATION

PUBLIC STAIR

PUBLIC CIRCULATION

HORIZONTAL / VERTICAL CIRCULATION LEGEND

PRIVATE PARKING LOT

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

M/E/P:
PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 3

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A063
CIRCULATION DIAGRAM (LEVEL 3)PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL 

MAY 16, 2016



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

MARTWAY ST.

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

CARTS

DN

DN

DN

UP

DN

LEVEL 4 HOTEL

LEVEL 4 OFFICE

HOTEL DROP OFF

OPEN TO BELOW

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

OPEN TO BELOW

wp

LEVEL 4 RESIDENTIAL

LEVEL 4 RESIDENTIAL

PARKING DECK BELOW

14

25

PRIVATE ELEVATOR

PRIVATE STAIR

PRIVATE CIRCULATION

PUBLIC STAIR

PUBLIC CIRCULATION

HORIZONTAL / VERTICAL CIRCULATION LEGEND

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

M/E/P:
PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 4 

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A064
CIRCULATION DIAGRAM (LEVEL 4)PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL 

MAY 16, 2016



 

950

945

940

955

960

965

935

930

930

930

920

925

920

932

933

934

929930

931

932 931933

935

950

960

965

955

970

918

925

945

940

935

928

945

940

935

931

932

933

934 934 933 932 931

925

926

927
928929

JOHNSON DRIVE

R
O

E

SHAWNEE MISSION

R
O

ELAN
D

 D
R

IV
E

MARTWAY ST.

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ROCK CREEK TRAIL

RAMP DOWN

R
O

C
K C

R
E

E
K

 TR
AIL

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

CARTS

DN

DN

DN

LEVEL 5-6 OFFICE

LEVEL 5-7 HOTEL

HOTEL DROP OFF

OPEN TO BELOW

O
P

E
N

 T
O

 B
E

LO
W

OPEN TO BELOW

MECHW/D

D
W

MECH W/D

D
W

DW

MECH MECHW/D

D
W

DW

MECHMECHW/D

D
W

DW

MECHMECH W/D

D
W

UP

DN

CLUBHOUSE

THEATER

M
E

C
H

W
/D

DW

MECH W/D

D
W

D
W

M
E

C
H

D
W

M
E

C
H

M
E

C
H

W
/D

DW

M
E

C
H

W
/D

DW

D
W

M
E

C
H

M
E

C
H

W
/D

DW

D
W

M
E

C
H

D
W

M
E

C
H

MECH W/D

D
W

D
W

M
E

C
H

D
W

M
E

C
H

D
W

M
E

C
H

M
E

C
H

W
/D

DW

M
E

C
H

W
/D

DW

D
W

M
E

C
H

MECH W/D

D
W

MECHW/D

D
W

DW

MECH

DW

MECH MECH W/D

D
W

MECHW/D

D
W

DW

MECH

DW

MECH

DW

MECH

PARKING DECK BELOW

14

25

PRIVATE ELEVATOR

PRIVATE STAIR

PRIVATE CIRCULATION

PUBLIC STAIR

PUBLIC CIRCULATION

HORIZONTAL / VERTICAL CIRCULATION LEGEND

1

1

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

M/E/P:
PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

 

01 SITE PLAN - LEVEL 5-7 

 

0" 25' 50' 100' PDP-A065
CIRCULATION DIAGRAM (LEVEL 5-7)PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL 

MAY 16, 2016



RETAIL

RESIDENTIAL

OFFICE

HOTEL

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2016 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

01 STACKING DIAGRAM 

 

04.29.15

PDP-A001
STACKING DIAGRAMS

02 STACKING DIAGRAM 

 



C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

BIAP2AP2

BIAP2AP2

BIAP3AP3

B
X

B
X

A
2

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
R

X
X

H
A

Z
X

L
H

A
Z

X
L

JC
XL

JC1
XL

B
X

B
X

W
D

D

SSLRXL

AM PHL

BAA

CLDESKCL CL

C
L

B
X

BAD
X

BAD
X

B
X

B
X

C
XL

C
XL

B B B

MD9

C
L

CL CLCL

B

DDDD

B

D
D

P
U

M
P

 R
O

O
M

INVOICING

U
P

C
/U

P
S

T
R

A
IN

IN
G

C
B

L PERSONNEL

AD OFFICE

M
E

N

W
O

M
E

N

FA
M

IL
Y

TO
IL

E
T

B
R

E
A

K
R

O
O

M

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

FO
O

D
TE

N
A

N
T

TE
N

A
N

T

M
E

N

A
LC

O
V

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

S
TO

R
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S

O
F

F
IC

E

C
O

U
N

TI
N

G

C
A

S
H

E
D

C
 2

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
P

T
IC

A
L

S
A

LE
S

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
TS

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

R
E

C
E

P
TI

O
N

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
S

P
R

E
TE

S
T

W
A

IT
IN

G

E
X

A
M

 #
2

E
X

A
M

 #
1

A
P

 O
F

F
IC

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

TO
IL

E
T

S
A

LE
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
H

E
C

K
O

U
T

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

42
N

C
R

R
15

1

G
M

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

X
X

X
 S

F
G

A
TE

D
 W

H
IT

E
 B

O
X

X
,X

X
X

 S
F

G
A

TE
D

 W
H

IT
E

 B
O

X

D
R

Y
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

P
R

E
P

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
C

O
O

LE
R

P
O

U
LT

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R
R

O
T

IS
S

E
R

IE
P

R
E

P
D

E
LI

 P
R

E
P

D
E

LI
FR

E
E

ZE
R

DELI COOLER

B
A

K
E

R
Y

FR
E

E
ZE

R

D
E

LI
 U

TI
LI

TY

B
A

K
E

R
Y

P
R

E
P

B
A

K
E

R
Y

B
A

K
E

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
S

A
LE

S

IC
E

 C
R

E
A

M
FR

E
E

ZE
R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
FR

E
E

ZE
R

M
E

A
T

U
TI

LI
TY

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

M
E

A
T

C
O

O
LE

R

E
D

C
 #

4

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

LI
C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
S

E
R

V
IC

E

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

R
E

T
U

R
N

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

DD G

D
D

G
D

DG
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
U

U
G

U
U

G
U

U
G

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL E

GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J G
L

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

U
UG

UUG

S
A

LA
D

 P
R

E
P

D
A

IR
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

WARRENTY
DESK

W
O

M
E

N

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

A
LC

O
V

E

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

O
R

G
A

N
IC

W
A

S
TE

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L
C

A
G

E

B
X

E
D

C

FN

X
LS

FN

X
LS

B

B

X
B

X

B

X

B

X

D
F

X
L

D
F

X
L

B

X

B

X

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

FN
FN

A
M

S
S

L

P
H

L

R
X

L

B

X

B

X

B

X

X
L

C

FLG

X XL

C

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

R
X

C

XL

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

B

XB

X

B
P

X

B
P

X

X
L

G

X

D
R

D

X

A
2

X

A
2

X

B
P

X

A

X

B
P

X

A

X

X

FB

X

FB

A

X

A

A
2

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

X

B

X

B

X

BB

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X
X

A
2

X

A
2

B

X

B

X

B

X

G
A

X

G
A

G
A

X

G
A

X

B

X

X
L

C

X

G

X

G

G
R

D

X

B

X

X

G
A

X

D

X

X

G
A

X

G
A

X

G
A

D
D

X

FB
D

B
X

"G
R

O
S

S
 L

E
A

S
A

B
LE

 A
R

E
A

" P
E

R
 W

M
 G

U
ID

E
LI

N
E

 =
 1

54
,4

69
 S

F

O
U

TS
ID

E
LI

V
E

 G
O

O
D

S

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

90'-1"

22'-2"

JOHNSON DRIVE

RO
E

SHAWNEE MISSION

MARTWAY ST.

R
O

EL
A

N
D

 D
R

IV
E

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2016 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

02 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - RETAIL / RESIDENTIAL

01 SITE PLAN 

 

0" 50' 100' 200'

04.29.15

PDP-A010
ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTES

03 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - RETAIL / RESIDENTIAL 

04 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - RETAIL / RESIDENTIAL 



C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

BIAP2AP2

BIAP2AP2

BIAP3AP3

B
X

B
X

A
2

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
R

X
X

H
A

Z
X

L
H

A
Z

X
L

JC
XL

JC1
XL

B
X

B
X

W
D

D

SSLRXL

AM PHL

BAA

CLDESKCL CL

C
L

B
X

BAD
X

BAD
X

B
X

B
X

C
XL

C
XL

B B B

MD9

C
L

CL CLCL

B

DDDD

B

D
D

P
U

M
P

 R
O

O
M

INVOICING

U
P

C
/U

P
S

T
R

A
IN

IN
G

C
B

L PERSONNEL

AD OFFICE

M
E

N

W
O

M
E

N

FA
M

IL
Y

TO
IL

E
T

B
R

E
A

K
R

O
O

M

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

FO
O

D
TE

N
A

N
T

TE
N

A
N

T

M
E

N

A
LC

O
V

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

S
TO

R
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S

O
F

F
IC

E

C
O

U
N

TI
N

G

C
A

S
H

E
D

C
 2

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
P

T
IC

A
L

S
A

LE
S

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
TS

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

R
E

C
E

P
TI

O
N

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
S

P
R

E
TE

S
T

W
A

IT
IN

G

E
X

A
M

 #
2

E
X

A
M

 #
1

A
P

 O
F

F
IC

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

TO
IL

E
T

S
A

LE
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
H

E
C

K
O

U
T

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

42
N

C
R

R
15

1

G
M

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

X
X

X
 S

F
G

A
TE

D
 W

H
IT

E
 B

O
X

X
,X

X
X

 S
F

G
A

TE
D

 W
H

IT
E

 B
O

X

D
R

Y
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

P
R

E
P

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
C

O
O

LE
R

P
O

U
LT

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R
R

O
T

IS
S

E
R

IE
P

R
E

P
D

E
LI

 P
R

E
P

D
E

LI
FR

E
E

ZE
R

DELI COOLER

B
A

K
E

R
Y

FR
E

E
ZE

R

D
E

LI
 U

TI
LI

TY

B
A

K
E

R
Y

P
R

E
P

B
A

K
E

R
Y

B
A

K
E

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
S

A
LE

S

IC
E

 C
R

E
A

M
FR

E
E

ZE
R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
FR

E
E

ZE
R

M
E

A
T

U
TI

LI
TY

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

M
E

A
T

C
O

O
LE

R

E
D

C
 #

4

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

LI
C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
S

E
R

V
IC

E

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

R
E

T
U

R
N

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

DD G

D
D

G
D

DG
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
U

U
G

U
U

G
U

U
G

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL E

GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J G
L

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

U
UG

UUG

S
A

LA
D

 P
R

E
P

D
A

IR
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

WARRENTY
DESK

W
O

M
E

N

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

A
LC

O
V

E

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

O
R

G
A

N
IC

W
A

S
TE

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L
C

A
G

E

B
X

E
D

C

FN

X
LS

FN

X
LS

B

B

X
B

X

B

X

B

X

D
F

X
L

D
F

X
L

B

X

B

X

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

FN
FN

A
M

S
S

L

P
H

L

R
X

L

B

X

B

X

B

X

X
L

C

FLG

X XL

C

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

R
X

C

XL

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

B

XB

X

B
P

X

B
P

X

X
L

G

X

D
R

D

X

A
2

X

A
2

X

B
P

X

A

X

B
P

X

A

X

X

FB

X

FB

A

X

A

A
2

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

X

B

X

B

X

BB

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X
X

A
2

X

A
2

B

X

B

X

B

X

G
A

X

G
A

G
A

X

G
A

X

B

X

X
L

C

X

G

X

G

G
R

D

X

B

X

X

G
A

X

D

X

X

G
A

X

G
A

X

G
A

D
D

X

FB
D

B
X

"G
R

O
S

S
 L

E
A

S
A

B
LE

 A
R

E
A

" P
E

R
 W

M
 G

U
ID

E
LI

N
E

 =
 1

54
,4

69
 S

F

O
U

TS
ID

E
LI

V
E

 G
O

O
D

S

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

90'-1"

22'-2"

JOHNSON DRIVE

RO
E

SHAWNEE MISSION

MARTWAY ST.

R
O

EL
A

N
D

 D
R

IV
E

1

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2016 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

02 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - HOTEL

01 SITE PLAN 

 

0" 50' 100' 200'

04.29.15

PDP-A011
ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTES

03 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - HOTEL

04 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - HOTEL



C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

BIAP2AP2

BIAP2AP2

BIAP3AP3

B
X

B
X

A
2

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
R

X
X

H
A

Z
X

L
H

A
Z

X
L

JC
XL

JC1
XL

B
X

B
X

W
D

D

SSLRXL

AM PHL

BAA

CLDESKCL CL

C
L

B
X

BAD
X

BAD
X

B
X

B
X

C
XL

C
XL

B B B

MD9

C
L

CL CLCL

B

DDDD

B

D
D

P
U

M
P

 R
O

O
M

INVOICING

U
P

C
/U

P
S

T
R

A
IN

IN
G

C
B

L PERSONNEL

AD OFFICE

M
E

N

W
O

M
E

N

FA
M

IL
Y

TO
IL

E
T

B
R

E
A

K
R

O
O

M

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

FO
O

D
TE

N
A

N
T

TE
N

A
N

T

M
E

N

A
LC

O
V

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

S
TO

R
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S

O
F

F
IC

E

C
O

U
N

TI
N

G

C
A

S
H

E
D

C
 2

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
P

T
IC

A
L

S
A

LE
S

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
TS

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

R
E

C
E

P
TI

O
N

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
S

P
R

E
TE

S
T

W
A

IT
IN

G

E
X

A
M

 #
2

E
X

A
M

 #
1

A
P

 O
F

F
IC

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

TO
IL

E
T

S
A

LE
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
H

E
C

K
O

U
T

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

42
N

C
R

R
15

1

G
M

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

X
X

X
 S

F
G

A
TE

D
 W

H
IT

E
 B

O
X

X
,X

X
X

 S
F

G
A

TE
D

 W
H

IT
E

 B
O

X

D
R

Y
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

P
R

E
P

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
C

O
O

LE
R

P
O

U
LT

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R
R

O
T

IS
S

E
R

IE
P

R
E

P
D

E
LI

 P
R

E
P

D
E

LI
FR

E
E

ZE
R

DELI COOLER

B
A

K
E

R
Y

FR
E

E
ZE

R

D
E

LI
 U

TI
LI

TY

B
A

K
E

R
Y

P
R

E
P

B
A

K
E

R
Y

B
A

K
E

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
S

A
LE

S

IC
E

 C
R

E
A

M
FR

E
E

ZE
R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
FR

E
E

ZE
R

M
E

A
T

U
TI

LI
TY

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

M
E

A
T

C
O

O
LE

R

E
D

C
 #

4

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

LI
C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
S

E
R

V
IC

E

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

R
E

T
U

R
N

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

DD G

D
D

G
D

DG
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
U

U
G

U
U

G
U

U
G

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL E

GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J G
L

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

U
UG

UUG

S
A

LA
D

 P
R

E
P

D
A

IR
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

WARRENTY
DESK

W
O

M
E

N

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

A
LC

O
V

E

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

O
R

G
A

N
IC

W
A

S
TE

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L
C

A
G

E

B
X

E
D

C

FN

X
LS

FN

X
LS

B

B

X
B

X

B

X

B

X

D
F

X
L

D
F

X
L

B

X

B

X

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

FN
FN

A
M

S
S

L

P
H

L

R
X

L

B

X

B

X

B

X

X
L

C

FLG

X XL

C

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

R
X

C

XL

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

B

XB

X

B
P

X

B
P

X

X
L

G

X

D
R

D

X

A
2

X

A
2

X

B
P

X

A

X

B
P

X

A

X

X

FB

X

FB

A

X

A

A
2

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

X

B

X

B

X

BB

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X
X

A
2

X

A
2

B

X

B

X

B

X

G
A

X

G
A

G
A

X

G
A

X

B

X

X
L

C

X

G

X

G

G
R

D

X

B

X

X

G
A

X

D

X

X

G
A

X

G
A

X

G
A

D
D

X

FB
D

B
X

"G
R

O
S

S
 L

E
A

S
A

B
LE

 A
R

E
A

" P
E

R
 W

M
 G

U
ID

E
LI

N
E

 =
 1

54
,4

69
 S

F

O
U

TS
ID

E
LI

V
E

 G
O

O
D

S

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

90'-1"

22'-2"

JOHNSON DRIVE

RO
E

SHAWNEE MISSION

MARTWAY ST.

R
O

EL
A

N
D

 D
R

IV
E

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2016 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

04.29.15

PDP-A012
BUILDING ELEVATIONS

02 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - OFFICE

03 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - OFFICE

04 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - OFFICE

01 SITE PLAN 

 

0" 50' 100' 200'



C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

BIAP2AP2

BIAP2AP2

BIAP3AP3

B
X

B
X

A
2

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
R

X
X

H
A

Z
X

L
H

A
Z

X
L

JC
XL

JC1
XL

B
X

B
X

W
D

D

SSLRXL

AM PHL

BAA

CLDESKCL CL

C
L

B
X

BAD
X

BAD
X

B
X

B
X

C
XL

C
XL

B B B

MD9

C
L

CL CLCL

B

DDDD

B

D
D

P
U

M
P

 R
O

O
M

INVOICING

U
P

C
/U

P
S

T
R

A
IN

IN
G

C
B

L PERSONNEL

AD OFFICE

M
E

N

W
O

M
E

N

FA
M

IL
Y

TO
IL

E
T

B
R

E
A

K
R

O
O

M

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

FO
O

D
TE

N
A

N
T

TE
N

A
N

T

M
E

N

A
LC

O
V

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

S
TO

R
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S

O
F

F
IC

E

C
O

U
N

TI
N

G

C
A

S
H

E
D

C
 2

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
P

T
IC

A
L

S
A

LE
S

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
TS

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

R
E

C
E

P
TI

O
N

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
S

P
R

E
TE

S
T

W
A

IT
IN

G

E
X

A
M

 #
2

E
X

A
M

 #
1

A
P

 O
F

F
IC

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

TO
IL

E
T

S
A

LE
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
H

E
C

K
O

U
T

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

42
N

C
R

R
15

1

G
M

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

X
X

X
 S

F
G

A
TE

D
 W

H
IT

E
 B

O
X

X
,X

X
X

 S
F

G
A

TE
D

 W
H

IT
E

 B
O

X

D
R

Y
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

P
R

E
P

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
C

O
O

LE
R

P
O

U
LT

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R
R

O
T

IS
S

E
R

IE
P

R
E

P
D

E
LI

 P
R

E
P

D
E

LI
FR

E
E

ZE
R

DELI COOLER

B
A

K
E

R
Y

FR
E

E
ZE

R

D
E

LI
 U

TI
LI

TY

B
A

K
E

R
Y

P
R

E
P

B
A

K
E

R
Y

B
A

K
E

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
S

A
LE

S

IC
E

 C
R

E
A

M
FR

E
E

ZE
R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
FR

E
E

ZE
R

M
E

A
T

U
TI

LI
TY

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

M
E

A
T

C
O

O
LE

R

E
D

C
 #

4

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

LI
C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
S

E
R

V
IC

E

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

R
E

T
U

R
N

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

DD G

D
D

G
D

DG
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
U

U
G

U
U

G
U

U
G

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL E

GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J G
L

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

U
UG

UUG

S
A

LA
D

 P
R

E
P

D
A

IR
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

WARRENTY
DESK

W
O

M
E

N

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

A
LC

O
V

E

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

O
R

G
A

N
IC

W
A

S
TE

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L
C

A
G

E

B
X

E
D

C

FN

X
LS

FN

X
LS

B

B

X
B

X

B

X

B

X

D
F

X
L

D
F

X
L

B

X

B

X

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

FN
FN

A
M

S
S

L

P
H

L

R
X

L

B

X

B

X

B

X

X
L

C

FLG

X XL

C

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

R
X

C

XL

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

B

XB

X

B
P

X

B
P

X

X
L

G

X

D
R

D

X

A
2

X

A
2

X

B
P

X

A

X

B
P

X

A

X

X

FB

X

FB

A

X

A

A
2

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

X

B

X

B

X

BB

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X
X

A
2

X

A
2

B

X

B

X

B

X

G
A

X

G
A

G
A

X

G
A

X

B

X

X
L

C

X

G

X

G

G
R

D

X

B

X

X

G
A

X

D

X

X

G
A

X

G
A

X

G
A

D
D

X

FB
D

B
X

"G
R

O
S

S
 L

E
A

S
A

B
LE

 A
R

E
A

" P
E

R
 W

M
 G

U
ID

E
LI

N
E

 =
 1

54
,4

69
 S

F

O
U

TS
ID

E
LI

V
E

 G
O

O
D

S

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

90'-1"

22'-2"

JOHNSON DRIVE

RO
E

SHAWNEE MISSION

MARTWAY ST.

R
O

EL
A

N
D

 D
R

IV
E

1

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2016 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

04.29.15

PDP-A013
BUILDING ELEVATIONS

02 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - COURTYARD

03 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - COURTYARD

04 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - COURTYARD

01 SITE PLAN 

 

0" 50' 100' 200'



C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

ACCESS AISLE

ACCESS AISLE

C
A

R
TS

C
A

R
TS

T

BIAP2AP2

BIAP2AP2

BIAP3AP3

B
X

B
X

A
2

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
B

X
R

X
X

H
A

Z
X

L
H

A
Z

X
L

JC
XL

JC1
XL

B
X

B
X

W
D

D

SSLRXL

AM PHL

BAA

CLDESKCL CL

C
L

B
X

BAD
X

BAD
X

B
X

B
X

C
XL

C
XL

B B B

MD9

C
L

CL CLCL

B

DDDD

B

D
D

P
U

M
P

 R
O

O
M

INVOICING

U
P

C
/U

P
S

T
R

A
IN

IN
G

C
B

L PERSONNEL

AD OFFICE

M
E

N

W
O

M
E

N

FA
M

IL
Y

TO
IL

E
T

B
R

E
A

K
R

O
O

M

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

FO
O

D
TE

N
A

N
T

TE
N

A
N

T

M
E

N

A
LC

O
V

E

M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

S
TO

R
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
S

O
F

F
IC

E

C
O

U
N

TI
N

G

C
A

S
H

E
D

C
 2

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

C
A

R
T

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
P

T
IC

A
L

S
A

LE
S

A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
TS

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

R
E

C
E

P
TI

O
N

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
S

P
R

E
TE

S
T

W
A

IT
IN

G

E
X

A
M

 #
2

E
X

A
M

 #
1

A
P

 O
F

F
IC

E

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

TO
IL

E
T

S
A

LE
S

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
H

E
C

K
O

U
T

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

42
N

C
R

R
15

1

G
M

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

X
X

X
 S

F
G

A
TE

D
 W

H
IT

E
 B

O
X

X
,X

X
X

 S
F

G
A

TE
D

 W
H

IT
E

 B
O

X

D
R

Y
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

P
R

E
P

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
C

O
O

LE
R

P
O

U
LT

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R
R

O
T

IS
S

E
R

IE
P

R
E

P
D

E
LI

 P
R

E
P

D
E

LI
FR

E
E

ZE
R

DELI COOLER

B
A

K
E

R
Y

FR
E

E
ZE

R

D
E

LI
 U

TI
LI

TY

B
A

K
E

R
Y

P
R

E
P

B
A

K
E

R
Y

B
A

K
E

R
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
S

A
LE

S

IC
E

 C
R

E
A

M
FR

E
E

ZE
R

G
R

O
C

E
R

Y
FR

E
E

ZE
R

M
E

A
T

U
TI

LI
TY

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

M
E

A
T

C
O

O
LE

R

E
D

C
 #

4

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

LI
C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
S

E
R

V
IC

E

S
IT

E
 T

O
S

TO
R

E

R
E

T
U

R
N

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

DD G

D
D

G
D

DG
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
D

D
G

D
D

G
U

U
G

U
U

G
U

U
G

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL E

GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
GXL

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J G
L

E
G

X
L

E
G

X
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

J
G

L
J

G
L

U
UG

UUG

S
A

LA
D

 P
R

E
P

D
A

IR
Y

C
O

O
LE

R

IC
E

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

A
LC

O
V

E

WARRENTY
DESK

W
O

M
E

N

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

A
LC

O
V

E

H
A

LL
W

A
Y

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

O
R

G
A

N
IC

W
A

S
TE

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L
C

A
G

E

B
X

E
D

C

FN

X
LS

FN

X
LS

B

B

X
B

X

B

X

B

X

D
F

X
L

D
F

X
L

B

X

B

X

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

FN
FN

A
M

S
S

L

P
H

L

R
X

L

B

X

B

X

B

X

X
L

C

FLG

X XL

C

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

R
X

C

XL

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

A

X

B

XB

X

B
P

X

B
P

X

X
L

G

X

D
R

D

X

A
2

X

A
2

X

B
P

X

A

X

B
P

X

A

X

X

FB

X

FB

A

X

A

A
2

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X

X

B

X

B

X

BB

B

X

B

X

B

X

B

X
X

A
2

X

A
2

B

X

B

X

B

X

G
A

X

G
A

G
A

X

G
A

X

B

X

X
L

C

X

G

X

G

G
R

D

X

B

X

X

G
A

X

D

X

X

G
A

X

G
A

X

G
A

D
D

X

FB
D

B
X

"G
R

O
S

S
 L

E
A

S
A

B
LE

 A
R

E
A

" P
E

R
 W

M
 G

U
ID

E
LI

N
E

 =
 1

54
,4

69
 S

F

O
U

TS
ID

E
LI

V
E

 G
O

O
D

S

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

90'-1"

22'-2"

JOHNSON DRIVE

RO
E

SHAWNEE MISSION

MARTWAY ST.

R
O

EL
A

N
D

 D
R

IV
E

1

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2016 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

04.29.15

PDP-A014
BUILDING ELEVATIONS

02 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - PARKING GARAGE

03 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE  - PARKING GARAGE

04 ARCHITECTURAL VIGNETTE - PARKING GARAGE

01 SITE PLAN 

 

0" 50' 100' 200'



MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2016 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

01 WEST SITE ELEVATION 

 

PDP-A200
BUILDING ELEVATIONS

02 NORTH SITE ELEVATION

 

03 SOUTH SITE ELEVATION

FROM ROELAND DRIVE

FROM JOHNSON DRIVE

FROM SHAWNEE MISSION

T/O PARAPET
984'0"

LEVEL 4
969'-0"

LEVEL 3
958'-0"

LEVEL 2
947'-0"

LEVEL 1
930'-0" - 932'-0"

T/O PARAPET
984'0"

LEVEL 4
969'-0"

LEVEL 3
958'-0"

LEVEL 2
947'-0"

LEVEL 1
930'-0" - 932'-6"

LEVEL 1 (HOTEL)
930'-0"

LEVEL 2 (HOTEL)
947'-0"

LEVEL 3 (HOTEL)
959'-0"

LEVEL 4 (HOTEL)
976'-6"

LEVEL 5 (HOTEL)
987'-6"

LEVEL 6 (HOTEL)
1000'-0"

LEVEL 7 (HOTEL)
1011'-0"

T/O PARAPET (HOTEL)
1023'-0"

LEVEL 3 (OFFICE)
958'-0"

LEVEL 4 (OFFICE)
972'-0"

LEVEL 5 (OFFICE)
986'-0"

LEVEL 6 (OFFICE)
1000'-0"

LEVEL 1
929'-0"

LEVEL 2 (RESIDENTIAL)
954'-0"

LEVEL 1
929'-0"

T/O PARAPET (RESIDENTIAL)
984'-0"

04 EAST SITE ELEVATION

FROM ROE AVENUE

T/O PARAPET (WALMART)
956'-0"

1

T/O PARAPET (OFFICE)
1016'-0"

1

LEVEL 3 (RESIDENTIAL)
965'-0"

T/O PARAPET (RESIDENTIAL)
980'-0"

1

1

1



FIBER CEMENT BOARD CLADDING

CORRUGATED METAL CLADDING

PERFORATED METAL SCREEN

1

1

MISSION GATEWAY

510 aveneida cesar e chavez  kansas city  missouri  64108  p 816 474 3838  f 816 474 0836  www.eldoradoarchitects.com

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RESUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2016 M/E/P:

PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST. 
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174

01 MATERIAL STUDIES - RESIDENTIAL / HOTEL / OFFICE 

 

04.29.15

PDP-A800
MATERIAL STUDIES

02 MATERIAL STUDIES - PARKING GARAGE

 



C

C C

C
C

C

C
C

C

C C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C C C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C CC
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

LEGEND

JOHNSON DRIVE

SH
AW

NEE
 M

IS
SI

ON

R
O

E

ROELAND DRIVE

BUILDING A
RETAIL/RESIDENTIAL

153,543 SF

BUILDING E

RETAIL

19,405 SF

BUILDING D

OFFICE/RETAIL

16,047 SF

BUILDING C

RETAIL

19,774 SF

BUILDING B

HOTEL

23,500 SF

VICINITY MAP

R

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - REVISED SUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2015

GENERAL LAYOUT PLAN PD-C10001

MARTWAY

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Line

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Line

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon



C

C C

C
C

C

C
C

C

C C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C C C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C CC
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

LEGEND

JOHNSON DRIVE

SH
AW

NEE
 M

IS
SI

ON

R
O

E

ROELAND DRIVE

BUILDING A
RETAIL/RESIDENTIAL

153,543 SF

BUILDING E

RETAIL

19,405 SF

BUILDING D

OFFICE/RETAIL

16,047 SF

BUILDING C

RETAIL

19,774 SF

BUILDING B

HOTEL

23,500 SF

VICINITY MAP

R

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - REVISED SUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2015

GENERAL LAYOUT TOP PLAN PD-C10102

MARTWAY

BU
ILD

IN
G F

OFF
IC

E
19

,40
0 S

F

PARKING
GARAGE

PARKING
GARAGE

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Line

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
Line

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Ellipse

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon



C

C C

C
C

C

C
C

C

C C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C C C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
CC

C
C

C
C

C

C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

LEGEND

JOHNSON DRIVE

SH
AW

NEE
 M

IS
SI

ON

PA
RKW

AY
 (H

W
Y 

69
)

R
O

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E

ROELAND DRIVE

BUILDING A
RETAIL/RESIDENTIAL

FFE 929.00

BUILDING E

RETAIL

FFE=932.50

BUILDING D

OFFICE/RETAIL

FFE 931.00

BUILDING C

RETAIL

FFE 931.00

BUILDING B

HOTEL

FFE 930

VICINITY MAP

FFE=931.50

FFE=932.50

FFE 932.50

FFE=932.50

FFE=932.50

R

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - REVISED SUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2015

GRADING PLAN PD-C20002

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Rectangle

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
PolyLine

pmoss
Polygon

pmoss
Polygon



C

C
C

C
C

C C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

LEGEND

JO
H

N
SO

N
 D

R
IVE

ROE AVENUE
SHAWNEE MISSION

PARKWAY (U.S. HWY 56)

BUILDING A
RETAIL/RESIDENTIAL

VICINITY MAP

TRUCK MOVEMENT

BUILDING B
HOTEL SERVICES

BUILDING C
SMALL OFFICE/

RETAIL

BUILDING D
SMALL OFFICE/

RETAIL

BUILDING E
SMALL RETAIL

R

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - REVISED SUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2015

TURNING TEMPLATE PD-C30003



C

C C

C
C

C

C
C

C

C C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C C C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C CC
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C
C

C

C
C

JOHNSON DRIVE

SH
AW

NEE
 M

IS
SI

ON

PA
RKW

AY

R
O

E
 A

V
E

ROELAND DRIVE

MISSION GATEWAYM/E/P:
PKMR ENGINEERS
13300 W. 98TH ST.
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215
TEL: 913-492-2400
FAX: 913-492-2437

STRUCTURAL:
BOB D. CAMPBELL & CO., INC.
4338 BELLEVIEW AVE.
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI 64111
TEL: 816-531-4144
FAX: 816-531-8572

CONSULTANTS:
CIVIL / LANDSCAPE:
OLSSON ASSOCIATES
7301 WEST 133RD ST., SUITE 200
OVERLAND PARK, KANSAS 66213
TEL: 913-381-1170
FAX: 913-381-1174 R

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - REVISED SUBMITTAL
MAY 16, 2015

LANDSCAPE PLAN PD-L100

BUILDING A
RETAIL

BUILDING E

RETAIL

BUILDING D

OFFICE/RETAIL

BUILDING C

RETAIL

BUILDING B

HOTEL





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2017 Recommended Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Over the last several months, budget discussions have occurred at City Council Committee meetings and 
work sessions, and we are now ready to consider and approve the City of Mission’s 2017 Budget. The City’s 
budget covers the period of January 1st through December 31st. The entire budget is made up of more than 
a dozen individual funds totaling $23.7 million for 2017. 
 
Each year we identify and account for potential threats and opportunities impacting the budget.  These may 
come from economic trends, legislative action, the public, the City Council, or professional staff.  Issues 
discussed with the 2017 Budget included:   
 

● Balancing service delivery/operating needs with infrastructure investment 
● Appropriately funding facility and equipment needs 
● Employee health/welfare and retirement expenses that outpace inflation 
● Implementing more aggressive cost recovery goals for the Community Center 
● Leveraging redevelopment opportunities citywide 
● Managing legislative impacts, including a property tax lid effective January 1, 2017 

 
 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 
 
General Fund 
 
The City’s General Fund accounts for core municipal functions and services such as Public Safety, Public 
Works, Parks & Recreation, and Administration. This is an operating budget, focused primarily on revenues 
coming and going in a particular fiscal year. Total estimated revenues in the 2017 General Fund budget are 
$11.5 million, an increase of 5.09% over 2016.  
 

 

1



The 2017 Recommended Budget does not include any increases in fees or taxes collected by the City.  Of 
the total estimated mill rate (18.225 mills), 11.225 mills will support General Fund operations, and revenue 
generated by the remaining 7 mills ($925,000 est.) will be transferred to the Capital Improvement Fund to 
support the street maintenance program. 
 
2017 General Fund expenditures are estimated to increase 8.38% from the 2016 Budget, including 
transfers.  The primary expense drivers are capital equipment purchases and leases, which increased as a 
result of deferred replacement from prior years.   
 

 
 
Personnel costs are budgeted at $6.58 million, and represent approximately 60% of the total General Fund                               
budget. The Recommended Budget includes sixty-eight (68) full-time employees, no increase over the                         
previous year. Contractual service and commodity expenses increased by approximately 4%. Capital                       
expenditures reflect a more significant increase year over year as Departments “catch up” with deferred                             
equipment replacement. The 2017 budget includes a transfer from the General Fund to the Capital                             
Improvement Fund in the amount of $925,000 for street maintenance, as well as a transfer ($85,000) to                                 
subsidize a portion of the residential trash service contract.   
 
Community Investment Program (CIP) 
 
The City has taken conscious steps over the last 1012 years to address infrastructure challenges. 
Implementing dedicated revenue streams for capital infrastructure investment has allowed the City to make 
progress toward addressing identified needs. These revenue streams are used to support a multiyear 

2



Community Investment Program (CIP) focused around three primary program areas:  streets, stormwater 
and parks and recreation. Dedicated revenues are illustrated in the graph below. 
 

 
 
 
The goal of Mission’s 20172021 Community Investment Program (CIP) is to forecast future public 
improvements and facilities and to provide data concerning need, cost, timing, funding sources, budget 
impacts and alternatives. A CIP serves as a guide for the efficient and effective provision of public 
infrastructure facilities, outlining a schedule of capital projects for a fiveyear period of time.  
 
Several funds included in the City’s 2017 Recommended Budget support the CIP, including: 
 

Capital Improvement Fund Storm Drain Fund 
Transportation Fund Street Sales Tax Fund 
Special Highway Fund Parks Sales Tax Fund 
Special Parks Fund 

 
In addition, the Rock Creek Drainage District #1 and Rock Creek Drainage District #2 Funds help support 
stormwater projects and/or debt service included in the CIP.  Project plans in each program area are 
provided within the budget documents, and revenues and expenditures are included on the appropriate fund 
pages. 
 
The 5year CIP is intended to be fluid and flexible.  The first year of the plan reflects the recommended 
capital budget for 2017. The remaining four years represent a schedule and estimate of future capital needs 
that may be funded given adequate revenues.   
 
 
 

3



Other Funds 
 
The General Fund and the various funds that support the Community Investment Program make up the 
majority of the City’s total annual budget.  The other miscellaneous funds which are maintained and 
budgeted separately include:  Special Alcohol Fund, Solid Waste Utility Fund, Mission Convention and 
Visitors Bureau (MCVB) Fund, Mission Crossing TIF/CID Fund, and the Cornerstone Commons CID Fund. A 
description and purpose of each is provided on the individual fund pages. 
 

Summary 
 

Staff is pleased to recommend the enclosed 2017 Budget and 20172021 Community Investment Program 
(CIP).  The budget was developed with the goal of maintaining the City’s existing high quality service levels 
and sound financial position, while also minimizing the tax burden on citizens.  There are two resolutions on 
the Committee agenda for consideration, one for the budget and one for the CIP. Both outline and 
communicate the broader goals and policies objectives contained in each. 
 
Following review and discussion at the Committee meeting, a recommended budget will be forwarded onto 
the Council’s August 17 agenda for adoption. The City’s budget must be certified to the County Clerk by 
August 25. 

4



State of Kansas
City

2017

BUDGET SUMMARY

Proposed Budget 2017 Expenditures and Amount of 2016 Ad Valorem Tax establish the maximum limits of the 2017 budget.

Estimated Tax Rate is subject to change depending on the final assessed valuation.

Prior Year Actual for 2015 Current Year Estimate for 2016 Proposed Budget for 2017

Actual Actual Budget Authority Amount of 2016 Estimate

     FUND  Expenditures Tax Rate *  Expenditures Tax Rate * for Expenditures Ad Valorem Tax Tax Rate *

General 9,445,648 11.354 10,179,227 18.225 16,145,875 2,376,739 18.225

Debt Service               

Library               

Special Highway 300,811 200,000 300,000

TIF 254,975 187,000 175,000

Special Alcohol 51,331 45,000 80,000

Special Parks and Recreation 323,329 55,200 65,200

Mission Convention/Visitors Bureau 45,633 41,000 118,000

Street Salex Tax 753,398 720,870 672,045

Parks and Recreation Sales Tax 765,132 820,300 1,449,000

Stormwater Utility 2,712,275 2,624,319 2,877,300

Transportation Utility 885,226     

Solid Waste Utility 566,441 565,500 565,500

Capital Improvement 2,378,246 854,315 1,087,324

Cornerstone Commons CID   65,000 65,000

        

        

        

        

    

    

    

    

Totals 18,482,445 11.354 16,357,731 18.225 23,600,244 2376738.52 18.225

Less: Transfers 1,338,838 996,500 1,120,000

Net Expenditure 17,143,607 15,361,231 22,480,244

Total Tax Levied 1,330,506 2,215,969 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Assessed 

Valuation 117,200,455 121,589,183 130,410,618

Outstanding Indebtedness,

  January 1, 2014 2015 2016

G.O. Bonds 41,830,000 36,750,000 32,775,000

Revenue Bonds 0 0 0

Other 485,000 0 25,195,785

Lease Purchase Principal 164,814 251,073 427,506

     Total 42,479,814 37,001,073 58,398,291

  *Tax rates are expressed in mills

NOTICE OF BUDGET HEARING

City of Mission

will meet on August 3, 2016 at 6:30 PM at Mission City Hall, 6090 Woodson, Mission, KS 66202 for the purpose of hearing and

answering objections of taxpayers relating to the proposed use of all funds and the amount of ad valorem tax.

Detailed budget information is available at City Clerks's Office, Mission City Hall  and will be available at this hearing.

The governing body of 

Brian Scott 

City Official Title: Finance Director

5



State of Kansas
City

2017

BUDGET SUMMARY

Proposed Budget 2017 Expenditures and Amount of 2016 Ad Valorem Tax establish the maximum limits of the 2017 budget.

Estimated Tax Rate is subject to change depending on the final assessed valuation.

Prior Year Actual for 2015 Current Year Estimate for 2016 Proposed Budget for 2017

Actual Actual Budget Authority Amount of 2016 Estimate

     FUND  Expenditures Tax Rate *  Expenditures Tax Rate * for Expenditures Ad Valorem Tax Tax Rate *

General 3,800 10.499 3,500 10.499 6,791 4,457 10.500

Debt Service               

Library               

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

    

    

    

    

Totals 3,800 10.499 3,500 10.499 6,791 4457 10.500

Less: Transfers 3,800 3,500 3,000

Net Expenditure 0 0 3,791

Total Tax Levied 2,708 4,477 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Assessed 

Valuation 257,920 426,435 424,494

Outstanding Indebtedness,

  January 1, 2014 2015 2016

G.O. Bonds 0 0 0

Revenue Bonds 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0

Lease Purchase Principal 0 0 0

     Total 0 0 0

  *Tax rates are expressed in mills

Brian Scott 

City Official Title: Finance Director 

NOTICE OF BUDGET HEARING

Rock Creek Drainage District #1

will meet on August 3, 2016 at 6:30 PM at Mission City Hall, 6090 Woodson, Mission, Kansas 66202 for the purpose of hearing and

answering objections of taxpayers relating to the proposed use of all funds and the amount of ad valorem tax.

Detailed budget information is available at City Clerk's Office, Mission City Hall  and will be available at this hearing.

The governing body of 

6



State of Kansas
City

2017

BUDGET SUMMARY

Proposed Budget 2017 Expenditures and Amount of 2016 Ad Valorem Tax establish the maximum limits of the 2017 budget.

Estimated Tax Rate is subject to change depending on the final assessed valuation.

Prior Year Actual for 2015 Current Year Estimate for 2016 Proposed Budget for 2017

Actual Actual Budget Authority Amount of 2016 Estimate

     FUND  Expenditures Tax Rate *  Expenditures Tax Rate * for Expenditures Ad Valorem Tax Tax Rate *

General 78,000 10.500 75,000 10.500 99,240 87,380 10.500

Debt Service               

Library               

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

    

    

    

    

Totals 78,000 10.500 75,000 10.500 99,240 87380 10.500

Less: Transfers 78,000 75,000 85,000

Net Expenditure 0 0 14,240

Total Tax Levied 75,081 84,741 xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

Assessed 

Valuation 7,126,384 8,073,921 8,321,681

Outstanding Indebtedness,

  January 1, 2014 2015 2016

G.O. Bonds 0 0 0

Revenue Bonds 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0

Lease Purchase Principal 0 0 0

     Total 0 0 0

  *Tax rates are expressed in mills

Brian Scott 

City Official Title: Finance Director 

NOTICE OF BUDGET HEARING

Rock Creek Drainage District #2

will meet on August 3, 2016 at 6:30 PM  at Mission City Hall, 6090 Woodson, Mission, KS 66202 for the purpose of hearing and

answering objections of taxpayers relating to the proposed use of all funds and the amount of ad valorem tax.

Detailed budget information is available at City Clerk's Office, Mission City Hall  and will be available at this hearing.

The governing body of 

7



General Fund 

General Fund Summary

Revenue Detail 

General Fund Budget Totals by Expenditure Categories 

General Fund Budget Totals by Department 

Departments

General Overhead

Legislative 

Administration 

Municipal Court 

Neighborhood Services

Public Works 

Community Development 

Parks and Recreation - Mission Family Aquatic Center

Parks and Recreation - Sylvester Powell Jr. Community Center

Police 

Capital Project Funds 

Capital Improvement Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Storm Drain Fund

Transportation Fund

Street Sales Tax Fund

Parks Sales Tax Fund

Special Highway Fund

Special Alcohol Fund

Special Parks and Recreation Fund 

Solid Waste Fund

Mission Convention and Vistors Bureau Fund

Misson Crossing TIF/CID Fund

Cornernstone Commons CID Fund

Rock Creek Drainage District #1 Fund

Rock Creek Drainage District #2 Fund 

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

 Fund Structure 

8



Actual Budget Proposed % of Difference 

2015 2016 2017 2016 to 2017

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,341,433$            2,860,180$            2,811,988$            

REVENUES

Property Taxes 1,300,360$            1,335,000$            1,495,000$            11.99%

Property Taxes For Streets -                              833,000                 925,000                 11.04%

Motor Vehicle Taxes 159,066                 160,118                 243,500                 52.08%

Sales/Use Taxes 3,078,281              2,730,000              2,740,000              0.37%

Franchise Taxes 1,009,649              1,050,000              1,019,500              -2.90%

Licenses and Permits 143,010                 145,500                 150,650                 3.54%

Review/Plan Inspection Fees 247,902                 150,000                 200,000                 33.33%

Police Fines 964,828                 1,250,000              1,259,500              0.76%

Service Charges 510,404                 200,000                 167,350                 -16.33%

Pool Revenues 104,545                 107,000                 108,000                 0.93%

Community Center Revenue 1,780,144              1,793,125              2,020,625              12.69%

Intergovernmental Revenue 1,128,918              1,147,800              1,188,000              3.50%

Miscellaneous and Other 79,889                    117,000                 62,000                    -47.01%

TIF/CID Proceeds 42,527                    -                              -                              

Bond/Lease Proceeds 221,260                 -                              -                              

Transfers In 25,518                    -                              -                              

Total 10,796,303$          11,018,543$          11,579,125$          5.09%

EXPENSES 

Personnel Services 6,088,062$            6,412,650$            6,582,300$            2.65%

Contractual 2,464,837              2,677,275              2,821,825              5.40%

Commodities 398,717                 488,300                 470,450                 -3.66%

Capital Outlay 414,167                 382,200                 551,000                 44.17%

Debt Service 79,865                    188,310                 284,000                 50.82%

TIF CID Payment 8,567                      -                              -                              

Contingency/Reserve 178,340                 -                              250,000                 

Sub Total for Expenses 9,632,556$            10,148,735$          10,959,575$          7.99%

Transfers Out 

Stormwater  Utility 560,000$               -$                            -$                            

Capital Improvement Fund -                              833,000                 925,000                 

Solid Waste Fund 85,000                    85,000                    85,000                    

Sub Total for Transfer Out 645,000$               918,000$               1,010,000$            10.02%

Total for Expenses 10,277,556$          11,066,735$          11,969,575$          8.16%

DIFFERENCE 518,747$               (48,192)$                (390,450)$              

ENDING FUND BALANCE 2,860,180$            2,811,988$            2,421,538$            

Percentage of Fund Balance to Revenues 26% 26% 21%

City of Mission - General Fund Summary - 2017 Budget Year 

9



Actual Budget Proposed 

2015 2016 2017

Property Tax
Real Estate Tax (General Property Tax) 1,296,911            1,320,000            1,475,000            
Delinquent Real Estate Tax 3,449                   15,000                 20,000                 

Property Tax 1,300,360            1,335,000            1,495,000            

Property  Tax for Streets (7 Mills) -                           833,000               925,000               

Motor Vehicle Tax
Motor Vehicle Tax 156,487               158,291               240,000               
Recreational Vehicle Tax 315                      436                      500                      
Heavy Truck Tax 1,687                   1,391                   3,000                   
Rental Excise Tax -                           -                           -                           
Delinquent Personal Property Tax 577                      -                           -                           

Motor Vehicle Tax 159,066               160,118               243,500               

City Sales/Use Tax
City Sales Tax 2,163,877            2,200,000            2,200,000            
City Use Tax 914,404               530,000               540,000               

City Sales/Use Tax 3,078,281            2,730,000            2,740,000            

Franchise Tax
KCP&L 611,095               585,000               630,000               
KS Gas Service 212,333               255,000               200,000               
SBC Telephone 29,359                 51,000                 26,000                 
Sure West Telephone 6,872                   -                           4,000                   
AT&T (SBC) Video 60,392                 62,000                 64,000                 
Sure West Video 20,722                 22,000                 22,000                 
Time Warner Video 68,835                 75,000                 72,000                 
Google (New) 41                        -                           1,500                   

Franchise Tax 1,009,649            1,050,000            1,019,500            

Licenses and Permits
Occupational License 90,191                 90,000                 90,000                 
Public Works Permits 4,041                   3,500                   4,500                   
Rental License 29,792                 40,000                 35,000                 
Rental Inspection Fee 1,000                   -                           3,000                   
Tree Service License Fee 260                      -                           150                      
Sign Permit Fee 5,368                   2,500                   3,000                   
Land Use Fee 3,523                   1,500                   7,000                   
Liquor License 6,650                   5,000                   5,000                   
Operator/Solicitor/Massage License 2,185                   3,000                   3,000                   

Licenses and Permits 143,010                               145,500                 150,650 

Revenue Detail 

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

10



Actual Budget Proposed 

2015 2016 2017

Intergovernmental Revenue 

County Sales/Use Tax 
County Sales Tax 592,431               605,000               631,000               
County Use Tax 114,161               120,000               120,000               

County Sales/Use Tax 706,592               725,000               751,000               

County Sales/Use Tax - Jail
County Jail Sales Tax 147,226               153,000               151,000               
County Jail Use Tax 28,540                 32,000                 31,000                 

County Sales/Use Tax - Jail 175,766               185,000               182,000               

County Sales/Use Tax - Pub Safety
County Public Safety Sales Tax 147,224               153,000               151,000               
County Public Safety Use Tax 28,520                 32,000                 31,000                 

County Sales/Use Tax - Pub Safety 175,744               185,000               182,000               

Alcohol Tax 57,129                 42,800                 58,000                 

Other Intergovernmental Revenue 13,687                 10,000                 15,000                 

Total for Intergovernmental 1,128,918            1,147,800            1,188,000            

Plan Review/Inspection Fees
JoCo Building Permit Fees 164,142               98,000                 125,000               
JoCo Plan Review Fees 83,760                 52,000                 75,000                 

Jo Co Plan Review/Inspection Fees 247,902               150,000               200,000               

Police Fines
Fines 909,388               1,200,000            1,200,000            
Parking Fines 5,006                   4,000                   7,000                   
Alarm Fines 425                      500                      500                      
Police Dept. Lab Fees 1,210                   -                           500                      
Fuel Assessment Fees 33,504                 35,000                 35,000                 
ADA Accessibility Fees 8,556                   8,500                   9,000                   
Motion Fees 6,440                   1,500                   7,000                   
Expungent Fees 300                      500                      500                      
Court Appointed Attorney -                           -                           -                           

Police Fines 964,828               1,250,000            1,259,500            

Service Charges 
Court Costs 126,898               121,000               130,000               
On Line Convenience 4,017                   5,000                   4,000                   
Charge for Services -                           -                           -                           
Animal License -                           -                           100                      
Reimbursed Expenses 369,345               62,000                 20,000                 
NEAC Administrative Cost Reimbursement 8,946                   7,250                   9,000                   
Nuisance Abatement Fees 1,199                   4,500                   4,000                   
Weed Abatement Fees -                           250                      250                      

Service Charges 510,404                               200,000                 167,350 

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Revenue Detail 

11



Actual Budget Proposed 

2015 2016 2017

Miscellaneous and Other 
Interest/Investments 1,937                   2,000                   2,000                   
Sale of Fixed Assets 46,000                 40,000                 40,000                 
Farmer's Market -                           -                           5,000                   
Miscellaneous 31,952                 75,000                 15,000                 

Miscellaneous and Other 79,889                 117,000               62,000                 

Pool Revenues 
Outdoor Pool Membership 33,563                 35,000                 35,000                 
Outdoor Pool Front Desk 38,375                 38,000                 40,000                 
Outdoor Pool Concessions 20,472                 20,000                 20,000                 
Outdoor Pool Program Fees 4,575                   5,000                   5,000                   
Outdoor Pool Rental 2,220                   3,000                   3,000                   
Super Pool Pass Revenue 5,340                   6,000                   5,000                   

Pool Revenue 104,545               107,000               108,000               

Community Center Revenue 
Community Center Membership 781,576               825,000               860,000               
Community Center Rental 212,183               205,000               285,000               
Community Center Program 287,694               340,000               350,000               
Community Center Daily Fees 212,089               141,000               225,000               
Community Center Misc. 10,507                 15,000                 10,000                 
Community Center Resale of Items 954                      1,000                   1,000                   
Community Center Sponsorship/Ads -                           3,000                   1,500                   
Morrow Trust Fund (940)                     -                           -                           
Mission Summer Program 222,956               210,000               235,000               
Mission Square PILOTS 53,125                 53,125                 53,125                 

Community Center Revenues 1,780,144            1,793,125            2,020,625            

TIF/CID Proceeds 
Mission Crossing TIF - Sales Tax -                           -                           -                           
Mission Crossing CID - Sales Tax (5,649)                  -                           -                           
Cornerstone Commons - CID Sales Tax 48,167                 -                           -                           
TDD Sales Tax 9                          -                           -                           

CID/TIF Proceeds 42,527                 -                           -                           

Bond/Lease Proceeds 
2015 Lease Purchase of Street Sweeper 221,260               -                           -                           
2016 Lease Purchase of Police Vehicles -                           -                           -                           

Bond/Lease Proceeds 221,260               -                           -                           

Transfers From Other Funds 
Parks Sales Tax 25,518                 -                           -                           

Transfers From Other Funds 25,518                 -                           -                           

           10,796,303            11,018,543            11,579,125 

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Revenue Detail 

12



Personnel 

Contractual 

Services Commodities Capital Outlay Debt Service Total 

General Overhead -$                      286,500$         43,750$           175,000$         77,000             582,250$         

Legislative 56,650$           112,650$         700$                 -$                      170,000$         

Administration 802,050$         32,400$           450$                 -$                      834,900$         

Municipal Court 291,000$         21,575$           8,000$             -$                      320,575$         

Neighborhood Services -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Public Works 839,400$         880,300$         153,350$         315,000$         57,500$           2,245,550$     

Community Development 265,200$         304,600$         4,500$             1,000$             575,300$         

Parks and Recreation 

Mission Aquatic Center 166,500$         59,700$           39,500$           -$                      265,700$         

Sylvester Powell Jr. Community Center 1,397,900$     700,250$         93,000$           -$                      2,191,150$     

Police 2,763,600$     423,850$         127,200$         60,000$           149,500$         3,524,150$     

TOTAL 6,582,300$     2,821,825$     470,450$         551,000$         284,000$         10,709,575$   

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Summary of Costs by Type of Expenditure For Proposed 2017

13



Actual 2015 Budget 2016 Budget 2017

% Change 2016 to 

2017

General Overhead 

Personal Services -$                            -$                            -$                            0.00%

Contractual Services 210,676                 245,150                 286,500                 0.00%

Commodities 48,353                   47,450                   43,750                   -7.80%

Capital Outlay 10,495                   195,700                 175,000                 -10.58%

Debt Service 79,865                   79,865                   77,000                   -3.59%

TOTAL 349,389$               568,165$               582,250$               

Legislative 

Personal Services 51,011$                 56,500$                 56,650$                 0.27%

Contractual Services 81,492                   102,100                 112,650                 10.33%

Commodities 99                           700                         700                         0.00%

Capital Outlay 1,490                      -                              -                              0.00%

TOTAL 134,092$               159,300$               170,000$               

Administration 

Personal Services 706,585$               719,000$               802,050$               11.55%

Contractual Services 26,464                   23,450                   32,400                   38.17%

Commodities 135                         650                         450                         -30.77%

Capital Outlay 3,137                      -                              -                              0.00%

TOTAL 736,321$               743,100$               834,900$               

Municipal Court 

Personal Services 294,281$               307,300$               291,000$               -5.30%

Contractual Services 55,566                   21,425                   21,575                   0.70%

Commodities 4,910                      8,500                      8,000                      -5.88%

Capital Outlay 180                         -                              -                              0.00%

TOTAL 354,937$               337,225$               320,575$               

Neighborhood Services 

Personal Services 107,102$               116,500$               -$                            -100.00%

Contractual Services 91,730                   125,050                 -                              -100.00%

Commodities 1,327                      1,600                      -                              -100.00%

Capital Outlay -                              21,500                   -                              -100.00%

TOTAL 200,160$               264,650$               -$                            

Summary of Costs by Department - General Fund

14



Actual 2015 Budget 2016 Budget 2017

% Change 2016 to 

2017

Public Works 

Personal Services 740,426$               826,350$               839,400$               1.58%

Contractual Services 758,775                 826,700                 880,300                 6.48%

Commodities 123,710                 148,350                 153,350                 3.37%

Capital Outlay 255,654                 65,000                   315,000                 384.62%

Debt Service -                              57,325                   57,500                   0.31%

TOTAL 1,878,565$            1,923,725$            2,245,550$            

Community Development 

Personal Services 175,643$               258,500$               265,200$               2.59%

Contractual Services 271,353                 167,350                 304,600                 82.01%

Commodities 408                         2,400                      4,500                      87.50%

Capital Outlay -                              -                              1,000                      0.00%

TOTAL 447,404$               428,250$               575,300$               

Mission Aquatic Center 

Personal Services 101,945$               136,500$               166,500$               21.98%

Contractual Services 47,461                   58,450                   59,700                   2.14%

Commodities 30,989                   42,000                   39,500                   -5.95%

Capital Outlay -                              -                              -                              0.00%

TOTAL 180,395$               236,950$               265,700$               

Community Center

Personal Services 1,333,977$            1,259,500$            1,397,900$            10.99%

Contractual Services 655,826                 733,250                 700,250                 -4.50%

Commodities 98,171                   94,750                   93,000                   -1.85%

Capital Outlay -                              -                              -                              0.00%

TOTAL 2,087,973$            2,087,500$            2,191,150$            

Police 

Personal Services 2,577,092$            2,732,500$            2,763,600$            1.14%

Contractual Services 265,494                 374,350                 423,850                 13.22%

Commodities 90,615                   141,900                 127,200                 -10.36%

Capital Outlay 143,211                 100,000                 60,000                   -40.00%

Debt Service -                              51,120                   149,500                 

TOTAL 3,076,414$            3,399,870$            3,524,150$            

TOTAL FOR ALL DEPT. 9,445,649$            10,148,735$         10,709,575$         5.53%

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Summary of Costs by Department

15



FY 2016 FY 2017

General Overhead 

Phone System/Camera System/Cabling 226,192$        -$                     

Techonology Replacement 75,000$          
Financial Management Software -$                     100,000$        

226,192$        175,000$        

Legislative -$                     -$                     

Administrative -$                     -$                     

Municipal Court 

-$                     -$                     

Neighborhood Services 

Field Vehicle 21,500$          -$                     

Public Works 

Skid Steer Loader 65,000$          -$                     

Front Wheel Loader -                   175,000          

Mowers -                   20,000             

Shop Air Compressor -                   5,000               

One and a half ton truck -                   80,000             
Half ton Truck (Parks and Recreation) -                   35,000             

65,000$          315,000$        

Community Development 

Office Furnishings - Plan Review Table, Cabinets, Desk  $                     - 1,000$             

Pool -$                     -$                    

Community Center -$                     -$                    

Police 

Police Vehicles 100,000                       55,500 

Handguns / Shotguns -                                        1,000 

Radar - Two -                                        3,500 

100,000                       60,000 

Total 412,692$        551,000$        

General Fund Departments 

Capital Budget Items - 2017 Budget

16



Fund: General 
Department: General Overhead 

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Personnel Services

-$                         -$                         -$                         

Total Personnel Services -$                         -$                         -$                         

01-07-201-01 Electricity - City Hall 40,541$               45,000$                $               43,000 
01-07-201-03 Natural Gas - City Hall 4,067                   8,000                                      6,000 
01-07-201-05 Water and Sewer - City Hall 2,071                   4,000                                      4,000 
01-07-201-08 Telephone -                           6,000                                      6,000 
01-07-203-03 Tuition Reimbursement 7,113                   7,000                                      7,000 
01-07-204-01 Advertising 1,443                   250                                         2,000 
01-07-205-01 Insurance - City Hall and Equipment 47,554                 38,000                                   50,000 
01-07-206-03 Periodicals/Books 1,575                   500                                         1,500 
01-07-206-04 Legal Publications 711                      3,500                                      2,000 
01-07-206-05 Professional Services 19                        4,500                                     30,000 
01-07-207-02 Finance/Audit 21,295                 22,500                                   23,000 
01-07-207-07 Pre-employment/Hiring Expense 1,266                   -                                              1,500 
01-07-207-07 Bank Fees 281                      -                                              1,000 
01-07-210-02 Janitorial Services -                           -                                             18,000 
01-07-212-06 Service Contracts 24,256                 25,000                                   25,000 
01-07-213-02 Rentals and Leases 8,545                   10,000                                   10,000 
01-07-214-02 Property Taxes 6,463                   12,000                                   14,500 
01-07-214-05 Computer Services 37,429                 49,500                                   35,000 
01-07-214-06 Codification 3,142                   3,500                                      3,500 
01-07-214-13 Website Development -                           5,900                                      3,500 
01-07-215-03 Contingency 2,904                   -                                                      - 

Total Contractual Services 210,676$             245,150$             286,500$             

Commodities

01-07-301-01 Office Supplies 9,542$                 5,700$                  $                 5,000 
01-07-301-04 Postage 12,287                 13,000                                   12,000 
01-07-304-04 Misc Supplies 173                      250                                            250 
01-07-305-01 Janitorial Supplies 1,292                   3,500                                      1,500 
01-07-305-02 Maintenance/Repairs City Hall                   25,059                   25,000                   25,000 

Total Commodities 48,353$               47,450$               43,750$               

Capital Outlay

01-07-402-03 Computer Systems/Software 5,829$                 -$                          $             175,000 
01-07-404-06 Equipment Replacement 4,666                   195,700                                          - 

Total Capital Outlay 10,495$               195,700$             175,000$             

Debt Service 
2013A Principal and Interest 79,865                 79,865                                   77,000 

Total Debt Service 79,865                 79,865                 77,000                 

 General Overhead Total 349,389$             568,165$             582,250$             

Contractual Services

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

17



Fund: General 
Department: Legislative

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Personnel Services

01-09-101-03 Wages and Salaries  $               46,597  $               52,200  $               52,200 
01-09-102-01 Health/Welfare Benefits                            -                            -                            - 
01-09-102-02 Social Security                    3,652                    3,700                    3,700 
01-09-102-03 KPERS                            -                            -                            - 
01-09-102-04 Employment Security                       114                       100                       100 
01-09-102-05 Workers Compensation 647                      500                      650                      

Total Personnel Services 51,011$               56,500$               56,650$               

01-09-201-07 Telephone  $                     99  $                        -  $                        - 
01-09-202-06 Commercial Travel                    1,036                    2,000                    3,000 
01-09-202-07 Lodging and Meals                    2,087                    3,500                    4,000 
01-09-202-08 Parking and Tolls                         17                       200                       200 
01-09-202-09 Mileage                       314                       350                       350 
01-09-203-02 Registration                    1,060                    3,250                    3,500 
01-09-205-01 Insurance - Public  Official                    7,000                    5,500                    7,000 
01-09-206-01 Professional Organizations                         50                       500                       100 
01-09-206-02 Municipal Organizations                    7,335                    7,500                    8,000 
01-09-206-03 Periodicals/Books                       275                       500                       500 
01-09-208-01 Annual Celebrations                   13,892                   10,000                   10,000 
01-09-208-02 Election Expense                            -                   16,000                   15,000 
01-09-208-03 Holiday Parties                    5,179                    7,500                    7,500 
01-09-208-04 Public Relations                    6,075                    9,500                    6,000 
01-09-208-05 Meeting Expenses                       890                    1,000                    1,000 
01-09-208-08 Human Service Fund (UCS)                    6,395                    6,500                    7,000 
01-09-208-09 Chamber of Commerce                    5,926                    5,800                    6,500 
01-09-208-12 MARC                    2,306                    2,000                    2,500 
01-09-208-15 JOCO Utility Assistance                    1,555                            -                            - 
01-09-208-16 Farmer's Market                            -                            -                   10,000 
01-09-214-07 Newsletter                   20,000                   20,000                   20,000 
01-09-215-03 Miscellaneous -                           500                      500                      

Total Contractual Services 81,492$               102,100$             112,650$             

Commodities

01-09-301-01 Office Supplies 99$                      500$                     $                   500 
01-09-301-04 Printing -                           200                      200                      

Total Commodities 99$                      700$                    700$                    

Capital Outlay

01-09-407-05 Contingency 1,490$                 -$                         -$                         

Total Capital Outlay 1,490$                 -$                         -$                         

Legislative Total 134,092$             159,300$             170,000$             

Contractual Services

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

18



Fund: General 
Department: Administration 

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Personnel Services

01-10-101-01 Full Time Salaries 487,520$             466,000$             563,000$             
01-10-101-02 Part Time Salaries 38,067                 55,000                 43,850                 
01-10-101-04 Overtime Salaries -                           -                           -                           
01-10-102-01 Health/Welfare Benefits 84,253                 83,000                 88,200                 
01-10-102-02 Social Security 39,086                 40,500                 42,400                 
01-10-102-03 KPERS 48,293                 52,000                 51,500                 
01-10-102-04 Employment Security 1,255                   500                      600                      
01-10-102-05 Workers Compensation 1,941                   1,500                   1,500                   
01-10-102-06 City Pension 6,170                   20,500                 11,000                 

Total Personnel Services 706,585$             719,000$             802,050$             

01-10-201-08 Telephone  $                 1,236  $                 1,500 1,500$                 
01-10-202-02 Commercial Travel                    1,433                    1,150 1,500                   
01-10-202-03 Lodging/Meals                    3,737                    3,250 4,000                     
01-10-202-04 Parking/Tolls                       198                       200 200                      
01-10-202-05 Mileage                    1,259                       900 1,500                   
01-10-203-01 Registration/Tuition                    4,240                    4,500 5,500                   
01-10-204-01 Advertising                            -                            - -                           
01-10-205-02 Notary Bonds                         75                       100 100                      
01-10-206-01 Professional Organizations                    4,060                    1,500 4,500                   
01-10-206-02 Municipal Organizations                       500                       500 500                      
01-10-206-03 Periodicals/Books/Publications                       390                       500 500                      
01-10-206-05 Professional Services                       324                       850 850                      
01-10-208-04 Public Relations                    3,855                    2,000 4,000                   
01-10-208-05 Meeting Expenses                    1,692                       750 1,500                   
01-10-208-13 Employee Recognition                       357                       500 500                      
01-10-214-03 Printing                       208                       250 250                      
01-10-215-03 Miscellaneous                       160                            - 500                      
01-10-215-04 Sustainability Expenses                    2,740                    5,000 5,000                   

Total Contractual Services 26,464$               23,450$               32,400$               

Commodities

01-10-301-01 Office Supplies  $                        -  $                   550 250$                    
01-10-301-04 Postage                            - -                           
01-10-301-05 Printed Forms                       135                       100                       200 

Total Commodities 135$                    650$                    450$                    

Capital Outlay

01-10-401-01 Office Machines -$                         -$                          $                        - 
01-10-401-02 Office Furnishings 3,174                   -                                                      - 
01-10-402-03 Computer Systems 40                        -                                                      - 
01-10-407-05 Contingency (77)                       -                                                      - 

Total Capital Outlay 3,137$                 -$                         -$                         

 Administration Total 736,321$             743,100$             834,900$             

Contractual Services

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

19



Fund: General 
Department: Municipal Court 

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Personnel Services

01-11-101-01 Full Time Salaries 126,624$             133,500$              $             134,000 
01-11-101-02 Part Time Salaries 6,962                   -                                                      - 
01-11-101-03 Judge Salaries 30,000                 30,000                                   30,000 
01-11-101-04 Overtime Salaries 8,213                   8,000                                      8,000 
01-11-101-06 City Attorney - Court 40,365                 55,000                                   45,000 
01-11-101-09 City Attorney Appeals - Court 7,020                   8,000                                      8,000 
01-11-102-01 Health/Welfare Benefits 37,754                 33,600                                   32,500 
01-11-102-02 Social Security 16,094                 19,500                                   15,000 
01-11-102-03 KPERS 13,419                 13,800                                   12,500 
01-11-102-04 Employment Security 504                      300                                            300 
01-11-102-05 Workers Compensation 3,883                   3,000                                      3,000 
01-11-102-06 City Pension 3,074                   2,600                                      2,700 
01-11-102-07 Administrative Charge/Pension Plan 368                      -                           -                           

Total Personal Services 294,281$             307,300$             291,000$             

01-11-201-08 Telephone 5,649$                 3,500$                 3,500$                 
01-11-202-03 Lodging/Meals 184                      400                      800                      
01-11-202-04 Parking/Tolls -                           25                        25                        
01-11-202-05 Mileage 273                      350                      500                      
01-11-203-01 Registration/Tuition 320                      500                      600                      
01-11-204-01 Advertising - Classified -                           100                      100                      
01-11-205-01 Insurance 700                      700                      700                      
01-11-205-02 Notary Bonds 150                      100                      100                      
01-11-206-05 Professional Services 6,000                   4,800                   4,800                   
01-11-206-06 City Attorney Services -                           -                           -                           
01-11-207-07 Pre-employment Expenses -                           150                      150                      
01-11-208-13 Employee Recognition 200                      300                      300                      
01-11-209-02 Computer Maintenance 2,453                   5,000                   5,000                   
01-11-209-03 Defense  3,203                   5,500                                      5,000 
01-11-214-08 Prisoner Care 36,435                 -                           -                           

Total Contractual Services 55,566$               21,425$               21,575$               

Commodities

01-11-301-01 Office Supplies 2,147$                 4,000$                 3,500$                 
01-11-301-04 Postage -                           -                           
01-11-301-05 Printed Forms 2,763                   4,500                   4,500                   
01-11-302-01 Uniforms -                           -                           -                           

Total Commodities 4,910$                 8,500$                 8,000$                 

Capital Outlay

01-11-401-01 Office Machines -$                         -$                          $                        - 
01-11-402-03 Computer Systems 180                      -                                                      - 
01-11-407-05 Contingency -                           -                           -                           

Total Capital Outlay 180$                    -$                         -$                         

Municipal Court Total 354,937$             337,225$             320,575$             

Contractual Services

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

20



Fund: General 
Department: Community Development - Neighborhood Services (Merged with Community Development 2017)

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Personnel Services

01-15-101-01 Full Time Salaries 74,053$               83,000$               -$                         
01-15-101-02 Part Time Salaries -                           -                           -                           
01-15-101-04 Overtime Salaries 54                        500                      -                           
01-15-102-01 Health/Welfare Benefits 14,408                 12,600                 -                           
01-15-102-02 Social Security 5,629                   6,500                   -                           
01-15-102-03 KPERS 7,199                   8,500                   -                           
01-15-102-04 Employment Security 180                      200                      -                           
01-15-102-05 Workers Compensation 4,530                   3,500                   -                           
01-15-102-06 City Pension 1,049                   1,700                   -                           

Total Personnel Services 107,102$             116,500$             -$                         

01-15-201-08 Telephone (new line item)  $                   160  $                        - -                           
01-15-202-02 Commercial Travel 394                      500                      -                           
01-15-202-03 Lodging / Meals 1,041                   1,000                   -                           
01-15-202-04 Parking / Tolls 82                        50                        -                           
01-15-202-05 Mileage 236                      450                      -                           
01-15-203-01 Registration 1,411                   1,000                   -                           
01-15-204-01 Advertising 148                      200                      -                           
01-15-205-01 Insurance 100                      250                      -                           
01-15-206-01 Professional Organizations 215                      600                      -                           
01-15-206-03 Periodicals/Books -                           50                        -                           
01-15-206-04 Legal Publications -                           100                      -                           
01-15-206-05 Professional Services 15,760                 18,000                 -                           
01-15-206-06 Legal Services -                           1,000                   -                           
01-15-207-04 Housing Project - Loan Imp Program 23                        100                      -                           
01-15-208-04 Public Relations 30                        3,000                   -                           
01-15-208-13 Employee Recognition 50                        250                      -                           
01-15-212-07 Vehicle Maintenance 147                      500                      -                           
01-15-214-03 Printing 345                      1,000                   -                           
01-15-215-03 Miscellaneous 631                      1,000                   -                           
01-15-216-01 Nuisance Abatement 3,666                   6,000                   -                           
01-15-216-02 Weed Abatement -                           -                           -                           
01-15-216-04 Mission Possible Program 24,830                 35,000                 -                           
01-15-216-05 How-To Clinics -                           -                           -                           
01-15-216-06 Neighborhood Grant Program 3,859                   5,000                   -                           
01-15-216-07 Business Improvement Grant 22,750                 27,000                 -                           
01-15-216-09 Citizen Rebate Program 9,829                   18,000                 -                           
01-15-216-11 Jo Co Utility Assistance 6,025                   5,000                   -                           
01-15-216-12 Storm Water BMP -                           -                           -                           

Total Contractual Services 91,730$               125,050$             -$                         

Commodities

01-15-301-01 Office Supplies 48$                      100$                    -$                         
01-15-301-02 Clothing 513                      500                      -                           
01-15-301-05 Printed Forms - -                           -                           
01-15-306-01 Gas/Oil 767                      1,000                   -                           

Total Commodities 1,327$                 1,600$                 -$                         

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Contractual Services

21



Fund: General 
Department: Community Development - Neighborhood Services (Merged with Community Development 2017)

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Capital Outlay

01-15-401-01 Office Machines -$                         -$                         -$                         
01-15-401-02 Office Furnishings -                           -                           -                           
01-15-402-03 Computer Systems -                           -                           -                           
01-15-403-06 Other Equipment/Software -                           -                           -                           
01-15-407-01 Vehicle -                           21,500                 -                           
01-15-407-05 Contingency -                           -                           -                           

Total Capital Outlay -$                         21,500$               -$                         

Neighborhood Services Total 200,160$             264,650$             -$                         

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

22



Fund: General 
Department: Public Works 

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Personnel Services
01-20-101-01 Full Time Salaries 478,717$             518,000$              $             532,000 
01-20-101-02 Part Time Salaries 23,050                 24,000                                    6,000 
01-20-101-04 Overtime Salaries 9,928                   25,000                                   25,000 
01-20-102-01 Health/Welfare Benefits 95,426                 122,850                               147,500 
01-20-102-02 Social Security 39,492                 43,000                                   42,000 
01-20-102-03 KPERS 50,952                 58,000                                   51,500 
01-20-102-04 Employment Security 1,221                   500                                            600 
01-20-102-05 Workers Compensation 31,060                 24,000                                   26,000 
01-20-102-06 City Pension 10,581                 11,000                 8,800                   

Total Personnel Services 740,426$             826,350$             839,400$             

01-20-201-02 Electricity - Maint. Facility 15,237$               20,000$                $               20,000 
01-20-201-04 Natural Gas - Maint. Facility 5,335                   12,500                                    9,500 
01-20-201-06 Water and Sewer - Maint. Facility 5,809                   6,500                                      6,500 
01-20-201-07 Refuse - Maint. Facility 1,279                   5,000                                      5,000 
01-20-201-08 Telephone  5,740                   6,500                                      6,500 
01-20-201-10 Traffic Signals - KCPL Lease 330,301               360,000                               360,000 
01-20-201-11 Traffic Signal - OP Interlocal 5,918                   6,000                                      8,000 
01-20-201-12 Traffic Signals Maint. 19,585                 30,000                                   25,000 
01-20-201-13 Street Lights - KCPL Power 55,146                 45,000                                   60,000 
01-20-201-15 Street Lights - Streetscape & Parks 1,536                   2,500                                      2,500 
01-20-202-02 Travel/Commercial 781                      1,000                                      1,000 
01-20-202-03 Lodging / Meals 1,950                   2,000                                      2,000 
01-20-202-04 Parking / Tolls 61                        100                                            100 
01-20-202-05 Mileage 363                      1,000                                      1,000 
01-20-203-01 Registration / Tuition 2,514                   3,500                                      3,500 
01-20-204-01 Advertising -                           500                                            500 
01-20-205-01 Insurance - Building & Equipment 40,000                 40,000                                   40,000 
01-20-206-01 Professional Organizations 1,734                   2,500                                      2,500 
01-20-206-04 Legal Advertising 15                        100                                            100 
01-20-206-05 Professional Services -                           5,000                                      2,500 
01-20-207-03 Engineering/Architect Services 49,341                 45,000                                   45,000 
01-20-207-06 Inspections 3,295                   -                                              4,000 
01-20-207-07 Pre-Employment Drug Testing 864                      1,000                                      1,000 
01-20-208-04 Public Relations 549                      900                                         1,000 
01-20-208-05 Meeting Expense 92                        -                                                 500 
01-20-208-13 Employee Recognition 1,146                   500                                         1,500 
01-20-210-01 Building Repairs /  Maintenance 10,061                 8,500                                     10,000 
01-20-210-02 Janitorial Services -                           -                           5,000                   
01-20-210-03 Trees / Shrubs Maintenance 1,471                   5,000                                     20,000 
01-20-210-04 Tree Board 1,467                   5,000                                      5,000 
01-20-212-03 Storm Warning Sirens 827                      1,500                                      1,500 
01-20-212-05 Equipment Repairs 1,231                   8,000                   8,000                   
01-20-212-06 Service Contracts 157,247               162,500               175,000               
01-20-212-07 Vehicle Maintenance 21,964                 15,000                 20,000                 
01-20-212-08 Holiday Decorations 11,288                 15,000                 15,000                 
01-20-212-09 Johnson Drive Maintenance 573                      2,500                   5,000                   
01-20-213-02 Rental Equipment 2,931                   4,000                                      4,000 
01-20-213-03 Laundry / Uniforms 1,123                   2,000                                      2,000 
01-20-214-02 Vehicle Registration 3                          100                                            100 
01-20-214-03 Printing -                           500                                            500 

Total Contractual Services 758,775$             826,700$             880,300$             

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Contractual Services

23



Fund: General 
Department: Public Works 

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Commodities

01-20-301-01 Office Supplies 769$                    1,000$                 1,000$                 
01-20-301-04 Postage -                           100                      100                      
01-20-302-01 Uniforms/Clothing 175                      1,000                   1,000                   
01-20-303-04 Safety Supplies 3,290                   4,000                   4,000                   
01-20-304-01 Shop Chemicals 163                      3,000                   3,000                   
01-20-304-02 Fertilizer / Weeds 411                      1,000                   1,000                   
01-20-304-04 Misc. Supplies 30                        250                      250                      
01-20-305-01 Janitor Supplies 1,364                   1,500                   1,500                   
01-20-305-02 Building Repair Parts / Plumbing 85                        3,500                   3,500                   
01-20-305-03 Tools - Building / Land Maint. 3,030                   4,000                   4,000                   
01-20-305-04 Landscape 739                      2,500                   2,500                   
01-20-306-01 Gas / Oil 19,499                 35,000                 25,000                 
01-20-306-02 Vehicle / Equip Repair Parts 18,969                 25,000                 25,000                 
01-20-306-03 Tools - Vehicle / Equip Maint. 5,940                   5,000                   5,000                   
01-20-307-01 Asphalt Patch 916                      -                           -                           
01-20-307-02 Rock 278                      1,000                   1,000                   
01-20-307-03 Sand / Salt 54,542                 55,000                 55,000                 
01-20-307-05 Signs 5,504                   5,000                   5,000                   
01-20-307-06 Traffic Paint 70                        500                      500                      
01-20-307-07 Park Maintenance 7,938                   -                           15,000                 

Total Commodities 123,710$             148,350$             153,350$             

Capital Outlay

01-20-401-01 Office Machines -$                         -$                         -$                         
01-20-401-02 Office Furnishings                       479                            - -                           
01-20-402-03 Computer Systems 2,147                   -                           -                           
01-20-403-03 Public Works Vehicles 253,028               65,000                 115,000               
01-20-403-06 Public Works - Other Equipment -                           -                           200,000               
01-20-404-04 Radios -                           -                           -                           
01-20-407-05 Contingency -                           -                           -                           

Total Capital Outlay 255,654$             65,000$               315,000$             

Debt Service 
2015 Lease Purchase  $                        -  $               57,325  $               57,500 

Total for Debt Service  $                        -  $               57,325  $               57,500 

Public Works Total 1,878,565$          1,923,725$          2,245,550$          

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

24



Fund: General 
Department: Community Development (Includes Neighborhood Services for 2017)

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Personnel Services

01-23-101-01 Full Time Salaries 130,258$             184,500$             191,500$             
01-23-101-02 Part Time Salaries -                           -                           -                           
01-23-101-04 Overtime Salaries 148                      500                      800                      
01-23-102-01 Health/Welfare Benefits 17,279                 34,000                 32,200                 
01-23-102-02 Social Security 10,610                 14,500                 14,900                 
01-23-102-03 KPERS 11,149                 19,000                 17,500                 
01-23-102-04 Employment Security 323                      500                      200                      
01-23-102-05 Workers Compensation 2,783                   1,500                   5,000                   
01-23-102-06 City Pension 3,091                   4,000                   3,100                   

Total Personnel Services 175,643$             258,500$             265,200$             

01-23-201-08 Telephone 348$                    500$                    500$                    
01-23-202-02 Commercial Travel -                           1,000                   1,500                   
01-23-202-03 Lodging / Meals 88                        1,850                   3,050                   
01-23-202-04 Parking / Tolls 18                        100                      200                      
01-23-202-05 Mileage 15                        1,200                   1,650                   
01-23-203-01 Registration /Tuition 344                      1,700                   3,300                   
01-23-203-02 Planning Commission 864                      4,000                   4,000                   

Insurance -                           -                           250                      
01-23-206-01 Professional Organizations 973                      1,700                   2,300                   
01-23-206-03 Periodicals/Books/Publications -                           -                           50                        
01-23-206-04 Advertising 83                        500                      500                      

Legal Publications -                           -                           1,100                   
01-23-206-05 Professional Services 20,570                 3,000                   5,500                   
01-23-206-06 Land Use Attorney Services 13,972                 30,000                 30,000                 
01-23-206-08 Jo Co Plan/Inspection Fees 174,874               85,000                 85,000                 
01-23-207-03 Engineer/Architect/Planning Services 58,537                 35,000                 51,000                 

Housing Project - Loan Improvement Program -                           -                           100                      
01-23-207-07 Pre-Employment Testing -                           200                      200                      
01-23-208-04 Public Relations 179                      450                      4,250                   
01-23-208-05 Meeting Expense 70                        500                      250                      
01-23-208-13 Employee Recognition 68                        150                      400                      

Vehicle Maintenance -                           -                           500                      
01-23-214-03 Printing 349                      500                      1,500                   

Miscellaneous -                           -                           1,000                   
Nuisance Abatement -                           -                           6,000                   
Mission Possible Program -                           -                           35,000                 
Neighborhood Grant Program -                           -                           5,000                   
Business Improvement Grant -                           -                           35,000                 
Citizen Rebate Program -                           -                           20,000                 
Johnson County Utility Assistance Program -                           -                           5,000                   
Stormwater BMP -                           -                           500                      

Total Contractual Services 271,353$             167,350$             304,600$             

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Contractual Services

25



Fund: General 
Department: Community Development (Includes Neighborhood Services for 2017)

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Commodities

01-23-301-01 Office Supplies 408$                    700$                    800$                    
Clothing -                           -                           500                      

01-23-301-02 City Maps -                           200                      200                      
01-23-301-04 Postage -                           500                      500                      
01-23-301-05 Printed Forms -                           1,000                   1,000                   

Gas/Oil -                           -                                              1,500 

Total Commodities 408$                    2,400$                 4,500$                 

Capital Outlay

01-23-401-01 Office Machines -$                         -$                         -$                         
01-23-401-02 Office Furnishings -                           -                           1,000                   
01-23-402-03 Computer Systems -                           
01-23-403-06 Other Equipment/Software -                           -                           -                           
01-23-407-05 Contingency -                           -                           -                           

Total Capital Outlay -$                         -$                         1,000$                 

Community Development Total 447,404$             428,250$             575,300$             

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

26



Fund: General 
Department: Parks and Recreation - Mission Family Aquatic Center

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Personnel Services

01-25-101-01 Full Time Salaries 16,371$               16,500$                $               20,400 
01-25-101-02 Part Time Salaries 65,412                 100,000                               125,000 
01-25-101-04 Overtime Salaries 2,104                   1,500                                      2,000 
01-25-102-01 Health/Welfare Benefits 2,482                   3,000                                      3,100 
01-25-102-02 Social Security 6,695                   8,600                                      8,500 
01-25-102-03 KPERS 1,811                   1,500                                      2,000 
01-25-102-04 Employment Security 217                      -                                                 100 
01-25-102-05 Workers Compensation 6,471                   5,000                                      5,000 
01-25-102-06 City Pension 382                      400                      400                      

Total Personnel Services 101,945$             136,500$             166,500$             

01-25-201-01 Electricity 16,005$               15,750$                $               17,000 
01-25-201-03 Gas -                           1,000                                      1,000 
01-25-201-05 Water and Sewer 3,969                   11,000                                   11,000 
01-25-201-08 Telephone 495                      900                                            900 
01-25-203-03 Training/Registration 525                      1,500                                      1,500 
01-25-205-01 Insurance - Building & Equipment 5,000                   5,000                                      5,000 
01-25-204-01 Marketing/Public Relations 615                      3,000                                      3,000 
01-25-207-07 Pre-Employment Drug Testing -                           800                                            800 
01-25-208-13 Employee Recognition 266                      500                                            500 
01-25-210-01 Maint Bldg. / Land 932                      2,000                                      2,000 
01-25-212-05 Other Equipment / Repairs 236                      1,000                                      1,000 
01-25-213-02 Rental Agreements 775                      1,500                                      1,500 
01-25-214-12 Mission Swim Team 7,513                   7,500                                      7,500 
01-25-215-02 Contract Serv/Mant.  Agreements                   11,129                    7,000                    7,000 
01-25-215-05 Consultant/instructors                            -                            -                            - 

Total Contractual Services 47,461$               58,450$               59,700$               

Commodities

01-25-301-01 Office Supplies 548$                    250$                     $                   250 
01-25-301-02 Clothing 1,396                   2,500                                      2,500 
01-25-301-03 Food Service 16,036                 22,500                                   20,000 
01-25-301-04 Printing 575                      -                                                      - 
01-25-301-08 Equipment and Supplies 3,804                   7,500                                      7,500 
01-25-303-04 Safety Supplies 545                      500                                            500 
01-25-304-02 Cleaning Chemicals 266                      750                                            750 
01-25-304-05 Pool Chemicals                    6,982                    7,500                    7,500 
01-25-305-05 Repair / Parts Maintenance 837                      500                                            500 

Total Commodities 30,989$               42,000$               39,500$               

Capital Outlay

01-25-407-01 Equipment Replacement -$                         -$                          $                        - 
01-25-407-02 Filter Elements -                           -                                                      - 
01-25-407-03 Pool Imp/ Repair/Design -                           -                                                      - 
01-25-407-05 Contingency -                           -                                                      - 

Total Capital Outlay -$                         -$                         -$                         

180,395$             236,950$             265,700$             

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Parks & Recreation - Mission Family Aquatic Center Total 

Contractual Services

27



Fund: General 
Department: Parks and Recreation - Sylvester Powell Jr. Community Center 

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Personnel Services

01-27-101-01 Full Time Salaries 529,386$              529,000$               $             567,000 
01-27-101-02 Part Time Salaries 478,553                450,000                                510,000 
01-27-101-04 Overtime Salaries 24,754                  18,500                                    25,000 
01-27-102-01 Health/Welfare Benefits 119,155                100,000                                121,000 
01-27-102-02 Social Security 81,325                  75,000                                    86,700 
01-27-102-03 KPERS 59,681                  54,000                                    54,700 
01-27-102-04 Employment Security 2,547                    1,000                                        1,100 
01-27-102-05 Workers Compensation 25,949                  20,000                                    20,000 
01-27-102-06 City Pension 12,627                  12,000                  12,400                  

Total Personnel Services 1,333,977$          1,259,500$          1,397,900$          

01-27-201-01 Electric 154,863$              180,000$               $             165,000 
01-27-201-03 Gas 29,732                  50,000                                    40,000 
01-27-201-05 Water and Sewer 34,429                  30,000                                    35,000 
01-27-201-08 Telephone 3,101                    5,000                                        5,000 
01-27-202-02 Travel / Commercial 501                       1,500                                        1,500 
01-27-202-03 Lodging / Meals 2,460                    2,500                                        2,500 
01-27-202-04 Parking / Tolls 104                       150                                              150 
01-27-202-05 Mileage Staff 391                       1,500                                        1,500 
01-27-203-01 Registration / Tuition 2,713                    2,000                                        2,000 
01-27-203-02 Staff Training 2,515                    5,000                                        5,000 
01-27-203-03 Tuition Reimbursement 89                         -                                                        - 
01-27-204-01 Marketing / Public Relations 21,708                  30,000                                    30,000 
01-27-205-01 Insurance - Building & Equipment 33,000                  37,000                                    37,000 
01-27-205-02 Notary Bonds -                            100                                              100 
01-27-206-01 Professional Organizations 2,015                    3,000                                        3,000 
01-27-207-07 Pre-Employment Drug Testing 2,182                    2,000                                        2,000 
01-27-208-13 Employee Recognition 1,727                    2,000                                        2,000 
01-27-210-01 Maint - Bldg. / Land 47,478                  40,000                                    40,000 
01-27-212-05 Equipment Maintenance 7,679                    9,000                                        8,000 
01-27-212-07 Vehicle Maintenance -                            500                                              500 
01-27-213-02 Rental Equipment 7,154                    10,000                                      7,500 
01-27-214-03 Printing 11,276                  18,000                  13,000                  
01-27-214-05 Computer Services / Software 10,774                  10,000                                    10,000 
01-27-214-10 Registration Materials (13)                        -                                                        - 
01-27-214-11 Special Programs 8,068                    13,000                                    10,000 
01-27-214-12 Swim Programs 90                         1,500                                           500 
01-27-214-13 Mission Summer Program 28,243                  23,000                                    23,000 
01-27-215-01 Seasonal Programs 12,584                  14,000                                    14,000 
01-27-215-02 Contract Services / Maint. Agreements 57,886                  50,000                                    60,000 
01-27-215-03 Miscellaneous 126                       -                                                        - 
01-27-215-04 Field Trips 31                         -                                                        - 
01-27-215-05 Contract Instructors 152,511                175,000                                160,000 
01-27-215-06 Transportation Services 9,993                    7,500                                      10,000 
01-27-215-10 Mission Square Parking Lot Lease 10,417                  10,000                                    12,000 

Total Contractual Services 655,826$              733,250$              700,250$              

Contractual Services

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

28



Fund: General 
Department: Parks and Recreation - Sylvester Powell Jr. Community Center 

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Commodities

01-27-301-01 Office Supplies 3,132$                  4,500$                   $                 3,500 
01-27-301-02 Clothing 4,202                    1,500                                        4,000 
01-27-301-03 Food Services / Concession Supplies 7,822                    8,500                                        8,500 
01-27-301-04 Postage 1,828                    7,500                                        5,500 
01-27-301-05 Printing 435                       1,750                                        1,500 
01-27-301-08 Equipment & Supplies 37,334                  35,000                                    35,000 
01-27-301-09 Special Event Supplies 6,286                    7,500                                        6,500 
01-27-303-04 Safety Supplies 835                       -                                                        - 
01-27-304-02 Cleaning Supplies 20,653                  15,000                                    15,000 
01-27-304-05 Pool Chemicals 8,401                    6,500                                        6,500 
01-27-305-05 Bldg. Maint / Repair / Parts 6,551                    6,000                                        6,000 
01-27-306-01 Gas/Oil 692                       1,000                                        1,000 

Total Commodities 98,171$                94,750$                93,000$                

Capital Outlay

01-27-402-03 Computer Systems -$                          -$                           $                         - 
01-27-407-01 Eqpt and Eqpt  Replacement -                            -                                                        - 
01-27-407-03 Construction/Repair -                            -                                                        - 
01-27-407-05 Contingency -                            -                                                        - 

Total Capital Outlay -$                          -$                          -$                          

2,087,973$          2,087,500$          2,191,150$          Parks & Recreation -  Community Center Total

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

29



Fund: General 
Department: Police

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Personnel Services

01-30-101-01 Full Time Salaries 1,602,050$          1,700,000$           $          1,740,000 
01-30-101-02 Part Time Salaries 11,794                 45,000                                   15,000 
01-30-101-04 Overtime Salaries 88,113                 100,000                               110,000 
01-30-102-01 Health/Welfare Benefits 334,476               385,000                               406,500 
01-30-102-02 Social Security 129,458               129,000                               135,200 
01-30-102-03 KPERS 8,833                   9,500                                      8,200 
01-30-102-04 Employment Security 4,012                   2,000                                      1,700 
01-30-102-05 Workers Compensation 33,901                 30,000                                   30,000 
01-30-102-06 City Pension 1,254                   2,000                                      2,000 
01-30-102-07 KP&F Retirement 364,766               330,000                               315,000 
01-30-102-08 NEACC Money Purchase Plan (1,564)                  -                           -                           

Total Personnel Services 2,577,092$          2,732,500$           $          2,763,600 

01-30-201-08 Telephone 18,271$               21,500$                $               22,000 
01-30-202-02 Commercial Travel 665                      5,000                                      6,000 
01-30-202-03 Lodging / Meals 12,875                 16,000                                   20,000 
01-30-202-04 Parking / Tolls / Misc. 108                      400                                            400 
01-30-202-05 Mileage Reimbursement -                           200                                            200 
01-30-203-01 Registration / Tuition / Other 12,681                 13,000                                   18,000 
01-30-203-02 Firing Range 9,031                   10,000                                   10,000 
01-30-203-04 Training / Junior College 2,262                   4,000                                      4,000 
01-30-204-01 Advertising - Classified -                           500                                            500 
01-30-205-01 Insurance 500                      1,750                                      1,750 
01-30-205-02 Notary Bonds 100                      400                                            400 
01-30-206-01 Professional Organizations 2,731                   3,500                                      3,500 
01-30-206-03 Periodicals/Books/Publications 925                      2,500                                      2,500 
01-30-206-05 Professional Services 141                      2,000                                      2,000 
01-30-207-07 Pre-employment Exams 2,364                   5,000                                      5,000 
01-30-208-04 Public Relations 7,163                   11,500                                   11,500 
01-30-208-13 Employee Recognition 1,420                   3,000                                      3,000 
01-30-212-04 Communications / Radios 1,388                   5,000                                      5,000 
01-30-212-05 Other Equip/Radar/Repair/Misc. 7,477                   15,000                                   10,000 
01-30-212-06 Service Contracts/Rentals                   25,796                   50,000                   75,000 
01-30-212-07 Vehicle Maintenance                   45,643                   36,000                   36,000 
01-30-213-02 Equipment Rental                            -                       750                       750 
01-30-213-03 Uniform Dry Cleaning 7,216                   10,000                                   10,000 
01-30-214-02 Vehicle Registration 743                      350                                            350 
01-30-214-05 Computer Services 25,190                 25,000                                   40,000 
01-30-214-06 Animal Control / Care 74,034                 78,000                                   82,000 
01-30-214-08 Prisoner Care -                           50,000                                   50,000 
01-30-214-09 Crime Prevention 750                      3,000                                      3,000 
01-30-214-10 DARE Supplies 2,763                   -                           
01-30-214-12 Bullet Proof Vest Grant 2,920                   -                           
01-30-215-03 Miscellaneous 338                      1,000                                      1,000 

Total Contractual Services 265,494$             374,350$              $             423,850 

Contractual Services

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

30



Fund: General 
Department: Police

 Actual Budget Proposed 
Account Number  Account Title 2015 2016 2017

Commodities

01-30-301-01 Office Supplies 3,742$                 6,000$                  $                 4,500 
01-30-301-02 Copy Machine Supplies -                           200                                            200 
01-30-301-04 Postage 374                      1,200                                      2,000 
01-30-301-05 Printed Forms 1,369                   4,000                                      4,000 
01-30-301-06 Other Operating Supplies 1,477                   5,500                                      5,500 
01-30-302-01 Uniforms / Leather / Protect Vests 9,235                   23,000                                   23,000 
01-30-302-02 Equipment - General 13,162                 15,000                                   15,000 
01-30-303-01 Investigation Supplies 1,576                   3,500                                      5,000 
01-30-303-02 Property and Evidence Supplies 1,474                   5,000                                      3,500 
01-30-303-03 Booking Facility Supplies 107                      1,000                                      1,000 
01-30-306-01 Fuel 52,413                 70,000                                   55,000 
01-30-306-02 Fleet Tire Replacement 5,686                   7,500                                      7,500 

Emergency Management -                           -                                              1,000 

Total Commodities 90,615$               141,900$              $             127,200 

Capital Outlay

01-30-401-01 Office Machines -$                         -$                          $                        - 
01-30-402-02 Office Furnishings -                           -                                                      - 
01-30-402-03 Computer Systems 11,401                 -                                                      - 
01-30-403-01 Police Vehicles 123,485               100,000                                 55,500 
01-30-404-03 Handguns / Shotguns 8,325                   -                                              1,000 
01-30-404-04 Radios -                           -                                                      - 
01-30-404-05 Radar -                           -                                              3,500 
01-30-404-06 Other Equipment -                           -                                                      - 
01-30-404-07 Video Recorder -                           -                                                      - 
01-30-404-08 Motorcycles -                           -                                                      - 
01-30-404-09 Bicycle Patrol -                           -                                                      - 
01-30-407-05 Contingency -                           -                                                      - 

Total Capital Outlay 143,211$             100,000$              $               60,000 

Debt Service 
2011 Lease-Purchase -$                         1,802$                  $                        - 
2014 Lease-Purchase                            -                   49,318                   49,500 
2016 Lease-Purchase                            -                            -                 100,000 

Total Debt Service  $                        -  $               51,120  $             149,500 

Police Total 3,076,414$          3,348,750$          3,374,650$          

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

31



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Budget Proposed 
2015 2016 2017

196,848$              $               36,846  $               80,391 

REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenue 1,640,049$           $                        -  $                        - 

Bond Proceeds  $                        -  $                        - 

Mission Pet Mart Loan 64,360$                $               64,360  $               64,360 
Sale of Fixed Assets -                                                      -                            - 
West Gateway Plan Review Fees 6,757                                              -                            - 
Interest 42                                              500                       500 
Miscellaneous Revenue -                                                      - -                           

Total for Miscellaneous and Other  $               71,158  $               64,860  $               64,860 

Transfers From Other Funds
General Fund -$                          $             833,000  $             925,000 
Stormwater Fund 324,038                                          -                            - 
Street Sales Tax Fund 183,000                                          -                            - 

Total for Transfers from Other Funds  $             507,038  $             833,000  $             925,000 

TOTAL REVENUES  $          2,218,245  $             897,860  $             989,860 

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Contractual Services 1,518$                  $                        -  $                        - 

Commodities -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Capital Outlay 1,724,621$           $             484,000  $             650,000 

Debt Service
2007A - Principal & Interest 98,435$                $               99,251  $               99,805 
2013C - Principal & Interest (Street Portion) 553,672                               271,064                 277,519 

Total for Debt Service 652,107$             370,315$             377,324$             

Transfers To Other Funds -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $          2,378,246  $             854,315  $          1,027,324 

36,846$               80,391$               42,927$               FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Capital Projects 
Capital Improvement Fund 

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

Miscellaneous and Other 

Fund Sources: Transfers, intergovernmental revenues, proceeds from bond issues and interest. 

Guidelines:  Accounts for resources used to construct and maintain infrastructure city-wide in accordance with a 5-Year 
Community Investment Program or to cover debt service obligations for capital infrastructure projects.

32



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Estimate Proposed 
2015 2016 2017

24,077$                $               37,027  $             291,156 

REVENUES
Property Taxes 

Property Tax 5$                         $                        -  $                        - 
Delinquent Property Tax 70                                                   -                            - 
Motor Vehicle Tax -                                                      -                            - 

Total Property Taxes 75$                      -$                         -$                         

Storm water Utility Fees 2,042,515$           $          2,475,000  $          2,500,000 
Stormwater Utility Fees Delinquent 40,698                                   25,000                   30,000 

Total Fees  $          2,083,213  $          2,500,000  $          2,530,000 

Special Assessments  $                        -  $             299,798  $                        - 

Intergovernmental -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

 $                        -  $                        -  $                        - 

Miscellaneous and Other 
Interest 136$                     $                   150  $                   200 
Miscellaneous -                                                      -  $                        - 

Total Miscellaneous and Other  $                   136  $                   150  $                   200 

Transfers From Other Funds
General Fund 560,000$              $                        -  $                        - 
Capital Improvement Fund -                                                      -                            - 
Rock Creek Drainage #1 Fund 3,800                                      3,500                    3,000 
Rock Creek Drainage #2 Fund 78,000                                   75,000                   85,000 

Total Transfer From Other Funds  $             641,800  $               78,500  $               88,000 

TOTAL REVENUES 2,725,224$          2,878,448$          2,618,200$          

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Stormwater  Utility 

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

Fees

Bond Proceeds

33



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Budget Proposed 
2015 2016 2017

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services

Full-Time Salaries -$                          $                        -  $                        - 
Health/Welfare Benefits -                                                      -                            - 
Social Security -                                                      -                            - 
KPERS -                                                      -                            - 
Employment Security -                                                      -                            - 
City Pension -                                                      -                            - 

Total for Personnel -$                         -$                         -$                         

Contractual Services
Professional Services 465$                     $                        -  $                        - 
Engineering/Architecture Services 6,562                                      5,000                            - 
Inspections -                                                      -                            - 
Storm Drain Repairs 9,403                                              -                            - 
Other Contractual Services -                                                      -                            - 
Refund Rebate Utility Fee -                                                      -                            - 

Total for Contractual Services 16,430$               5,000$                 -$                         

Commodities -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Capital Outlay -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Debt Service
2010A Refunding - Principal & Interest 367,913$              $             366,613  $             367,813 
2010B Refunding - Interest 279,131               279,131               279,131               
2013C - Principal & Interest (Stormwater Portion) -                           283,374               277,519               
2014A Refunding -Principal & Interest 343,027               324,838               321,838               
2014B Refunding - Principal & Interest 1,375,176            1,358,800            1,331,000            
KDHE Loan 6,561                   6,564                   6,565                   

Total For Debt Service 2,371,807$           $          2,619,319  $          2,583,865 

Transfers To Other Funds 
Capital Improvement Fund 324,038$              $                        -  $                        - 

Total for Transfers to Other Funds 324,038$             -$                         -$                         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $          2,712,275  $          2,624,319  $          2,583,865 

37,027$               291,156$             325,491$             

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Stormwater Utility 

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31

Fund Sources:  Stormwater Utility fees, Special Assessments, interest, transfers and intergovernmental revenue.

Guidelines:  Established to account for storm water utility charges received based on equivalent residential unit (ERU) to be 
used for storm water improvements city-wide.

34



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Budget Proposed 
2015 2016 2017

58,386$                $               14,177  $               14,177 

REVENUES
Fees

Transportation Utility Fee 767,727$              $                        -  $                        - 
Transportation Utility Fee Delinquent 4,285                                              -                            - 

Total for Fees  $             772,012  $                        -  $                        - 

Intergovernmental Revenue -                                                      - 

Miscellaneous and Other 
Reimbursed Expenses -$                          $                        -  $                        - 
Interest 62                                                   -                            - 
Miscellaneous Revenue -                                                      -                            - 

Total for Miscellaneous and Other  $                     62  $                        -  $                        - 

Transfers From Other Funds
Street Sales Tax 80,000$                $                        -  $                        - 

Total for Transfers  $               80,000  $                        -  $                        - 

TOTAL REVENUES 852,074$             -$                         -$                         

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Contractual Services -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Commodities -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Capital Outlay 11,057$                $                        -  $                        - 

Debt Service
2011A - Principal and Interest 885,226$             -$                         -$                         

Total for Debt Service 885,226$             -$                         -$                         

Transfers To Other Funds -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $             896,283  $                        -  $                        - 

14,177$               14,177$               14,177$               

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Transportation Utility Fund 

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31

Fund Sources:  Transportation Utility fees, interest, intergovernmental revenue and transfers from other funds.

Guidelines:  Established to account for transportation utility charges received based on an established land-use formula per 
parcel to fund street and other transportation related improvements.

35



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Estimate Proposed 
2015 2016 2017

517,464$              $             318,999  $             148,159 

REVENUES
Sales Tax - 1/4 Cent for Streets 554,876$              $             550,000  $             550,000 

Miscellaneous and Other 
Interest 57$                       $                     30  $                     50 

Total Miscellaneous and Other  $                     57  $                     30  $                     50 

TOTAL REVENUES 554,933$             550,030$             550,050$             

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Contractual Services -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Commodities -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Capital Outlay 16,553$                $             200,000  $             150,000 

Debt Service
2012A - Principal & Interest 473,845$              $             470,870  $             472,045 

Total for Debt Service 473,845$             470,870$             472,045$             

Reserves -$                         50,000$               50,000$               

Transfers To Other Funds 
Capital Improvement Fund 183,000$              $                        -  $                        - 
Transportation Utility Fund 80,000                                            -                            - 

Total for Other Funds 263,000$             -$                         -$                         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 753,398$             720,870$             672,045$             

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31 318,999$             148,159$             26,164$               

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Street Sales Tax

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

Fund Sources:  1/4 of 1% General Sales tax.  Effective April 1, 2012.  Sales tax sunsets in 10 years.

Guidelines:  Established to account for revenues received from 1/4 of one percent sales tax for streets, pledged to retire the 
Series 2012-A General Obligation Bonds issued for the Martway/Johnson Drive rehabilitation projects and available to support 
other street and road improvements.

36



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Estimate Proposed 
2015 2016 2017

671,668$              $             738,332  $             608,382 

REVENUES
Sales Tax - 3/8th Cent for Parks 832,314$              $             775,000  $             850,000 

Bond Proceeds -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Miscellaneous and Other 
Interest -$                          $                        -  $                   500 

Total for Miscellaneous and Other  $                        -  $                        -  $                   500 

TOTAL REVENUES 832,314$             775,000$             850,500$             

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Contractual Services -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Commodities -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Capital Outlay 210,546$              $             268,500  $             300,000 

Debt Service
2013B - Principal & Interest 529,586$              $             526,450  $             529,000 

Total For Debt Service 529,586$             526,450$             529,000$             

Reserves 
Park Improvements From Master Plan -$                         50,000$               100,000$             
Facility Reserve Community Center -                           50,000                 100,000               
Facility Reserve Aquatic Facility -                           10,000                 20,000                 

Total for Reserve Accounts -$                         110,000$             220,000$             

Transfers To Other Funds 
General Fund 25,518$                $                        -  $                        - 

Total for Transfers to Other Funds 25,518$               -$                         -$                         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $             765,650  $             904,950  $          1,049,000 

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31 738,332$             608,382$             409,882$             

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Parks Sales Tax

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

Fund Sources:  3/8 of 1% General Sales Tax.  Effective April 1, 2013.  Sales tax sunsets in 10 years.

Guidelines:  Established to account for revenues received from 3/8 of one percent sales tax for parks and recreation, a portion
is pledged to retire the Series 2013-B General Obligation Bonds issued for the outdoor aquatic facility project.  The balance is
dedicated to other parks and recreation activities, including operating costs.

37



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Estimate Proposed 
2015 2016 2017

63,176$                $               12,390  $               58,240 

REVENUES
Intergovernmental - Kansas Gas Tax 249,775$              $             245,850  $             246,600 

Miscellaneous and Other 
Interest 76$                       $                        -  $                   200 
Miscellaneous 174                                                 -                            - 

250$                    -$                         200$                    

TOTAL REVENUES 250,025$             245,850$             246,800$             

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services

Full-Time Salaries -$                          $                        - -$                         
Health/Welfare Benefits -                           -                           -                           
Social Security -                           -                           -                           
KPERS -                           -                           -                           
Employment Security -                           -                           -                           
City Pension -                           -                           -                           

Total for Personnel Services -$                         -$                         -$                         

Contractual Services -$                          $                        - -$                         

Commodities -$                          $                        - -$                         

Capital Outlay 300,811$              $             200,000 275,000$             

Debt Service -$                          $                        - -$                         

Transfers To Other Funds -$                          $                        - -$                         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $             300,811  $             200,000  $             275,000 

.

12,390$               58,240$               30,040$               

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Special Highway 

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31

Fund Sources:  State of Kansas Gasoline Tax, County Assisted Road System (CARS) reimbursements, interest, transfers from 
other funds, and State or Federal Grant funds.

Guidelines: Used for construction, reconstruction, alteration, repair and maintenance of streets, highways, bridges and 
appurtenances (e.g. curbing, streetlights, drainage structures).  May also be used for personnel services expenses for 
employees performing these functions.  Accounts for monies sent quarterly from the State Treasurer's office in compliance 
with K.S.A. 79-3452C.

38



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Estimate Proposed 
2015 2016 2017

21,626$                $               27,423  $               25,223 

REVENUES
Intergovernmental - Alcohol Tax 57,128$                $               42,800  $               59,000 

TOTAL REVENUES 57,128$                $               42,800 59,000$               

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services

Full-Time Salaries 15,000$                $               15,000  $               15,000 
Health/Welfare Benefits -                           -                           -                           
Social Security -                           -                           -                           
KPERS -                           -                           -                           
Employment Security -                           -                           -                           
City Pension -                           -                           -                           

Total for Personnel Services 15,000$               15,000$               15,000$               

Contractual Services 36,331$                $               30,000  $               45,000 

Commodities -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Capital Outlay -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Debt Service -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Transfers To Other Funds -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 51,331$               45,000$               60,000$               

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31 27,423$               25,223$               24,223$               

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Special Alcohol

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

Fund Sources:  Special Alcohol Tax.  K.S.A. 79-41a-04

Guidelines: To be used for treating or preventing alcohol/drug abuse.  Most funds are allocated through the Drug and Alcohol 
Council.  A portion of the funds may be used for Mission's DARE Officer, and will  be evaluated for potential support of the 
mental health co-responder program currently included in the Police Department budget.

39



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Budget Proposed 
2015 2016 2017

118,334$              $               24,065  $               11,665 

REVENUES
Intergovernmental - Alcohol Tax 57,129$                $               42,800  $               59,180 

Bond/Lease Proceeds 168,128$              $                        -  $                        - 

Interest 152                                                 -                       150 
Miscellaneous 3,651                                              -                            - 

Total Miscellaneous and Other                    3,804                            -                       150 

TOTAL REVENUES  $             229,060  $               42,800  $               59,330 

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Contractual Services -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Commodities -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Capital Outlay 323,329$              $                        -  $                        - 

Debt Service/Lease Payments -$                          $               55,200  $               55,200 

Transfers To Other Funds -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $             323,329  $               55,200  $               55,200 

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31 24,065$               11,665$               15,795$               

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Special Parks and Recreation

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

Miscellaneous and Other 

Fund Sources:  Special Alcohol Tax.  K.S.A. 79-41a04

Guidelines:  Used for the purchase, establishment, maintenance or expansion of park and recreational services, programs and 
facilities.

40



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Estimate Proposed 
2015 2016 2017

-$                          $                 3,290  $                 8,790 

REVENUES
Fees

Solid Waste Utility Fee 481,367$             483,000$             483,000$             
Trash Bag Sales 1,685                   2,000                   2,000                   
Yard Waste Stickers 1,366                   -                           1,000                   
Commercial Recycling -                           -                           -                           
Recycling Rebate 314                      1,000                   1,000                   

484,731$             486,000$             487,000$             

Interest -$                         -$                         50$                      
Total for Miscellaneous and Other -$                         -$                         50$                      

Transfers from Other Funds
General Fund 85,000$               85,000$               85,000$               

Total for Miscellaneous and Other 85,000$               85,000$               85,000$               

TOTAL REVENUES 569,731$             571,000$             572,050$             

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services -$                         -$                         -$                         

Contractual Services
Solid Waste Contract 562,219$             565,000$             565,000$             
Utility Rebate Refund 4,222                   -                           5,000                   

Total for Contractual Services 566,441$             565,000$             570,000$             

Commodities -$                         500$                    500$                    

Capital Outlay -$                         -$                         -$                         

Debt Service -$                         -$                         -$                         

Transfers To Other Funds -$                         -$                         -$                         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 566,441$             565,500$             570,500$             

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31 3,290$                 8,790$                 10,340$               

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Solid Waste Utility 

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

Miscellaneous and Other 

Fund Sources:  Solid Waste Utility Fees, Recycling Rebates, Interest and Transfers from other funds.

Guidelines:  Resources used for the payment of costs related to the provision of residential solid waste services in the City.

41



Actual Estimate Proposed 
2015 2016 2017

47,126$                $               53,660  $               52,660 

REVENUES
Transient Guest Tax Receipts 36,786$                $               30,000  $               35,000 

Miscellaneous and Other 
Event Sponsorship/Revenue 6,842$                  $               30,000  $               30,000 
Holiday Adoption Revenue 8,477                                      5,000                    8,000 
Interest 61                                                   -                         70 
Miscellaneous Revenue -                                                      -                            - 

Total for Miscellaneous and Other  $               15,381  $               35,000                   38,070 

TOTAL REVENUES  $               52,166  $               65,000  $               73,070 

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services -$                         -$                         -$                         

Contractual Services
MCVB General Expenses 3,031$                 1,000$                 3,000$                 
Mission Family Festival 1,181                   -                           -                           
Barbeque Contest 335                      25,000                 25,000                 
Holiday Lights Event 9,992                   10,000                 10,000                 
Mission Merchants 1,605                   -                           -                           
MCVB Magazine 21,838                 25,000                 27,000                 *
Holiday Adoptions 7,651                   5,000                   8,000                   

Total for Contractual Services 45,633$               66,000$               73,000$               

Commodities -$                         -$                         -$                         

Capital Outlay -$                         -$                         -$                         

Debt Service -$                         -$                         -$                         

Transfers To Other Funds -$                         -$                         -$                         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 45,633$               66,000$               73,000$               

53,660$               52,660$               52,730$               

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Mission Convention and Visitors Bureau 

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31

Fund Sources:  Transient Guest Tax receipts, sponsorships, special event revenue, and donations. 

Guidelines: To be used for the promotion of convention and tourism, attracting people to the City of Mission. *A portion of 
the magazine expenses are covered by the General Fund (Newsletter 01-09-214-07) in the legislative budget. 

42



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Estimate Proposed
2015 2016 2017

-$                         26,587$               26,587$               

REVENUES
Property Taxes -TIF 143,172$             75,000$               130,000$             

Sales Tax - TIF 55,163$               56,000$               60,000$               

Sales Tax - CID 83,228$               56,000$               60,000$               

TOTAL REVENUES 281,563$             187,000$             250,000$             

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services -$                         -$                         -$                         

Contractual Services
TIF Property Tax Reimbursement 143,172$             100,000$             130,000$             
TIF Sales Tax Reimbursement 50,370                 43,500                 60,000                 
CID Sales Tax Reimbursement 61,433                 43,500                 60,000                 

Total for Contractual Services 254,975$             187,000$             250,000$             

Commodities -$                     -$                     -$                     

Capital Outlay -$                         -$                         -$                         

Debt Service -$                         -$                         -$                         

Transfers To Other Funds -$                         -$                         -$                         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 254,975$             187,000$             250,000$             

26,587$               26,587$               26,587$               

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Mission Crossing TIF/CID

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31

Fund Sources:  Revenues from the Tax Increment Financing District (property tax and sales tax) and the Community 
Improvement District (sales tax) that are associated with the Mission Crossing Development.

Guidelines: To be used for reimbursement of certain development costs.

43



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Estimate Proposed
2015 2016 2017

-$                         6,566$                 66$                      

REVENUES
Sales Tax - CID 6,566$                 65,000$               65,000$               

TOTAL REVENUES 6,566$                 65,000$               65,000$               

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services -$                         -$                         -$                         

Contractual Services
CID Sales Tax Reimbursement -$                         69,000$               62,500$               
Administrative Fee -                           2,500                   2,500                   

Total for Contractual Services -$                         71,500$               65,000                 

Commodities -$                         -$                         -$                         

Capital Outlay -$                         -$                         -$                         

Debt Service -$                         -$                         -$                         

Transfers To Other Funds -$                         -$                         -$                         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -$                         71,500$               65,000$               

6,566$                 66$                      66$                      

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Cornerstone Commons CID

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31

Fund Sources:  Revenues from the Community Improvement District (sales tax) that are associated with the Cornerstone 
Commons Development.

Guidelines: To be used for reimbursement of certain development costs.

44



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Estimate Proposed
2015 2016 2017

2,515$                  $                 1,423  $                   423 

REVENUES
Property Taxes 

Real Estate Tax 2,708$                  $                 2,500  $                 2,800 
Real Estate Tax Delinquent -                                                      -                            - 

Total for Property Taxes  $                 2,708  $                 2,500  $                 2,800 

Miscellaneous and Other 
Interest -$                          $                        -  $                     15 

Total for Miscellaneous and Other  $                        -  $                        -  $                     15 

TOTAL REVENUES 2,708$                 2,500$                 2,815$                 

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Contractual Services -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Commodities -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Capital Outlay -$                          $                        -  $                        - 

Debt Service  $                        -  $                        -  $                        - 

Transfers To Other Funds 
Stormwater Utility Fund 3,800$                  $                 3,500  $                 3,000 

Total for Transfers To Other Funds 3,800$                 3,500$                 3,000$                 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,800$                 3,500$                 3,000$                 

1,423$                 423$                    238$                    

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Rock Creek Drainage Dist. #1

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31

Fund Sources:  Property Tax, Special Assessments, Interest and Transfers from other funds

Guidelines:  For construction, maintenance, repair or replacement of storm sewers and storm drains contained within the 
storm drainage district or within the watershed in the City that contributed to the storm drainage flowing into and/or out of 
the storm drainage district.  May also be used for debt service associated with the construction, maintenance, repair or 
replacement of same storm sewers and drains.

45



Fund Group:
Fund:

Actual Estimate Proposed
2015 2016 2017

3,758$                 3,409$                 6,409$                 

REVENUES

Real Estate Taxes 77,636$               78,000$               80,000$               
Real Estate Taxes Delinquent 16                        -                           -                           

Total for Property Taxes 77,651$               78,000$               80,000$               

Interest 1$                        -$                         5$                        
Total For Miscellaneous and Other 1$                        -$                         5$                        

TOTAL REVENUES 77,652$               78,000$               80,005$               

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Services -$                         -$                         -$                         

Contractual Services -$                         -$                         -$                         

Commodities -$                         -$                         -$                         

Capital Outlay -$                         -$                         -$                         

Debt Service -$                         -$                         -$                         

Transfers To Other Funds 
Stormwater Utility Fund 78,000$               75,000$               85,000$               

Total for Transfers To Other Funds 78,000$               75,000$               85,000$               

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 78,000$               75,000$               85,000$               

3,409$                 6,409$                 1,414$                 FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31

City of Mission Budget Worksheet - 2017 Budget Year 

Special Revenue 
Rock Creek Drainage Dist. #2

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

Property Taxes

Miscellaneous and Other 

Fund Sources:  Property Tax, Special Assessments, Interest and Transfers from other funds

Guidelines:  For construction, maintenance, repair or replacement of storm sewers and storm drains contained within the 
storm drainage district or within the watershed in the City that contributed to the storm drainage flowing into and/or out of 
the drainage district.  May also be used for debt service associated with the construction, maintenance, repair or replacement 
of same storm sewers and drains.

46



Capital Improvement Fund FY 2016 FY 2017

Street Mill and Overal 350,000$        350,000$        

Design of Fox Ridge (56th to 51st) 134,113          714,285          

Total 484,113$        1,064,285$     

Amount Available 484,000$        650,000$        

Street Sales Tax FY 2016 FY 2017

Full-Depth Reconstruction Projects (Non CARS) 300,000$        300,000$        

Amount Available 200,000$        250,000$        

Special Highway FY 2016 FY 2017

PW Maintenance Programs (sidewalks, traffic safety) 75,000$          75,000$          

Bridge Maintenance 25,000             25,000             

Total 100,000$        100,000$        

Amount Available 200,000$        250,000$        

Parks and Recreation Sales Tax FY 2016 FY 2017

Community Center Equipment Replacement 183,850$        122,000$        

Misson Crossing Park 100,000          -                        

Second Slide at MFAC -$                     95,000$          

283,850$        217,000$        

Amount Available 283,850$        300,000$        

47



 
 

 
 

 
2017-2021  

Community Investment Program  

48



2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenues

Beginning Balance 905,342 1,351,245 878,330 230,707 (1,811,765) (1,697,657)

Local Revenue 5,118,064 4,907,000 4,882,000 4,882,000 4,882,000 4,857,000

External Revenue 288,650 1,030,600 305,600 2,373,600 305,600 305,600

Debt Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total CIP Revenues 5,406,714 5,937,600 5,187,600 7,255,600 5,187,600 5,162,600

Expenses

Capital Projects 433,056 1,890,163 1,306,900 4,586,405 462,500 542,500
Streets 69,464 1,453,663 1,088,900 4,317,405 300,000 300,000

Stormwater 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parks & Recreation 363,592 436,500 218,000 269,000 162,500 242,500

Maintenance/Operations Programs 585,000 610,000 610,000 710,000 610,000 610,000
Streets 450,000 450,000 450,000 550,000 450,000 450,000

Stormwater 75,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Parks & Recreation 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000

Debt Service 3,942,755 3,910,352 3,918,323 4,001,667 4,000,992 3,999,187
Streets 741,933 743,508 739,079 738,723 737,323 740,081

Stormwater 2,619,319 2,589,919 2,593,144 2,680,194 2,679,569 2,674,106
Parks & Recreation 581,503 576,925 586,100 582,750 584,100 585,000

Total CIP Expenses 4,960,811 6,410,515 5,835,223 9,298,072 5,073,492 5,151,687
Remaining Debt Service

Ending Balance 1,351,245 878,330 230,707 (1,811,765) (1,697,657) (1,686,744) $12,715,465 

2017-2021 Community Investment Program - Overview

49



2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenues

Beginning Balance 905,342 1,351,245 878,330 230,707 (1,811,765) (1,697,657)
Streets 345,567 713,020 512,449 (43,930) (1,860,458) (1,626,181)

Stormwater 41,860 225,839 117,920 6,776 (191,418) (388,987)
Parks & Recreation 517,915 412,386 247,961 267,861 240,111 317,511

Local Revenue
Streets 1,383,000 1,475,000 1,475,000 1,475,000 1,475,000 1,475,000

Stormwater 2,878,298 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000
Parks & Recreation 856,766 850,000 825,000 825,000 825,000 800,000

External Revenue
Streets 245,850 971,600 246,600 2,314,600 246,600 246,600

Stormwater 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parks & Recreation 42,800 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000

Debt Proceeds
Streets 0 0 0 0 0 0

Stormwater 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parks & Recreation 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total CIP Revenues 5,406,714 5,937,600 5,187,600 7,255,600 5,187,600 5,162,600

Expenses

Capital Projects
Streets 69,464 1,453,663 1,088,900 4,317,405 300,000 300,000

Stormwater 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parks & Recreation 363,592 436,500 218,000 269,000 162,500 242,500

Maintenance/Operations Programs
Streets 450,000 450,000 450,000 550,000 450,000 450,000

Stormwater 75,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Parks & Recreation 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000

Debt Service Remaining Debt Service
Streets 741,933 743,508 739,079 738,723 737,323 740,081 $1,013,288

Stormwater 2,619,319 2,589,919 2,593,144 2,680,194 2,679,569 2,674,106 $10,641,277
Parks & Recreation 581,503 576,925 586,100 582,750 584,100 585,000 $1,060,900

Total CIP Expenses 4,960,811 6,410,515 5,835,223 9,298,072 5,073,492 5,151,687

Ending Balance 1,351,245 878,330 230,707 (1,811,765) (1,697,657) (1,686,744)
Streets 713,020 512,449 (43,930) (1,860,458) (1,626,181) (1,394,662)

Stormwater 225,839 117,920 6,776 (191,418) (388,987) (581,093)
Parks & Recreation 412,386 247,961 267,861 240,111 317,511 289,011

2017-2021 Community Investment Program - Summary by Program Area

50



2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenues

Beginning Balance* 345,567 713,020 512,449 (43,930) (1,860,458) (1,626,181)

Local Revenue
Transportation Utility Fund Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 0

7 mills dedicated to streets 833,000 925,000 925,000 925,000 925,000 925,000
0.25% Street Sales Tax Revenues - existing 550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000

Sub-total 1,383,000 1,475,000 1,475,000 1,475,000 1,475,000 1,475,000

External Revenue
CARS Reimbursements 0 725,000 2,000,000 0 0

Special Highway 245,850 246,600 246,600 246,600 246,600 246,600
Miscellaneous Revenues 0 0 0 68,000 0 0

Sub-total 245,850 971,600 246,600 2,314,600 246,600 246,600

Debt Proceeds

Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Street Revenues 1,628,850 2,446,600 1,721,600 3,789,600 1,721,600 1,721,600

Expenses

Capital Projects
Johnson Drive

Foxridge (56th to 51st) 69,464 1,453,663
Foxridge (51st to Lamar) 788,900 4,017,405

Full-depth Reconstruction Projects (non-CARS eligible) 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
Sub-total 69,464 1,453,663 1,088,900 4,317,405 300,000 300,000

Maintenance Programs
Street Maintenance Program (seal and mill/overlay) 350,000 350,000 350,000 450,000 350,000 350,000

PW Maintenance Programs (sidewalks, traffic safety) 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000
Bridge Maintenance/Administrative Costs 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000

Sub-total 450,000 450,000 450,000 550,000 450,000 450,000

Debt Service
Remaining Debt Service/ Year 

Retires
Johnson Drive/Martway Debt Service (2012A) 470,870 472,045 472,316 471,660 470,060 472,718 $474,300 (2022)

Jo Drive - Street Portion (2013C) 271,063 271,463 266,763 267,063 267,263 267,363 $538,988 (2023)
Sub-total 741,933 743,508 739,079 738,723 737,323 740,081

Total Street Expenses 1,261,397 2,647,171 2,277,979 5,606,128 1,487,323 1,490,081

Ending Balance 713,020 512,449 (43,930) (1,860,458) (1,626,181) (1,394,662)

Street Program Plan (2017-2021)

51



2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenues

Beginning Balance 41,860 225,839 117,920 6,776 (191,418) (388,987)

Local Revenue
Stormwater Utility Fund Revenues 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000

Drainage District Revenues 78,500 82,000 82,000 82,000 82,000 82,000
Transfer from General Fund for Debt Service

Transfer from CIP Fund for Debt Service
Gateway Special Benefit District Revenues 299,798 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total 2,878,298 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000

Extenal Revenue
SMAC Revenues

Miscellaneous Revenues
Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Debt Proceeds

Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Stormwater Revenues 2,878,298 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000

Expenses

Capital Projects

Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Maintenance Programs
Repair and Maintenance Fund 0 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

Stormwater Administrative Costs
Miscellaneous Engineering 75,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

Sub-total 75,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Debt Service/Loan Repayment Remaining Debt Service/ Year Retires
KDHE Loan Repayment 6,562 6,562 6,562 6,562 6,562 6,562 $65,620 (2031)

GO Series 2010A 366,613 367,813 368,738 369,388 364,763 -
GO Series 2010B 279,131 279,131 279,131 279,131 974,131 1,331,331 $4,494,455 (2026)

GO Series 2013C - Stormwater Portion 283,375 283,575 283,675 283,675 283,575 283,375 $570,075 (2023)
GO Series 2014-A 324,838 321,838 1,389,838 1,741,438 1,050,538 1,052,838 $5,511,127 (2029)
GO Series 2014-B 1,358,800 1,331,000 265,200 - - -

Sub-total 2,619,319 2,589,919 2,593,144 2,680,194 2,679,569 2,674,106

Total Stormwater Expenses 2,694,319 2,689,919 2,693,144 2,780,194 2,779,569 2,774,106

Ending Balance 225,839 117,920 6,776 (191,418) (388,987) (581,093)

Stormwater Program Plan (2017-2021)

52



Revenues
Beginning Fund Balance (unreserved) 517,915 412,386 247,961 267,861 240,111 317,511

Local Revenue

0.375% Parks & Recreation Sales Tax Revenues 850,000 850,000 825,000 825,000 825,000 800,000
Transfers/other 6,766

Sub-total 856,766 850,000 825,000 825,000 825,000 800,000

External Revenue
Special Parks & Recreation Revenues 42,800 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000

Sub-total 42,800 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000

Debt Proceeds

Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Parks and Recreation Revenues 899,566 909,000 884,000 884,000 884,000 859,000

Expenses

Capital Projects
Mission Crossing Park 109,042

Park Improvement Fund 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

MFAC Improvements/Equipment Replacement Addition of second slide tower 95,000

SPJCC Improvements/Equipment Replacement 204,550 291,500 168,000 219,000 112,500 192,500

6' Rectangular Tables 8,200 Refrigerators 10,000 Small Kaivac 5,000 Seated Rider Scrubber 16,000 Conference Center Banquet Chairs 30,000 Equipment/Facility Needs TBD 185,000
Round Tables (42) 7,500 A&B Carpet/Flooring 20,000 Gym Dividers (2) 25,000 Selectorize Equipment 45,000 Indoor Track Resurfacing 75,000

Aerobics Room Sound 2,000 A&B Banquet Chairs 13,000 Star Track Spinner Bikes (1/2) 12,500 Small Kaivac 5,000
Step Equipment 4,350 Dance Floor - Conference 3,000 Pool Pak Replacement 65,000 Adult Lounge Furniture 3,000

Pool Vacuums 6,000 Pool Resurfacing 50,000 Sound System A&B 10,000 Pool Pak Replacement 65,000
Gymnastic Mats 6,500 Conference Center Projectors 15,000 Free Weight Equipment 28,000 Locker Room Flooring 40,000

Stoves (2) 2,000 Replace Back-Up Battery Sytem 8,000 Steam Room retiling 15,000 Elevator Maintenance 25,000
Flat Panel TVs 5,000  Parking Lot 100,000 Star Track Spinner Bikes (1/2) 12,500

Cameras 12,500 Pool Pak Replacement 65,000
Phone System 18,000

Parking Lot/Sidewalks 125,000

Computer Replacement 7,500 Computer Replacement 7,500 Computer Replacement 7,500 Computer Replacement 7,500 Computer Replacement 7,500 Computer Replacement 7,500

Sub-total 363,592 436,500 218,000 269,000 162,500 242,500

Maintenance/Operations
Facility Reserve Funds (SPJCC) 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Facility Reserve Funds (MFAC) 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

Transfer to General Fund for Operations

Sub-total 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000

Debt Service/Lease Payments

Outdoor Aquatic Facility Debt Service (2013B) 526,450 529,000 531,100 527,750 529,100 $530,000 $1,060,900 (2023)
Cardio Equipment Lease 47,925 47,925 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 on-going lease

HVAC Controller Lease 7,128
Sub-total 581,503 576,925 586,100 582,750 584,100 585,000

Total Parks & Recreation Expenses 1,005,095 1,073,425 864,100 911,750 806,600 887,500
Ending Balance (unreserved) 412,386 247,961 267,861 240,111 317,511 289,011

SJPCC Reserve 235,000 SJPCC Reserve 285,000 SJPCC Reserve 335,000 SJPCC Reserve 385,000 SJPCC Reserve 435,000 SJPCC Reserve 485,000
MFAC Reserve 20,000 MFAC Reserve 30,000 MFAC Reserve 40,000 MFAC Reserve 50,000 MFAC Reserve 60,000 MFAC Reserve 70,000

Park Improvement Reserve 100,000 Park Improvement Reserve 150,000 Park Improvement Reserve 200,000 Park Improvement Reserve 250,000 Park Improvement Reserve 300,000 Park Improvement Reserve 350,000

Total Reserves 355,000 Total Reserves 465,000 Total Reserves 575,000 Total Reserves 685,000 Total Reserves 795,000 Total Reserves 905,000

Total Fund Balance 767,386 712,961 842,861 925,111 1,112,511 1,194,011

2021
Parks & Recreation Program Plan (2017-2021)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

53



 

City   of   Mission  Item   Number:  6a. 

ACTION   ITEM   SUMMARY  Date:  July   28,   2016 

Administration  From:  Laura   Smith 
Action   items   require   a   vote   to   recommend   the   item   to   full   City   Council   for   further   action. 
 

RE:    2017   Budget   Resolution   and   Financial   Policies 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    Approve   the   Budget   Resolution   outlining   the   policy   decisions,   mill   levies 
and   fees   included   in   the   City   of   Mission,   Rock   Creek   Drainage   District   #1   and   Rock   Creek 
Drainage   District   #2   budgets   for   2017. 
 
DETAILS:          As   a   part   of   the   annual   budget   process,   the   Governing   Body   historically   adopts   a 
budget   resolution   which   outlines   and   describes   the   financial   policies,   tax   and   fee   structures   and 
other   related   issues   in   a   particular   fiscal   year.      The   Resolution   included   in   the   packet 
incorporates   the   feedback   staff   has   received   throughout   the   budget   process   and   details   what   is 
included   in   the   2017   Recommended   Budgets.   
 
The   final   steps   in   adopting   the   2017   Budgets   include:   
 

● Approve   2017   Budget   Resolution   and   Financial   Policies 
● Approve   2017-2021   Community   Investment   Program   Resolution 
● Adopt   City   of   Mission   2017   Budget 
● Adopt   Rock   Creek   Drainage   District   #1   2017   Budget 
● Adopt   Rock   Creek   Drainage   District   #2   2017   Budget   

 
Each   step   will   require   a   separate   motion   to   ensure   we   accurately   communicate   the   specific 
history   and   actions   taken   in   developing   the   2017   Budget. 
 
In   addition,   staff   will   look   for   consensus   and   support   to   move   forward   in   the   2016   budget   year 
with   the   purchase   and   replacement   of   the   telephone   and   security   camera   systems   at   all 
City-owned   facilities.   Individual   contracts   and   purchases   will   come   back   before   the   Council   for 
final   review   and   approval. 
 
CFAA    CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACTS:       The   2017   Budget   was   developed   with   the   goals   and 
objectives   of   the   Communities   for   All   Ages   program   in   mind.      A   community   for   all   ages   seeks   to 
meet   the   needs   of   the   very   old,   the   very   young   and   everyone   in   between.   It   creates   and   fosters 
an   active,   caring   and   welcoming   community   that   promotes   respect,   diversity   and   inclusion.   A 
common   goal   is   to   develop   policies,   services   and   programs   that   result   in   affordable,   livable,   and 
sustainable   places.  

 

Related   Statute/City   Ordinance:   

Line   Item   Code/Description:   

Available   Budget:   

 



CITY   OF   MISSION,   KANSAS 
RESOLUTION   NO.   _____ 

 
A   RESOLUTION   ESTABLISHING   BUDGET   POLICIES   FOR   BUDGET   YEAR   2017   FOR   THE   CITY   OF 
MISSION,   KANSAS,   ROCK    CREEK    DRAINAGE   DISTRICT   #1,   AND   ROCK    CREEK    DRAINAGE 
DISTRICT   #2. 
 

WHEREAS,    the   City   of   Mission   must   provide   basic   services   to   protect   the   health,   safety,   and 
welfare   of   the   citizens   of   this   community;   and 

 
WHEREAS,    the   City   of   Mission   seeks   to   promote   a   redevelopment   vision   designed   to   bring 

increased   density   to   our   commercial   corridors   to   positively   impact   property   values   and   lower   the   per 
capita   cost   of   basic   services;   and 

 
WHEREAS,    it   is   important   to   fund   the   replacement   and   repair   of   public   infrastructure   such   as 

streets,   sidewalks,   storm   water   structures,   parks,   and   public   facilities   to   encourage   private 
redevelopment;   and 
 

WHEREAS,    the   City   has   implemented   more   transparent   methods   for   paying   for   services   and 
infrastructure   through   dedicated   stormwater,   solid   waste,   parks   and   recreation,   and   street   revenues; 
 

NOW,   THEREFORE,    be   it   resolved   by   the   Governing   Body   of   the   City   of   Mission: 
 
Section   1.          The   Governing   Body   establishes   the   following   policies   to   maintain   the   public   infrastructure 
as   part   of   the   Community   Investment   Program   (CIP)   within   the   2017   Budget. 
 
1. Maintain   the   Stormwater   Utility   Fee   $28   per   ERU   per   month.      This   would   provide   an   estimated 

$2.5   million   annually   in   Stormwater   Utility   fees   for   repayment   of   debt   service. 
2. Maintain   the   current   property   tax   mill   rate   of   10.500   mills   in   Rock   Creek   Drainage   District   #1   and 

Rock   Creek   Drainage   District   #2.      The   Drainage   Districts   generate   approximately   $82,000   in 
combined   annual   revenue.   

3. Maintain   a   total   mill   in   the   General   Fund   equal   to   approximately   18.225.   The   revenues   generated 
from   the   equivalent   of   7   mills   will   be   transferred   to   the   Capital   Improvement   Fund   to   support 
street   maintenance.      Property   tax   revenues   to   be   transferred   to   the   CIP   Fund   in   2017   are 
estimated   at   $925,000. 

4. Continue   to   use   the   revenues   from   the   ⅜-cent   Parks   &   Recreation   Sales   Tax   for   debt   service   on 
the   outdoor   aquatic   facility,   replacement   and   repair   of   facility   and   equipment   needs   at   the 
Sylvester   Powell,   Jr.   Community   Center   and   maintenance   and   enhancement   of   the   City’s   outdoor 
parks   and   trail   systems.      The   Parks   &   Recreation   Sales   Tax   is   estimated   to   generate 
approximately   $850,000. 

 
Section   2.          The   Governing   Body   has   established   the   following   policies   to   maintain   basic   services   and 
city   operations   as   part   of   the   General   Fund   within   the   2017   Budget. 
 
1. Preserve   the   equivalent   mill   levy   rate   (18.225)   used   to   fund   the   2016   Budget.      Although   total   mills 

are   levied   in   the   General   Fund,      the   revenue   from   7   mills   is   dedicated   for   street   maintenance, 
leaving   11.225   mills   available   to   support   General   Fund   operations. 

2. Maintain   a   General   Fund   balance   of   no   less   than   $2.25   million.      The   City’s   goal   for   reserve   funds 



is   25%   of   total   General   Fund   revenues.      In   order   to   achieve   this   goal,   the   fund   balance   target   for 
2017   would   be   $2.89   million.   

3. Maintain   the   Solid   Waste   Utility   Rate   at   $13.59   per   month   for   single-family   property   owners.   An 
estimated   transfer   in   the   amount   of   $85,000   from   the   General   Fund   subsidizes   single-family 
residential   trash   service   from   Deffenbaugh,   which   will   be    contracted   at   a   rate   of   $15.79   per   month 
per   home   in   2017. 

4. Continue   to   implement   merit   pool   increases   for   outstanding   employee   performance. 
5. Fund   replacement   of   the   highest   priority   capital   equipment   needs,   including   hardware   and 

software   (citywide),   a   front   wheel   loader   (Public   Works),   mowers   (Public   Works),   a   one   and   a   half 
ton   truck   (Public   Works),   an   air   compressor   (Public   Works),   a   half   ton   truck   (Parks   &   Recreation), 
and   various   police   vehicles   and   equipment.   Capital   equipment   expenditures   are   estimated   at 
$551,000. 

6. Establish   an   Equipment   Reserve   Fund   with   a   $250,000   transfer   from   the   General   Fund. 
7. Maintain   the   Franchise   and   Mill   Rate   Rebate   program   at   100%   of   the   City   franchise   fees,   100%   of 

the   total   City   mill   exclusive   of   all   City   special   assessments,   and   a   50%   rebate   of   the   Solid   Waste 
Utility   Fee.      This   expense   is   estimated   at   approximately    $25,000. 

8. Continue   to   explore   opportunities   to   increase   the   cost   recovery   goal   for   the   Community   Center, 
ultimately   working   toward   100%.      The   2017   Budget   as   presented   achieves   a   93%   cost   recovery 
rate,   excluding   capital. 

 
Section   3.          The   Governing   Body   directs   staff   to   pursue   the   following   as   part   of   on-going   budget 
considerations. 
 
1. Continue   to   research   and   refine   the   street   maintenance   program,   including   presenting   funding   or 

financing   options   to   address   full-depth   reconstruction   projects   and   maintenance   of   major 
thoroughfares. 

2. Research   and   begin   implementation   of   a   comprehensive   asset   management   program. 
3. Continue   to   look   for   partnership   options   that   could   decrease   costs   supported   by   Mission 

taxpayers. 
4. Continue   to   aggressively   manage   department   expenditures   to   be   as   efficient   as   possible   in   using 

limited   resources   to   deliver   high   quality   services. 
5. Facilitate   a   Council   goal   setting   session   to   develop   and   articulate   Council   goals   and   objectives   for 

upcoming   budget   cycles. 
 
PASSED   AND   APPROVED   BY   THE   GOVERNING   BODY   OF   THE   CITY   OF   MISSION    on   this   17th   day 
of   August   2016. 

 
APPROVED   BY   THE   MAYOR    on   this   17th   day   of   August   2016. 

 
 

______________________________________ 
Steve   Schowengerdt,   Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Martha   Sumrall,   City   Clerk 



 

City   of   Mission  Item   Number:  6b. 

ACTION   ITEM   SUMMARY  Date:  July   27,   2016 

Administration  From:  Laura   Smith 
Action   items   require   a   vote   to   recommend   the   item   to   full   City   Council   for   further   action. 
 

RE:    2017-2021   CIP   Resolution 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    Approve   the   Resolution   adopting   the   City   of   Mission’s   Recommended 
Community   Investment   Program   (CIP)   for   2017-2021. 
 
DETAILS:          As   a   part   of   the   annual   budget   process,   the   Governing   Body   has   historically 
adopted   a   resolution   which   outlines   and   describes   the   financial   policies,   tax   and   fee   structures 
and   other   related   issues   included   in   the   recommended   budget   for   the   upcoming   fiscal   year.      For 
the   last   several   years,   the   Governing   Body   has   also   adopted   a   Resolution   that   addresses   the 
recommended   five-year   infrastructure   plan,   also   referred   to   as   Mission’s   Community   Investment 
Program   (CIP). 
 
The   revenues   and   expenses   programmed   in   the   CIP   for   2017   are   included   in   the   2017 
Recommended   budget   in   the   appropriate   funds.      The   remainder   of   the   CIP   is   designed   to   be 
fluid   and   flexible   in   order   to   evaluate   and   address   changes   in   resources   or   priorities   in   future 
years.      Projects   which   have   been   identified   or   discussed   but   were   not   specifically   included   in   the 
2017-2021   CIP   may   be   outlined   in   the   body   of   the   Resolution   in   order   to   establish   a   public 
record/reminder   of   historical   considerations.   These   projects   may   be   eventually   be   programmed 
within   the   5-year   plan   as   a   part   of   future   budget   discussions. 
 
Approval   of   the   2017-2021   CIP   does   not   commit   the   City   to   any   specific   expenditures   beyond 
those   detailed   in   2017. 
 
CFAA    CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACTS:       The   2017-2021   CIP   was   developed   with   the   goals   and 
objectives   of   the   Communities   for   All   Ages   program   in   mind.      A   community   for   all   ages   seeks   to 
meet   the   needs   of   the   very   old,   the   very   young   and   everyone   in   between.   It   creates   and   fosters 
an   active,   caring   and   welcoming   community   that   promotes   respect,   diversity   and   inclusion.   A 
common   goal   is   to   develop   policies,   services   and   programs   that   result   in   affordable,   livable,   and 
sustainable   places.  
 
 

 

Related   Statute/City   Ordinance:   

Line   Item   Code/Description:  Various 

Available   Budget:  2017   -   $6,312,056   (all   program   areas   combined) 

 



CITY    OF    MISSION,   KANSAS 
RESOLUTION   NO.   _____ 

  
A   RESOLUTION   ADOPTING   THE   2017-2021   COMMUNITY    INVESTMENT 
PROGRAM    (CIP)   FOR   THE   CITY    OF    MISSION,   KANSAS. 
  

WHEREAS ,   the   City   of   Mission,   faces   significant   infrastructure   projects, 
including,   streets,   stormwater,   and   public   facilities   necessary   to   maintain   property 
values   and   encourage   additional   private-sector   redevelopment;   and 

 
WHEREAS ,   in   City-wide   surveys   conducted   by   ETC   in   2007,   2011,   and   2015 

the   citizens   of   Mission   articulated   redevelopment   as   one   of   the   top   priorities   facing 
the   city;   and 
  

WHEREAS ,   the   City   of   Mission,   has   invested   over   $70   million   in 
infrastructure   during   the   past   ten   years   in   support   of   both   public   and   private-sector 
goals;   and 
   

WHEREAS ,   a   multiyear   CIP   is   recognized   as   an   important   planning   and 
budgeting   document   for   municipalities;   and 

 
WHEREAS ,   the   CIP   contains   expenditures   to   actively   construct   and   maintain 

capital   projects   as   well   as   to   pay   debt   service   on   bonds   issued   for   infrastructure 
improvements;   and 
  

WHEREAS ,   the   annual   adoption   of   a   CIP   does   not   specifically   commit   the 
city   to   any   expenditures   and   is   an   important   forecasting   tool   for   the   annual   budget 
process;   and 
  

WHEREAS ,   the   CIP   better   positions   the   city   to   solicit   external   resources   to 
help   fund   infrastructure   projects   in   the   City   of   Mission, 
  

NOW,   THEREFORE,    be   it   resolved   by   the   Governing   Body   of   the   City   of 
Mission: 
  

Section   1 .   The   2017-2021   CIP   is   adopted.   The   City   expects   to   receive 
approximately   $5,406,714   million   of   revenue   and   spend   $4,960,811   million 
in   expenditures   as   part   of   the   2017   budget   related   to   the   Community 
Investment   Program.   
 
Section   2 .   In   2017,   the   CIP   will   fund   projects   and   debt   service   in   three 
primary   program   areas:   streets,   stormwater   and   parks   and   recreation. 
Specific   projects   and   debt   service   obligations   are   detailed   in   the   program 



plan   documents   included   as   Exhibit   1. 
 
Section   3 .   The   Governing   Body   acknowledges   that   there   are   other 
infrastructure   projects   which   have   been   identified   but   are   not   budgeted   in 
the   2017-2021   CIP.   These   include,   but   are   not   limited   to:  
  
a. Street   construction   projects   for   Barkley   St   (57 th    St   to   61 st    St), 

Broadmoor   St   (Johnson   Dr   to   Martway   St),   Johnson   Dr   (Lamar   Ave   to 
Metcalf   Ave,   and   Metcalf   Ave   (56 th    St   to   61 st    St).   Each   of   these   public 
projects   would   likely   be   pursued   in   partnership   with   redevelopment   by 
adjacent   private   property   owners. 

b. Completing   the   remediation   of   the   Rock   Creek   Floodplain   and 
establishing   a   Secondary   Stormwater   System   construction   program. 

c. Supporting   Downtown   Mission   redevelopment   via   public   parking,   public 
parkland,   and   a   local   market   that   considers   the   priorities   established 
by   the   Downtown   Visioning   Committee   (Resolution   849   11-16-11). 

d. Locating   and/or   maintaining   Administrative   and   Public   Safety 
personnel   in   facilities   that   can   sustainably   meet   the   long-term   needs   of 
the   city. 

e. Evaluating   the   results   of   the   Park   Master   Plan   as   it   relates   to   potential 
development   of   the   secondary   trail   system   to   better   connect   residents 
and   visitors   to   the   primary   system. 

f. Evaluating   and   prioritizing   recommendations   received   from   the   Park 
Master   Plan   for   recommended   maintenance   or   improvements   to   the 
Neighborhood   Park   System   (Andersen,   Broadmoor,   Waterworks, 
Mohawk,   and   Streamway   Parks). 

 
THIS   RESOLUTION   IS   PASSED   AND   APPROVED   BY    THE   CITY    COUNCIL 

OF    THE   CITY    OF    MISSION ,   this   17th   day   of   August   2016. 
  

THIS   RESOLUTION   IS   APPROVED   BY    THE   MAYOR    this   17th   day   of 
August   2016. 
  
 
  

_______________________________ 
           Steve   Schowengerdt,   Mayor   

 
ATTEST: 
  
  
_____________________________ 
Martha   Sumrall,   City   Clerk 



2017-2021 CIP Resolution
Exhibit 1

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenues

Beginning Balance 905,342 1,351,245 878,330 230,707 (1,811,765) (1,697,657)

Local Revenue 5,118,064 4,907,000 4,882,000 4,882,000 4,882,000 4,857,000

External Revenue 288,650 1,030,600 305,600 2,373,600 305,600 305,600

Debt Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total CIP Revenues 5,406,714 5,937,600 5,187,600 7,255,600 5,187,600 5,162,600

Expenses

Capital Projects 433,056 1,890,163 1,306,900 4,586,405 462,500 542,500
Streets 69,464 1,453,663 1,088,900 4,317,405 300,000 300,000

Stormwater 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parks & Recreation 363,592 436,500 218,000 269,000 162,500 242,500

Maintenance/Operations Programs 585,000 610,000 610,000 710,000 610,000 610,000
Streets 450,000 450,000 450,000 550,000 450,000 450,000

Stormwater 75,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Parks & Recreation 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000

Debt Service 3,942,755 3,910,352 3,918,323 4,001,667 4,000,992 3,999,187
Streets 741,933 743,508 739,079 738,723 737,323 740,081

Stormwater 2,619,319 2,589,919 2,593,144 2,680,194 2,679,569 2,674,106
Parks & Recreation 581,503 576,925 586,100 582,750 584,100 585,000

Total CIP Expenses 4,960,811 6,410,515 5,835,223 9,298,072 5,073,492 5,151,687
Remaining Debt Service

Ending Balance 1,351,245 878,330 230,707 (1,811,765) (1,697,657) (1,686,744) $12,715,465 

2017-2021 Community Investment Program - Overview



2017-2021 CIP Resolution
Exhibit 1

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenues

Beginning Balance 905,342 1,351,245 878,330 230,707 (1,811,765) (1,697,657)
Streets 345,567 713,020 512,449 (43,930) (1,860,458) (1,626,181)

Stormwater 41,860 225,839 117,920 6,776 (191,418) (388,987)
Parks & Recreation 517,915 412,386 247,961 267,861 240,111 317,511

Local Revenue
Streets 1,383,000 1,475,000 1,475,000 1,475,000 1,475,000 1,475,000

Stormwater 2,878,298 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000
Parks & Recreation 856,766 850,000 825,000 825,000 825,000 800,000

External Revenue
Streets 245,850 971,600 246,600 2,314,600 246,600 246,600

Stormwater 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parks & Recreation 42,800 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000

Debt Proceeds
Streets 0 0 0 0 0 0

Stormwater 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parks & Recreation 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total CIP Revenues 5,406,714 5,937,600 5,187,600 7,255,600 5,187,600 5,162,600

Expenses

Capital Projects
Streets 69,464 1,453,663 1,088,900 4,317,405 300,000 300,000

Stormwater 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parks & Recreation 363,592 436,500 218,000 269,000 162,500 242,500

Maintenance/Operations Programs
Streets 450,000 450,000 450,000 550,000 450,000 450,000

Stormwater 75,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Parks & Recreation 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000

Debt Service Remaining Debt Service
Streets 741,933 743,508 739,079 738,723 737,323 740,081 $1,013,288

Stormwater 2,619,319 2,589,919 2,593,144 2,680,194 2,679,569 2,674,106 $10,641,277
Parks & Recreation 581,503 576,925 586,100 582,750 584,100 585,000 $1,060,900

Total CIP Expenses 4,960,811 6,410,515 5,835,223 9,298,072 5,073,492 5,151,687

Ending Balance 1,351,245 878,330 230,707 (1,811,765) (1,697,657) (1,686,744)
Streets 713,020 512,449 (43,930) (1,860,458) (1,626,181) (1,394,662)

Stormwater 225,839 117,920 6,776 (191,418) (388,987) (581,093)
Parks & Recreation 412,386 247,961 267,861 240,111 317,511 289,011

2017-2021 Community Investment Program - Summary by Program Area



2017-2021 CIP Resolution
Exhibit 1

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenues

Beginning Balance* 345,567 713,020 512,449 (43,930) (1,860,458) (1,626,181)

Local Revenue
Transportation Utility Fund Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 0

7 mills dedicated to streets 833,000 925,000 925,000 925,000 925,000 925,000
0.25% Street Sales Tax Revenues - existing 550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000

Sub-total 1,383,000 1,475,000 1,475,000 1,475,000 1,475,000 1,475,000

External Revenue
CARS Reimbursements 0 725,000 2,000,000 0 0

Special Highway 245,850 246,600 246,600 246,600 246,600 246,600
Miscellaneous Revenues 0 0 0 68,000 0 0

Sub-total 245,850 971,600 246,600 2,314,600 246,600 246,600

Debt Proceeds

Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Street Revenues 1,628,850 2,446,600 1,721,600 3,789,600 1,721,600 1,721,600

Expenses

Capital Projects
Johnson Drive

Foxridge (56th to 51st) 69,464 1,453,663
Foxridge (51st to Lamar) 788,900 4,017,405

Full-depth Reconstruction Projects (non-CARS eligible) 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
Sub-total 69,464 1,453,663 1,088,900 4,317,405 300,000 300,000

Maintenance Programs
Street Maintenance Program (seal and mill/overlay) 350,000 350,000 350,000 450,000 350,000 350,000

PW Maintenance Programs (sidewalks, traffic safety) 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000
Bridge Maintenance/Administrative Costs 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000

Sub-total 450,000 450,000 450,000 550,000 450,000 450,000

Debt Service
Remaining Debt Service/ Year 

Retires
Johnson Drive/Martway Debt Service (2012A) 470,870 472,045 472,316 471,660 470,060 472,718 $474,300 (2022)

Jo Drive - Street Portion (2013C) 271,063 271,463 266,763 267,063 267,263 267,363 $538,988 (2023)
Sub-total 741,933 743,508 739,079 738,723 737,323 740,081

Total Street Expenses 1,261,397 2,647,171 2,277,979 5,606,128 1,487,323 1,490,081

Ending Balance 713,020 512,449 (43,930) (1,860,458) (1,626,181) (1,394,662)

Street Program Plan (2017-2021)



2017-2021 CIP Resolution
Exhibit 1

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenues

Beginning Balance 41,860 225,839 117,920 6,776 (191,418) (388,987)

Local Revenue
Stormwater Utility Fund Revenues 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000

Drainage District Revenues 78,500 82,000 82,000 82,000 82,000 82,000
Transfer from General Fund for Debt Service

Transfer from CIP Fund for Debt Service
Gateway Special Benefit District Revenues 299,798 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total 2,878,298 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000

Extenal Revenue
SMAC Revenues

Miscellaneous Revenues
Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Debt Proceeds

Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Stormwater Revenues 2,878,298 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000 2,582,000

Expenses

Capital Projects

Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Maintenance Programs
Repair and Maintenance Fund 0 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

Stormwater Administrative Costs
Miscellaneous Engineering 75,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

Sub-total 75,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Debt Service/Loan Repayment Remaining Debt Service/ Year Retires
KDHE Loan Repayment 6,562 6,562 6,562 6,562 6,562 6,562 $65,620 (2031)

GO Series 2010A 366,613 367,813 368,738 369,388 364,763 -
GO Series 2010B 279,131 279,131 279,131 279,131 974,131 1,331,331 $4,494,455 (2026)

GO Series 2013C - Stormwater Portion 283,375 283,575 283,675 283,675 283,575 283,375 $570,075 (2023)
GO Series 2014-A 324,838 321,838 1,389,838 1,741,438 1,050,538 1,052,838 $5,511,127 (2029)
GO Series 2014-B 1,358,800 1,331,000 265,200 - - -

Sub-total 2,619,319 2,589,919 2,593,144 2,680,194 2,679,569 2,674,106

Total Stormwater Expenses 2,694,319 2,689,919 2,693,144 2,780,194 2,779,569 2,774,106

Ending Balance 225,839 117,920 6,776 (191,418) (388,987) (581,093)

Stormwater Program Plan (2017-2021)



2017-2021 CIP Resolution
Exhibit 1

Revenues
Beginning Fund Balance (unreserved) 517,915 412,386 247,961 267,861 240,111 317,511

Local Revenue

0.375% Parks & Recreation Sales Tax Revenues 850,000 850,000 825,000 825,000 825,000 800,000
Transfers/other 6,766

Sub-total 856,766 850,000 825,000 825,000 825,000 800,000

External Revenue
Special Parks & Recreation Revenues 42,800 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000

Sub-total 42,800 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000

Debt Proceeds

Sub-total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Parks and Recreation Revenues 899,566 909,000 884,000 884,000 884,000 859,000

Expenses

Capital Projects
Mission Crossing Park 109,042

Park Improvement Fund 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

MFAC Improvements/Equipment Replacement Addition of second slide tower 95,000

SPJCC Improvements/Equipment Replacement 204,550 291,500 168,000 219,000 112,500 192,500

6' Rectangular Tables 8,200 Refrigerators 10,000 Small Kaivac 5,000 Seated Rider Scrubber 16,000 Conference Center Banquet Chairs 30,000 Equipment/Facility Needs TBD 185,000
Round Tables (42) 7,500 A&B Carpet/Flooring 20,000 Gym Dividers (2) 25,000 Selectorize Equipment 45,000 Indoor Track Resurfacing 75,000

Aerobics Room Sound 2,000 A&B Banquet Chairs 13,000 Star Track Spinner Bikes (1/2) 12,500 Small Kaivac 5,000
Step Equipment 4,350 Dance Floor - Conference 3,000 Pool Pak Replacement 65,000 Adult Lounge Furniture 3,000

Pool Vacuums 6,000 Pool Resurfacing 50,000 Sound System A&B 10,000 Pool Pak Replacement 65,000
Gymnastic Mats 6,500 Conference Center Projectors 15,000 Free Weight Equipment 28,000 Locker Room Flooring 40,000

Stoves (2) 2,000 Replace Back-Up Battery Sytem 8,000 Steam Room retiling 15,000 Elevator Maintenance 25,000
Flat Panel TVs 5,000  Parking Lot 100,000 Star Track Spinner Bikes (1/2) 12,500

Cameras 12,500 Pool Pak Replacement 65,000
Phone System 18,000

Parking Lot/Sidewalks 125,000

Computer Replacement 7,500 Computer Replacement 7,500 Computer Replacement 7,500 Computer Replacement 7,500 Computer Replacement 7,500 Computer Replacement 7,500

Sub-total 363,592 436,500 218,000 269,000 162,500 242,500

Maintenance/Operations
Facility Reserve Funds (SPJCC) 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Facility Reserve Funds (MFAC) 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

Transfer to General Fund for Operations

Sub-total 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000

Debt Service/Lease Payments

Outdoor Aquatic Facility Debt Service (2013B) 526,450 529,000 531,100 527,750 529,100 $530,000 $1,060,900 (2023)
Cardio Equipment Lease 47,925 47,925 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 on-going lease

HVAC Controller Lease 7,128
Sub-total 581,503 576,925 586,100 582,750 584,100 585,000

Total Parks & Recreation Expenses 1,005,095 1,073,425 864,100 911,750 806,600 887,500
Ending Balance (unreserved) 412,386 247,961 267,861 240,111 317,511 289,011

SJPCC Reserve 235,000 SJPCC Reserve 285,000 SJPCC Reserve 335,000 SJPCC Reserve 385,000 SJPCC Reserve 435,000 SJPCC Reserve 485,000
MFAC Reserve 20,000 MFAC Reserve 30,000 MFAC Reserve 40,000 MFAC Reserve 50,000 MFAC Reserve 60,000 MFAC Reserve 70,000

Park Improvement Reserve 100,000 Park Improvement Reserve 150,000 Park Improvement Reserve 200,000 Park Improvement Reserve 250,000 Park Improvement Reserve 300,000 Park Improvement Reserve 350,000

Total Reserves 355,000 Total Reserves 465,000 Total Reserves 575,000 Total Reserves 685,000 Total Reserves 795,000 Total Reserves 905,000

Total Fund Balance 767,386 712,961 842,861 925,111 1,112,511 1,194,011

2021
Parks & Recreation Program Plan (2017-2021)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020



 

City   of   Mission  Item   Number:  6f. 

ACTION   ITEM   SUMMARY  Date:  July   28,   2016 

Public   Works  From:  John   Belger 
Action   items   require   a   vote   to   recommend   the   item   to   full   City   Council   for   further   action. 
 

RE:    Rock   Creek   Drainage   and   Slope   Conceptual   Design 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    Approve   the   proposal   from   GBA   for   conceptual   design   of 
drainage   and   slope   improvements   to   the   Rock   Creek   channel   between   Nall   Avenue   and 
Roeland   Drive   in   an   amount   not   to   exceed   $31,500.  
 
DETAILS:    Over   the   past   10   years,   a   number   of   projects   have   been   completed   along   the 
Rock   Creek   drainage   corridor   from   Nall   Avenue   to   Roe   Avenue.      These   projects   include 
the   Gateway   stormwater   improvements,   the   floodwall   at   Mission   Bowl,   and   the 
intersection   improvements   at   Nall   and   Martway.      A   portion   of   this   this   channel,   from   the 
floodwall   to   Roeland   Drive,   remains   unimproved.   
 
In   the   unimproved   section,   there   have   been   ongoing   concerns   with   erosion.      There   are 
two   areas   where   the   erosion   is   most   prevalent.      The   first   is   the   portion   of   the   channel 
adjacent   to   the   Mission   Bank   parking   lot.      The   creek   has   eroded   the   bank   and   has 
started   to   impact   the   pavement   in   the   parking   lot.      The   second   area   is   located   behind 
the   homes   on   60th   Terrace   (from   5118   to   5128).      There   is   a   sharp   drop   off   in   the   rear 
yards   adjacent   to   the   creek.      The   erosion   is   beginning   to   impact   the   fences   and 
retaining   walls   and   will   only   continue   to   get   worse   over   time. 
 
In   order   to   address   these   concerns,   GBA   has   provided   a   scope   and   fee   for   conceptual 
design   of   improvements   to   Rock   Creek   in   the   unimproved   area   between   Nall   Avenue 
and   Roeland   Drive.      As   detailed   in   the   attached   fee/scope   proposal   from   GBA,   this 
would   develop   and   evaluate   both   long   term   and   short   term   solutions   for   the   channel. 
GBA   anticipates   the   study   will   be   completed   in   approximately   six   (6)   weeks. 
 
Ultimately,   this   study   is   the   first   step   in   exploring   whether   County   stormwater   funds 
would   be   available   to   assist   with   improvements   to   the   channel.   There   are   sufficient 
funds   available   through   the   RC   Drainage   District   #2   to   proceed   with   the   project. 
 
 
CFAA   CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACTS:    N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Related   Statute/City   Ordinance:   

Line   Item   Code/Description:  27-90-805-09   Capital   Projects 

Available   Budget:  $77,435 

 



  

 

 

June 23th, 2016 
 
Mr. John Belger 
Public Works Director 
City of Mission 
4775 Lamar Ave. 
Mission, KS 66202 
 
SUBJECT: Rock Creek Drainage and Slope Conceptual Design Services.   
 
Dear John: 
 
As you requested, GBA has prepared this letter of proposal to provide drainage 
and slope conceptual design services for the reach of Rock Creek bounded by 
Roeland Park Drive and Nall Avenue (Exhibit A).  The conceptual design/study 
services will be provided as a separate task under GBA’s current Master 
Agreement for on-call engineering services with the City, which was previously 
approved on December 17, 2014. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 
It is anticipated that GBA personnel will need to provide the following 
engineering services for this project: 
  
A. Task 1 (Conceptual Study/Cost Analysis)  

 
1. Desktop review of prior studies/reports and projects (JCW, Mission 

and/or Jo County SMP project(s)) pertinent to this site.  Perform field 
reconnaissance of site in question with a Qualified Geotechnical Firm to 
observe existing conditions and site constraints for development of 3 
viable/constructible alternate solutions (ie, do nothing/buyout; 
natural/open channel; enclosed conveyance) 

 
2. Utilizing the latest Johnson County Watershed hydraulic model for this 

location, analyze 2 of the 3 alternative solutions (natural/open channel 
& enclosed conveyance) for this reach of stream.  Analysis will be 
based on limiting the 1%/100-year frequency event to a no net rise 
upstream and downstream of the site in question.  
 

3. Preparation of Conceptual Opinion of Probable Construction Costs for 
the two (2) alternatives evaluated.   
 

4. Evaluation of a short term solution (2 to 3 years) and opinion of 
probable construction costs for the slope failure near 5122 W 60th 
Terrace.   
 

5. Memorandum development (2 to 3 pages) along with 3 exhibits of the 
project site and Opinion of probable construction costs for 2 alternatives 
of Rock Creek and slope failure long term improvements and 1 for short 
term improvement of slope failure.   
 

6. Update of Flood Rating Table for available points for project site 
 
 
SCHEDULE 



Page 2 of 2

GBA personnel will commit to completing these required engineering
conceptual study services in a timely fashion to be provided to the City for
review as following:

• Task 1 (Conceptual Study/Cost Analysis): Week of July 1 8th 2016

PROPOSED FEE

GBA will complete the work tasks described in the above listed Scope of
Services on an hourly rate plus expenses basis. Our fee to provide the
engineering conceptual design services is $31,500. Invoices will be submitted
for all work completed during each previous month, including an itemized task
summary as required by the City staff, and will become due and payable within
thirty (30) days.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve you on this important project. If you
agree with the project scope, schedule, and fee, please sign the following
project authorization form and mail the original back to GBA at our attention.

I hereby authorize George Butler Associates, Inc. (GBA) to perform the tasks in
the above listed Scope of Services. I acknowledge and agree with the listed
project schedule and fee. I further agree to pay the monthly invoices from GBA
for the services provided within thirty days of receipt.

Authorized by:

__________________________________________

Title:

GBP
architects
engineers

Respectfully submitted,

GEORGE BUTLER INC.

Cory Clarl4, P.E.
Municipal Group Leader

Beth Fr , .E., CFM
Project Manager

Date:



5122 W 60th Ter

R
O

E
 A

V
E

N
A

LL
 A

V
E

MARTWAY ST

JOHNSON DR

W
 6

0T
H T

ER

W 58TH ST

M
A

P
LE

 S
T

SH
AW

NEE
 M

IS
SI

ON P
KW

Y

ROCK 
CREE

K 
LN

ROELAND DR

JU
NIP

ER
 D

R

W 60TH ST

W 61ST ST

B
IR

C
H

 S
T

W 58TH TER

ACCESS RD

RO
SEW

O
O

D ST

R
O

SEW
O

O
D

 D
R

ASH
 D

R

W 59TH ST

W 60TH TER

BIRCH ST

ROELAND DR

M
A

P
LE

 S
T

SH
AW

NEE
 M

IS
SI

ON P
KW

Y

BIR
C

H
 ST

B
IR

C
H

 S
T

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community±200 0 200100 Feet

1 inch = 200 feet

Exhibit A: Rock Creek Drainage and Slope Repair Study Area

Study Area












	AI-Gateway Revised Prelim Site Plan 16-03 - Google Docs
	PC Minutes 7-25-16
	Gateway - 16-03 Staff Report
	Proposed plans 16-03
	00-Title Page
	01-Site Plan
	A050 (SITE PLAN)
	A051 (LEVEL 1)
	A052 (LEVEL 2)
	A053 (LEVEL 3)
	A054 (LEVEL 4)
	A055 (LEVEL 5-7)

	01-Site Plan-Circulation Diagram
	A051 (LEVEL 1)
	A052 (LEVEL 2)
	A053 (LEVEL 3)
	A054 (LEVEL 4)
	A055 (LEVEL 5-7)

	02-Stacking Diagram
	03-Arch Vignettes Final
	001
	002
	003
	004
	005

	04-Elevations
	05-Material Studies
	CIVIL PDP
	PD-C100 GENERAL LAYOUT PLAN
	PD-C101 GENERAL LAYOUT TOP PLAN
	PD-C200 GRADING PLAN
	PD-C300 TURNING TEMPLATE
	PD-L100 LANDSCAPE PLAN
	PD-L101 LANDSCAPE RENDERING


	Previous plans 15-10
	Gateway-PDP ARCH Final2
	00-Title Page
	02-Stacking Diagram
	01-A050's (SITE PLAN-PDP)
	A050 (SITE PLAN)
	A051 (LEVEL 1)
	A052 (LEVEL 2)
	A053 (LEVEL 3)
	A054 (LEVEL 4)
	A055 (LEVEL 5-7)

	03-Arch Vignettes
	001
	002
	003
	004

	04-Elevations
	05-Material Studies

	PD-C100 GENERAL LAYOUT PLAN
	PD-C200 GRADING PLAN
	PD-C300 TURNING TEMPLATE
	PD-L100
	PD-L101

	1 - 8-3-16 Budget Packet
	Budget Cover
	2017 Proposed Budget Narrative
	City of Mission 2017 Budget Public Notice
	Rock Creek Drainage District #1 2017 Budget Public Notice
	Rock Creek Drainage District #2 2017 Budget Public Notice
	2017 Budget - Draft #3 - Complete Budget
	List of Capital Budget Items
	CIP Cover
	CIP 2017-2021

	AI_2017 Budget Resolution - Google Docs
	2017 Budget Resolution_Financial Policies - Google Docs
	AI_2017-2021 CIP Resolution - Google Docs
	2017-2021 CIP Resolution - Google Docs
	CIP 2017-2021 Resolution Exhibit (1)
	AI- Rock Creek Drainage and Slope Conceptual Design - Google Docs
	Rock Creek Study Services 06-23-16
	AI - MDA Boot Block 2016 - Google Docs
	CFD2 - MDA Boot Block Insurance



